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with PGiCOS solutions every day No matter their size

these companies are transforming their businesses with

communication technologies Their employees perform better

ycoEIabort moreir ailrr ott

They create and share ideas across markets functions and

continents because engaging with each other has never been easier
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day demand more from

their business applications They want the

applications to be powerful and flexible

and they expect them to be visually rich

intuitive and easy4o-use To provide

Ly rs vi exp icc

for our users we are taking the utility and

design of our products to the next level
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By bringing more tools and technologies into

our conferencing and collaboration products

this year we will enable users to more closely

in virtual environment Our goal is to move beyond

just conferencing services and into the much larger

market for ALL meetings and events worldwide

We believe the implications for our business are vast
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Dear Fellow Shareholders

2008 was another year of consider

able accomplishment for our

Company as we advanced number

of our key business objectives

and moved closer to our vision for

Premiere Global Services

Despite unprecedented economic

challenges we generated nearly

12% growth in our consolidated net

revenues last year driven by our

strongest organic revenue growth in

more than three years In addition

we grew our non-GAAP diluted earn

ings per share by nearly 20% and

we generated net cash provided by

operating activities of greater than

$106 million for the year which is

an increase of nearly 17% from 2007

In addition to our financial success

we believe we achieved significant

strategic progress last year as well

For example we culminated multi-

year project that brought together

all of our core technologies into

unique open standards platform

called the PGi Communications Op

erating System or PGiCOS for short

We believe our broad suite of applied

communication technologies on

single on-demand platform con

tinues to differentiate PGi from our

competitors

The implementation of open stan

dards access to the PGiCOS has

positioned us and our partner com

munity to develop new business

applications in fraction of the time

and for fraction of the expense they

previously required As result

our product development roadmap

last year was more robust than ever

before buoyed by the highest level

of investment in new product devel

opment in our Companys history

In the year ahead we look to harvest

our investment in these new prod

ucts and to use our technology to

advance our position in the market

Today our product strategy is

grounded in passionate focus on

the user of our services While

our products are already mission

Boland Jones

Chairman and Chief Fxecutive Officer



critical to many of these users we in

tend to build on the significant value

we provide to them Specifically by

focusing our efforts on making our

PGiCOS applications easy-to-use

visually compelling intuitive and

fun in word ENGAGING

In 2008 we also expanded our

global footprint with our entry into

India and China Our global pres

ence remains one of our key strat

egies as we believe it gives us

significant advantage against our

competitors who for the most part

are regionally focused We plan to

continue to invest in augmenting our

global capabilities to better serve our

customers and partners

flow generation is at historically high

levels our business momentum

and pipeline of new potential

customer opportunities remain

robust and our profitability contin

ues to improve

We believe the current momentum in

our business validates and reinforces

our vision as customers around

the world increasingly look to our

on-demand applied communication

technologies to help lower their costs

and streamline their businesses

Simply put we believe our PGiCOS

solutions are perfectly suited to help

companies in their efforts to be more

productive and more efficient in

both good times and bad

In conclusion let me say that

am very proud of our solid perfor

mance in 2008 and the progress

we have made toward our strategic

operational and financial goals

We look for 2009 to be another

exciting year of new opportunities

for PGi as we work diligently to

continue to grow our business to

differentiate our products and our

Company from our competitors

and to improve our customer and

shareholder value

Boland Jones

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Looking ahead we remain optimistic

in our outlook for 2009 In spite of

todays economic uncertainty we

believe our business fundamentals

remain strong For example our

balance sheet is solid with substan

tial liquidity and our lowest leverage

ratio in nearly two years our cash

Finally in the year ahead we plan

to maintain our focus on develop

ing and implementing products and

self-service tools that improve our

user experience introducing new

pricing programs aimed at enhanc

ing the overall quality and consis

tency of our revenues and furthering

our efforts to build brand that is

sustainable asset for our Company
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

When used in this annual report on Form io-K and elsewhere by us or by

management from time to time the words believes anticipates

expects will may should intends plans estimates

predicts potential continue and similar expressions are intended to

identify forward-looking statements concerning our operations economic

performance and financial condition For those statements we claim the

protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These statements are based

on number of assumptions and estimates that are inherently subject to

significant risks and uncertainties many of which are beyond our control

and reflect future business decisions which are subject to change variety

of factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those antici

pated in our forward-looking statements including the following factors

Our
ability to compete based on price and against our existing and

future ompetitors

Our
ability to respond to rapid technological change and the development

of alternatives to our services

Market acceptance of new services and enhancements to existing services

Costs or difficulties related to the integration of any new or acquired

businesses and technologies

Concerns regarding the security of transactions and transmitting

confidential information over the Internet and public networks

Our ability to upgrade our equipment or increase our network capacity

to meet customer demands

Our services may be interrupted due to failure of the platforms and

network infrastructure utilized in providing our services

Continued weakness in our legacy broadcast fax services which is part

of our PGiSend solution

Our ability to
efficiently utilize or re-negotiate our telecommunications

supply agreements

Increased leverage may harm our financial condition and results

of operations

Our dependence on our subsidiaries for cash flow may negatively affect

our business and our ability to pay amounts due under our indebtedness

Our financial performance could cause future write-downs of goodwill

or other intangible assets in future periods

Assessment of income state sales and other taxes for which we have

not accrued

Our ability to attract and retain qualified key personnel

Our ability to successfully identify suitable acquisition candidates

complete acquisitions integrate acquired operations into our existing

operations or expand into new markets

Our ability to protect our proprietary technology and intellectual

property rights

Possible adverse results of pending or future litigation or adverse

results of current or future infringement claims

Regulatory or legislative changes may adversely affect our business

Possible adverse results if our services become subject to government

regulations applicable to traditional telecommunications service providers

Risks associated with expansion of our international operations and

fluctuations in currency exchange rates

Domestic and international terrorist activity war and political instability

may adversely affect the level of services utilized by our customers and

the ability of those customers to pay for services utilized

General economic or business conditions internationally nationally or

in the local jurisdiction in which we are doing business may be less

favorable than expected

Risks associated with weakening global economic and credit conditions

including customer consolidations bankruptcies and payment defaults

Consolidation restructuring or bankruptcies of our customers including

due to worsening economic conditions could decrease our revenues

Factors described under the caption Item iA Risk Factors in this annual

report on Form io-K and

Factors described from time to time in our press releases reports and

other filings made with the Securities and Exchange Commission

We caution that these factors are not exclusive Consequently all of the

forward-looking statements made in this annual report on Form io-K and

in other documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission or

SEC are qualified by these cautionary statements Readers are cautioned not

to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements which speak

only as of the date of this Form io-K We undertake no obligation to publicly

release the results of any revisions to these forward-looking statements that

maybe made to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Form

io-K or the date of the statement if different date

PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Overview

Premiere Global Services Inc develops and markets comprehensive suite

of applied communication technologies Our proprietary business applica

tions which we deliver through tbe PGi Communications Operating System

or PG1COS enable companies to improve their productivity and efficiencies

by helping them to automate and streamline their critical business processes

and to meet and collaborate in more cost-effective manner We have

global presence in 24 countries and nearly one million users from our

established base of more than 50000 customers which includes nearly

90% of the Fortune 500

We offer our suite of business applications in the on-demand model

meaning our customers are not burdened with the up-front expense and

complexity associated with purchasing and installing hardware and software

solutions Our applications are scalable customizable to the client or task

easy-to-use and can be integrated with other technologies including

customers existing IT infrastructure

We host our applications on our secure enterprise-class platforms that are

located around the world in our server and network operations centers and

in third-party co-location facilities This integrated network of platforms

that make up the PGiCOS utilizes our proprietary software and variety of

leading communication technologies including web and audio conferenc

ing e-mail short message services or SMS IP fax automated speech

mobile and other technologies In addition we are in the process of integrat

ing newer technologies such as social networking virtualization gaming

and web 2.0 into our product suite to meet evolving user preferences

We deliver our services through our web site at www.premiereglobal.com

which enables customers to use our suite of applications through their

desktop laptop or mobile device We also offer open standards access to

our technology applications via our application programming interface

or API suite enabling our customers and technology partners to integrate

our PGiCOS capabilities directly into their enterprise systems and existing

business processes

We market our PGiCOS applications globally through multi-channel sales

organization These applications are grouped within four solution sets

PGiMeet PGiSend PGiNotify and PGiMarket formerly known as Conferenc

ing Collaboration Document Solutions Notifications Reminders and

eMarketing within our three segments in North America Europe and Asia

Pacific See Note i6 to our consolidated financial statements for the year

ended December 31 2008 included in this annual report on Form io-K for

information concerning our operations in our reportable segments

We were incorporated in Florida in 1991 and reincorporated in Georgia

in 1995 As of December 31 2008 we had approximately 2650 employees

conducting business in North America Europe and Asia Pacific Our corpo

rate headquarters are located at 3280 Peachtree Road N.W The Terminus

Building Suite iooo Atlanta Georgia 30305 and our telephone number

is 404.262.8400

Industry Background

The global economy is experiencing significant challenges and structural

changes that are altering the manner in which companies conduct their

businesses Recessionary pressures the rapidly growing costs and hassle of

business travel environmental concerns and the constant need to improve

productivity to remain competitive are increasingly driving companies to

utilize information and communication technologies to streamline and

improve their business processes and to reduce costs

Companies around the world depend on the ability to collaborate internally

and externally and to access manipulate and communicate data images

and web-based information in real time often in locations far removed

from their primary places of business Communication technologies have

become mission-critical backbone of modern business processes as even

the most basic tasks rely on the ability to communicate in cost-effective

and productive manner

Large and small companies around the world conduct vast number of

business processes every day that are communication-based technology-

dependent and highly integrated both inside and outside of their enterprise

Integrated communication solutions that include voice data web imaging

messaging and mobile capabilities are fast becoming business require

ments These capabilities rely on secure robust and flexible information

tech-nology backbone and systems expertise that until recently required

substantial investment in expensive centralized computing and communica

tion technology infrastructure

With the ubiquity of the Internet substantial declines in the price of and the

resulting increase in the availability of computer hardware communication

bandwidth and improved data security new generation of enterprise tech

nology solutions have been developed and embraced by the market These

solutions allow substantial components of the computing and communica

tion infrastructure to be hosted remotely with the applications and services

required by the customer provided dynamically on an outsourced basis

This on-demand Software-as-a-Service or SaaS delivery model has rapidly

emerged as preferred means by which many customers access software

and business applications Using the SaaS model customers subscribe to

services and applications on single- or integrated-suite basis and utilize

those applied technologies over the web as needed There is typically

no need for significant expense or resource allocation related to system

implementation or other large software maintenance commitments

While we believe that customers have benefited from the SaaS delivery

model vendors like us who implement SaaS-based technology solutions

benefit as well As an on-demand provider we centralize our proprietary

software and hardware infrastructure in distributed fashion around the

world The result is that upgrades maintenance customization and other

required tasks are easier and more cost effective to implement than traditional

client-hosted and installed solutions By leveraging number of clients

across shared technology infrastructure we believe that we can achieve

economies of scale more rapidly which enables us to provide our services

at lower total cost of ownership than many premise-based alternatives

We believe our enterprise customers can automate their manual and paper-

based business processes or create new and better ways of doing business

by utilizing the solutions and applications we offer on the PGiCOS

By streamlining and improving wide array of critical daily business

processes we believe that we can help customers improve their productivity

and business efficiencies thereby offering high value and delivering mean

ingful returns on investment

PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES



We believe that the magnitude of business processes that can be improved

through the application of communication technologies that we offer is large

and under-penetrated providing us significant future growth opportunities

We engaged The JAAG Group an advisory and consulting services firm

to conduct survey to assess the market opportunity for our solutions in

January 2008 in which they estimated the global market opportunity for our

solutions to be nearly $10 billion in 2008 growing to nearly $17 biliion in

2012 As we continue to extend the capabilities of our PGiCOS solutions and

applications we believe we can increase our addressable market opportunity

SoLution Sets and Business Applications

We offer full suite of business applications that we believe provides us

competitive advantage when compared to single product vendors which

are majority of our competitors Our strategy is to continue to develop new

communication technologies-based business applications that meet the

specific requirements of customers within targeted industries

Our PGiCOS applications are grouped into the four solution sets listed below

PGiMeet

Formerly known as Conferencing Collaboration Solutions

Our PGiMeet conferencing collaboration solutions include full-suite

of traditional and voice over Internet protocol-based or VoIP audio

conferencing and web collaboration services for all forms of group meetings

from large events such as investor relations calls and training sessions to

smaller meetings such as sales planning calis and project team meetings

PGiMeet services include automated reservationless conferencing global

reservationless conferencing with approximately 90 local access points

operator-assisted event conferencing and web collaboration

few examples of our many PGiMeet applications include

Project meetings

Employee training

Sales pitches

Investor presentations and

Product launches

PGiSend

Formerly known as Document Solutions

Our PGiSend fax and document delivery solutions integrate reliable IP fax

technology with powerful features like PDF optical character recognition

to provide secure digital alternative for sending receiving editing and

storing important documents Users can send and receive faxes using their

computer and existing e-mail account with no additional hardware or soft

ware required and using unique mobile capabilities that allow users to fax

or print any document on any fax machine at anytime Paper documents

can be converted into electronic assets that can be distributed securely

across the enterprise archived remotely and accessed through an existing

e-mail account or web interface

few examples of our many PGiSend applications include

Invoice processing

eStatements

Contact management

Employee verifications

Claims processing and

Delivery confirmations

PGiNotify

Formerly known as Notifications Reminders Solutions

Our PGiNotify solutions enable clear and compelling notifications and

reminders between businesses and their constituents delivered via

automated speech e-mail fax and SMS technologies Our enterprise

customers can select the best delivery method based on message content

urgency required recipient action and recipient preferences Our suite of

hosted PGiNotify applications provides customizable features including

recipient authentication personalized messages with text-to-speech

capabilities hot key transfer for interactive messaging data collection

and real-time online summary reports

few examples of our many PGiNotify applications include

Travel confirmations

Appointment reminders

Delivery reminders

Fraud alerts

Prescription reminders and

Accounts receivable management

PGiMarket

Formerly known as eMarketing Solutions

Our PGiMarket eMarketing solutions employ real-time event and customer

data to create highly-relevant personalized e-mail marketing campaigns that

we believe result in increased response rates improved customer relation

ships and higher sales for our enterprise customers Our full suite of e-mail

campaign management tools and intuitive user interface combined with our

strategic expertise empower both aspiring and sophisticated eMarketers to

reach the right customers at the right time with the right message

few examples of our many PGiMarket applications include

eNewsletters

Customer loyalty programs

Customer re-activation

Promotional offers

Electronic coupons

Lead generation and

Lifecycle relationship programs

Our Integration Model PGiConnect

Given our experience integrating and deploying accounts for large enter

prises we identified the need to streamline and better support customer

integrations and application development In 2008 we re-launched an

online developer community at www.PGiConnect.com that allows develop

ers partners and customers to access the PGi Communications Operating

System solutions and applications via an open-source standards-based

API PGiConnect facilitates the sharing of knowledge in virtual workspace

enabling us to embrace ideation and collaboration using web 2.0 tools

Customers

Nearly 90% of the Fortune 500 including leading technology companies

commercial and investment banks retailers travel and hospitality firms

health care companies and logistics companies utilize our PGiCOS applica

tions to drive efficiencies and enhanced productivity within their businesses

Our customers apply our PGiCOS solutions to simplify automate or improve

their existing business processes or to gain competitive advantage by

creating new and better ways of doing business We are focused on providing

greater customer value by innovating new business applications backboned

by our existing PGiCOS solutions that address the individual needs and

requirements of targeted customer segments

In addition in 2009 we will continue to promote new pricing models for our

solutions that we believe are more consistent with other on-demand provid

including subscription-based licensing and committed revenue contract

models Our sales commission plans are focused on encouraging customer

PREMJERE CLO 3AL SERVCES



adoption of additional PGiCOS solutions and applications as well as annual

or multi-year contracts with minimum commitments Most of our customer

agreements have initial terms of one to three years subject to automatic

renewal unless customer sends notice of non-renewal prior to the end

of an initial or renewal term Customers may generally terminate without

penalty unless their agreement contains minimum revenue commitment

that requires payment by the customer of any unused shortfall amount

upon termination

While our business is generally not seasonal we typically experience lower

levels of sales and usage during periods that have reduced numbers of

working days For example our operating results have historically decreased

during the summer months particularly in our Europe operations as well as

during the Thanksgiving December and New Year holidays We expect our

revenues during these periods will not grow at the same rates as compared

with other periods of the year because of decreased use of our services by

our enterprise customers

Sales and Marketing
To promote domain expertise and greater understanding of our enterprise

customers needs we have segmented our sales professionals according to

our four solutions sets Additionally we have implemented multi-channel

sales approach to promote the transfer and adoption of best practices

Our current channels of distribution include global strategic corporate

accounts small and medium businesses indirect partners and web sales

We sell directly to customers through our approximately 830 sales and

marketing professionals worldwide

We sell indirectly through distribution partners including agents and

resellers

We actively pursue strategic partners to integrate and resell our services

with their own and

We employ web-based marketing and direct telesales to generate

increased activity for our sales channels

As service organization our customer service teams play major role in

managing customer relationships as well as selling additional value-added

services to existing accounts We currently employ approximately 900

customer service professionals deployed in local markets around the world

Research and Development
We believe that designing developing testing deploying and supporting

innovative technology for service enhancements in timely manner is

an important contributor to our continued success By innovating new

services and enhancements to existing services we can better meet our

enterprise customers needs differentiate and position ourselves in larger

market segments

For example in September 2008 we re-launched our developer community

www.PGiConnect.com to provide on-demand access and support to our

services over the web In 2008 we also upgraded and rolled out new product

applications and enhancements in each of our solution sets including signif

icant enhancements to our Netspoke Online Meeting product and new ver

sion of Campaign Accelerator which is within our PGiMarket applications

We devote significant resources to the innovation and development of new

services enhancements to existing services and to our web site We employ

more than 150 research and development professionals including overseas

development teams Our research and development costs for 2008 2007 and

2006 were $16.9 million $14.1 million and $12.1 million respectively

Competition

We believe the combination of communication technologies-based solutions

supported by the PGiCOS is unique to the industry and that our broad range

of business process solutions and applications provide us with an advantage

over many of our competitors that have more limited service offerings In

addition our global reach allows us to pursue contract opportunities with

multinational enterprises providing an advantage over competitors that only

focus on limited geographies

While we are unaware of any single competitor that provides all of the

services we deliver we compete with range of companies in each of

our four solution sets as well as with internally developed solutions for

companies who choose to insource these needs The markets for each of

our solutions sets are highly competitive rapidly evolving and subject to

changing technology shifting customer needs and introductions of new

products and services

In our PGiMeet solutions we compete with major telecommunications

service providers around the world such as ATT Inc Verizon

Communications Inc Global Crossing Limited and international public

telephone companies such as BT Group plc Additionally we compete

with independent conferencing service providers like West Corporation

ACT Teleconferencing Inc Westell Technologies Inc and Arkadin Inc

We also compete with traditional and IP-based equipment manufacturers

business suite software providers and application service providers such

as Cisco Systems Inc Microsoft Corp IBM Corporation Adobe Systems

Incorporated Oracle Corporation Saba Software Inc and Citrix Systems

Inc which offer applications that enable web collaboration These providers

may attempt to leverage their dominant market positions through additional

technical integration or bundled offerings to further expand their presences

in the conferencing and collaboration market In addition we have entered

into distribution and reseller arrangements with companies including some

of the companies listed above that offer competitive conferencing and

collaboration services that could choose to increase their emphasis on

offerings competitive to us cease to offer some or all of their services or

our services or both For example Cisco Systems offers web collaboration

functionality within its WebEx suite of products and Microsoft offers

Microsoft Office Live Meeting and web collaboration functionality in its

Microsoft Office Communicator 2007 version

In our PGiSend solutions we compete with companies like Protus IP

Solutions EasyLink Services International Corporation and j2 Global

Communications Inc Additionally we compete with range of equipment

and software providers that enable enterprises to address these require

ments internally In our PGiNotify solutions our competition includes

West Corporation Varolii Corporation SoundBite Communications Inc

and Adeptra Limited In our PGiMarket solutions we compete with Alliance

Data Systems Corporation and Acxiom Corporation as well as number

of smaller companies including Responsys Inc Silverpop Systems Inc

ExactTarget Inc and Constant Contact Inc

Suppliers

We purchase telecommunications services pursuant to supply agreements

with telecommunications service providers Some of our agreements with

telecommunications service providers contain commitments that require us

to purchase minimum amount of services through 2011 We expect these

costs to be approximately $37.8 million $21.0 million and $3.6 million in

2009 2010 and 2011 respectively
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Government ReguLation

Federal state local and international laws regulating the provision of

traditional telecommunications services may adversely impact our business

We believe that we operate as non-common-carrier provider of unregu

lated enhanced information services Consequently we do not believe that

we are subject to all Federal Communications Commission or FCC or state

public utility commission regulations applicable to providers of traditional

telecommunications services in the United States We are subject to certain

regulations imposed by the FCC and by international telecommunications

regulatory authorities however and we may be affected by regulatory

decisions trends or policies issued or implemented by federal state local

or international telecommunications regulatory authorities

In addition international federal and state authorities may conclude

that our services are subject to additional regulations and requirements

applicable to providers of traditional telecommunications services On June

30 2008 the FCC issued an order ruling that audio conferencing providers

are providers of telecommunications who must contribute to the federal

Universal Service Fund or USE Because it previously was unclear whether

audio conferencing providers were required to contribute to the USF the

FCC order requires prospective contributions only On July17 2008 the FCC

issued public notice stating that all audio conferencing providers must file

Form 499-0 by August 2008 reporting projected revenues for the fourth

quarter of 2008 and begin contributing to the USF in October 2008 In accor

dance with the FCC public notice we filed Form 499-Q on August 2008

reporting projected revenues for the fourth quarter of 2008 In compliance

with the FCCs order we have also commenced making contributions to USF

and in compliance with the FCCs rules we have begun recovering those

contributions from applicable PGiMeet customers Several providers of audio

conferencing services have filed petitions requesting reconsideration of all

or portions of the FCCs order which are currently pending Although we use

reasonable efforts to monitor applicable regulatory requirements if we fail

to comply with any applicable regulations or if we were required to submit

to the jurisdiction of state government authorities as providers of traditional

telecommunications services we could become subject to additional report

ing and compliance obligations and/or could be subject to litigation fines

forfeitures regulatory surcharge remittance requirements or other penalties

arising from any non-compliance

There is regulatory uncertainty as to the imposition of certain traditional

common carrier regulations on IP-enabled services which we use with

respect to the delivery of certain of our service offerings The regulatory

status of certain kinds of IP-enabled services is still under review by federal

and state regulatory authorities and the courts and the FCC and state public

utility commissions are conducting regulatory proceedings that could affect

the regulation of such services The adoption of or changes in such telecom

munications laws and regulations could increase the costs of communicating

over IP-based networks and may affect the available delivery methods for

and costs associated with our services as well as the growth of networks that

handle IP-based communications Regulatory authorities may seek to regu

late aspects of our services under new regulations on IP-enabled services

which would require us to comply with laws and regulations that currently

are not applicable to us and could adversely affect our business

International federal and state laws regulate telemarketing practices and

may adversely impact our business and the businesses of our customers and

potential customers The FCC promulgated rules in 1992 to implement the

federal Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991 or TCPA These rules

among others regulate telemarketing methods and activities including

the use of pre-recorded messages the time of day when telemarketing calls

may be made maintenance of company-specific do not call databases and

restrictions on unsolicited fax advertising

In 2003 the FCC amended its rules under the TCPA The FCC retained an

exemption from liability for sending unsolicited commercial fax advertisements

for fax broadcast providers that solely transmit such advertisements on behalf of

others However the FCC ordered that sender may fax unsolicited commercial

advertisements only to those from whom the sender has received prior express

consent in writing The 2003 rule amendments modified the FCCs prior policy

which permitted such faxes when an established business relationship or EBR

existed between the sender of commercial unsolicited fax advertisement and

the recipient Several parties challenged these rules and the FCC delayed the

requirement to have prior written consent and the deletion of the EBR exemption

In July 2005 Congress passed the Junk Fax Prevention Act of 2005 or JFPA

amending the TCPA to expressly allow fax advertisements to be sent to persons

or entities with whom sender has an EBR with certain exceptions This

amendment essentially nullified the FCCs 2003 revocation of the EBR exemption

The JFPA also imposed new notice language for fax advertisements and mandated

an opt-out mechanism The FCC issued rules implementing these amendments in

April 2006 which became effective in August 2006 However the FCC may revise

its rules and may impose time limitation on the EBR exception Despite the

passage of the JFPA the notice requirements and potential time limits on the

EBR exemption combined with the regulatory uncertainty resulting from the 2003

FCC rulings and associated litigation may have discouraged and may continue

to distourage use by some of our customers of our broadcast fax services

Fax broadcast providers such as us generally are not liable for their customers

violations of the TCPA although fax broadcast providers who have high degree

of involvement in their customers fax advertisements or actual knowledge

of customers violation of the TCPA maybe held liable under certain circum

stances under the TCPA Although we have conducted our operations to meet

the fax broadcaster provider exemption third parties may seek to challenge

this exemption

In addition we maybe subject to state laws and regulations regulating the

unsolicited transmission of faxes For example in October 2005 the state of

California passed law purporting to regulate intrastate and interstate fax

advertisements that did not contain an EBR exemption Together with the U.S

Chamber of Commerce we challenged this law in federal district court in

California with the court ruling that Californias regulation of interstate fax

transmissions was impermissible

The FCC along with the Federal Trade Commission or FTC has also instituted

national do not call registry for residential and wireless telephone numbers

Telemarketers making telephonic solicitations are barred from calling consum

ers who register their telephone numbers in the national database with certain

exceptions New legislation was recently enacted that deletes the requirement

that consumers re-register every five years Numbers will remain on the list unless

the consumer affirmatively removes number or the number is deleted from the

database in monthly administrative updates such as in the case of an abandoned

number In summary with certain exceptions telemarketers are required to

access the list before engaging in telemarketing in any particular area code As

service provider to companies that engage in telemarketing we subscribe to the

federal do not call registry Although we believe we have taken the necessary

steps to ensure compliance with the do not call registry and other rule amend

ments regulators or third parties could seek to challenge our compliance with the

federal do not call registry federal telemarketing laws and FCC and FTC rules

In October 2006 the FTC proposed to bar pre-recorded telemarketing calls except

in instances of prior express consent The FCC generaliy permits pre-recorded

telemarketing calls where there is either an EBR or prior express consent The

FTC initiated rulemaking proceeding and took public comments on its proposed

restrictions on pre-recorded telemarketing calls In August 2008 the FTC adopted

new rules on pre-recorded telemarketing calls Effective September 2009 these

new FTC rules prohibit pre-recorded telemarketing calls except in instances of
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written prior express consent The rules also imposed certain other require

ments as of December 2008 for permitted pre-recorded telemarketing

calls including providing an interactive or keypress opt-out mechanism for

recipients to select to be added to an entity-specific do not call list These

new FTC rules could impact customer use of our broadcast voice services to

the extent customer sought to use these services for marketing messages

distinct from informational transactional or other messages exempt under

the FTCs rules

In addition to the federal legislation and regulations numerous state laws

and regulations govern telemarketing activities including state do not

call list requirements and state registration and bonding requirements

For instance certain states regulate or restrict pre-recorded telemarketing

and other messages and certain states may restrict or make political calls

subject to do not call and other requirements although such calls are

exempt from the federal do not call requirements

Federal legislation known as the Can Spam law regulates unsolicited com

mercial e-mails or spam The Can Spam law requires unsolicited e-mail

marketing messages to have valid postal address E-mail marketers may

not use false or misleading headers or deceptive subject lines must identify

commercial e-mail and are also required to remove customers from their

e-mailing lists if requested The Can Spam law allows the FTC to impose fines

and gives states the power to bring lawsuits Internet service providers may

also bring suit under the Can Spam law The Can Spam law also preempts

state laws in many respects although it allows states to continue to regulate

deceptive e-mails number of states have adopted laws restricting and

or governing the distribution of unsolicited e-mails Several states have

adopted child protection registry laws that generally prohibit certain com

munications such as e-mails phone fax or instant messages to registered

contact points accessible by children as submitted by parents and guardians

when the content of the message includes an advertisement for or link to

content products or services that are restricted to minors due to their age

Schools and other child-focused organizations may also submit domain

names Other states are considering similar legislation These laws are sub

ject to some opposition by certain industry groups and companies and the

FTC has noted certain concerns about security and privacy risks inherent in

such do not e-mail registries We provide services for our customers to dis

tribute e-mails including e-mails that may be subject to these laws The Can

Spam requirements apply to senders of e-mail messages but do not apply to

entities who engage in routine conveyance of e-mail messages such as the

transmission routing or relaying through an automatic technical process

e-mails for which another person has identified the recipients or provided

the recipient addresses We believe that our PGiMarket solutions where

customers use our automated service to send e-mails to recipient addresses

designated by these customers fall within Can Spams routine conveyance

exemption We have implemented procedures that we believe comply with

our obligations under the law Although we have policy that prohibits the

use of our services to send spam and require our customers to comply with

all laws and regulations pertaining to spam but we can offer no assurance

that we are immune to litigation or enforcement actions alleging violation

of applicable federal and state laws

We monitor applicable federal and state laws and regulations have compli

ance policies in place regarding such laws and regulations and our service

agreements with customers generally state that our customers are responsible

for their compliance with all applicable laws and regulations We could

nevertheless be subject to litigation by private parties and governmental bodies

including governmental enforcement actions alleging violation of such laws

or regulations which could result in damages regulatory fines penalties

and possible other relief under such laws and regulations and the accompa

nying costs and uncertainties of such litigation and enforcement actions

number of legislative and regulatory proposals are under consideration by

federal and state lawmakers and regulatory bodies and maybe adopted with

respect to the Internet Some of the issues that such laws or regulations may

cover include user privacy obscenity fraud pricing and characteristics and

quality of products and services The adoption of any such laws or regula

tions may decrease the growth of e-commerce which could in turn decrease

the projected demand for our web-based services or increase our costs

of doing business Moreover the applicability to the Internet of existing

U.S and international laws governing issues such as property ownership

copyright trade secret libel taxation and personal privacy is uncertain and

developing Any new legislation or regulation or application or interpreta

tion of existing laws could have material adverse effect on our business

financial condition and results of operations

Congress the states or various government agencies could impose new

or additional requirements on the electronic commerce market or entities

operating therein If enacted such laws rules and regulations could be

imposed on our business and industry which could have material adverse

effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

In addition our international activities also are subject to regulation by

various international authorities which includes the inherent risk of

unexpected changes in such regulation For example individual countries

within the European Union have specific regulations related to sending

personal information from one country to another The EU member states

adopted safe harbor arrangement that provides that U.S organizations can

adopt procedures that comply with European privacy regulations and can

certify their compliance through notice to the U.S Department of Commerce

Participation in the safe harbor is voluntary and indicates that the organiza

tion provides an adequate level of privacy protection and qualifies the

company to receive data from EU member states U.S companies that avail

themselves of the safe harbor arrangement are subject to oversight and

possible enforcement actions by the FTC if they do not comply with the

provisions of their certification Our subsidiaries Xpedite Systems LLC and

American Teleconferencing Services Ltd have certified compliance with

the EU safe harbor through the U.S Department of Commerce In addition

the European Privacy and Communications Directive imposes restrictions

on sending unsolicited communications to individuals via automatic calling

machines fax e-mail and SMS messages Generally companies are required

to obtain prior explicit or opt-in consent before they can contact users via

this type of marketing

Other foreign legislation could also have an impact on our services Because

our services are accessible worldwide over the web foreign jurisdictions

may claim that we are required to comply with their laws For example in

Canada the Personal Information and Electronic Documents Act or PIEDA

similarly regulates the collection and use of personal data and applies broadly

to U.S companies that conduct commercial activities in Canada As we

continue to expand and localize our international activities we may become

obligated to comply with the laws of additional jurisdictions which may be

more stringent or impose more significant burdens on businesses than those

in the United States Compliance in foreign jurisdictions may be more costly

or may require us to change or restrict our business practices or service

offerings relative to those in the United States

Proprietary Rights and Technology

Our ability to compete is dependent in part upon our proprietary rights

and technology We currently have eight issued U.S patents and 19 pending

U.S patent applications as well as one issued international patent and six

pending international patent applications Our patents and patent applica

tions relate to our fax distribution document generation and delivery audio

and web conferencing and mobile solutions We own and use number of
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federally registered trademarks and pending applications for trade

marks including Premiere Global Services Design PGI Design

PGiConnect Powered by Premiere Design Auditorium Fax2Mail

Stylized faxREACH GlobalMeet iMeet Intellisend Irgent

messageREACH Netspoke Design ReadyCast ReadyConference

ReadyConference Plus SaveOnConferences.com Soundpath

smsREACH VisionCast and voiceREACH We own applications and

registrations for many of these and other trademarks and service marks in

the United States and in other countries We rely primarily on combination

of intellectual property laws and contractual provisions to protect our

proprietary rights and technology These laws and contractual provisions

provide only limited protection of our proprietary rights and technology

which include confidential information and trade secrets that we attempt

to protect through confidentiality and nondisclosure provisions in our

agreements We typically attempt to protect our confidential information

and trade secrets through these contractual provisions for the terms of the

applicable agreement and to the extent permitted by applicable law for

some negotiated period of time following termination of the agreement

Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights and technology third

parties may misappropriate our proprietary rights or technology or indepen

dently develop technologies that are similar or superior to our technology

Available Information

Our web site is www.premiereglobal.com Except as explicitly noted the

information on our web site is not incorporated by reference in this annual

report on Form io-K or in any information furnished or submitted to the

SEC We make available free of charge through our web site our annual

report on Form io-K quarterly reports on Form io-Q current reports on

Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to

Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

as soon as practicable after such material is electronically filed with or

furnished to the SEC Follow the Investor Relations tab to SEC Filings

to access these filings

Employees
As of December 31 2008 we employed approximately 2650 people worldwide

Our employees are not represented by labor union or covered by any collec

tive bargaining agreements We consider our employee relations to be good

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Risks Relating to Our Industry

The markets for our services are intensely competitive and we may not

be able to compete successfully against existing and future competitors

and as result we may not be able to maintain or increase our market

share and revenues

The markets for our services are intensely competitive and we expect

competition to increase in the future For information regarding the markets

in which we compete see BusinessCompetition Many of our current

and potential competitors such as major telecommunications equipment

software and application service providers have longer operating histories

greater name recognition more robust service offerings more comprehen

sive support organizations larger customer bases and substantially greater

financial personnel marketing engineering technical and other resources

than we do As result our competitors maybe able to respond more quickly

than we can to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer

demands They may also be able to devote greater resources than we can to

the development promotion and sale of their products and services We be

lieve that our current competitors are likely to expand their service offerings

and new competitors are likely to enter our markets Some of our existing

and potential competitors may enter into or expand their positions in the

markets in which we compete through acquisitions strategic alliances and

the development of integrated service offerings For example West acquired

Televox Software and CenterPost Communications in the automated notifica

tions space as well as several conferencing services providers including

Genesys Raindance Communications Inc InterCall ConferenceCall.com

ECI Conference Call Services LLC and Sprint Nextel Corporations conferenc

ing division Cisco Systems acquired WebEx Communications to augment its

premises-based conferencing offerings and Microsoft acquired PlaceWare

Inc and integrated PlaceWares services into its suite of Office series of appli

cations Also we compete with companies with whom we also have distribu

tion relationships or with whom we resell certain of their services Increased

competition could result in price pressure on our products and services and

decrease in our market share in the various markets in which we compete

either of which could hinder our ability to grow our revenues

Technological changes and the development of alternatives to our

services may cause us to lose customers and market share and may

hinder our ability to maintain or grow our revenues

The market for our services is characterized by rapid technological change

frequent new service introductions and evolving industry standards We

expect new services and enhancements to existing services to be developed

and introduced that will compete with our services Technological advances

may result in the development and commercial availability of alternatives

to or new methods of delivering our services and pricing options that could

be more attractive to our customers These developments could cause our

existing services to become obsolete result in significant pricing pressure on

our services or allow our existing and potential customers to meet their own

business communications needs without using our services For example

if customers more rapidly adopt IP-based conferencing services or IP-based

PBX systems and we are unable to provide those services or reasonable

alternative our results of operations could be adversely affected Because

we do not typically have long-term or exclusive contractual agreements with

our customers and many of our larger enterprise customers allocate their

business among several providers any of these developments could result

in significant customer loss

We must continually introduce new services and enhancements to existing

services in response to technological changes evolving industry standards

and customer demands Our ability to successfully develop and market new

such services and enhancements depends in part on our ability to

foresee changes in industry standards

anticipate and apply advances in technologies

enhance our software applications equipment systems and networks

and

attract and retain qualified and creative technical personnel

Our new services and enhancements may not be as successful as our

competitors solutions If this is the case we will not be able to gain market

share and increase our revenues if we are unable to develop new services

or if we experience delays in the introduction of new services

We are subject to pri cing pressures for our services which could cause us

to lose market share and decrease revenues and profitability

We compete for customers based on several factors including price

decrease in the rates charged for services by our competitors could cause

us to reduce the rates we charge for our services If we cannot compete based

on price we may lose market share If we reduce our rates without increasing

our volume or our market share our revenues could decrease For example

in the past three years increased competition and decreased demand for

our legacy broadcast fax services resulted in decrease in revenue from

these services We expect revenue from broadcast fax services to continue

to decline in the future We have also experienced declines in the average
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selling price per minute of services across our solution sets including within

our PGiMeet solutions which we currently expect to continue In some cases

our competitors may offer their services at reduced rates or free on trial

basis in order to win customers In addition telecommunications service

providers may have lower telecommunications costs as result of their own

ership of the underlying telecommunications network and can offer services

similar to ours at reduced rates as result Due to competitive factors and the

rapidly changing marketplace for our services we have reduced our pricing

in certain circumstances and expect we may be required to further reduce

our pricing in the future Further an increase in our rates or reduction in

our rates without proportionate decrease in our associated costs of could

have material adverse effect on our results of operations

Risks Relating to Our Business

Recent global economic trends could adversely affect our business

and financial results

As widely reported the recent disruption in the global financial markets

including severely diminished liquidity and credit availability have

significantly adversely impacted global economic conditions These

difficult economic conditions could adversely affect our business and

results of operations primarily though our access to credit and the toll

these conditions may take on our customers These conditions have resulted

in substantial tightening of the credit markets including lending by

financial institutions which is our source for borrowing and liquidity

and have increased the cost of capital and reduced the availability of credit

We cannot offer any assurance that the financial institutions syndicated

under our credit facility will be able to fulfill their commitments in the

future which could have material adverse impact on our business In

addition these weakening economic and credit conditions and outlook may

adversely affect our customers level of spending ability to obtain financing

for purchases and ability to make timely payments to us for our services

which could require us to increase our allowance for doubtful accounts

negatively impact our days sales outstanding and adversely affect our results

of operations These conditions may also force some of our customers

such as customers in the financial services or other industries to announce

layoffs consolidate or declare bankruptcy which could decrease the market

for our services

Ourfuture success depends on market acceptance of our new services

Market acceptance of our new services often requires that individuals and

enterprises accept new ways of communicating and exchanging information

Our growth depends on the successful development and introduction of new

services and enhancements to our existing services For example in 2008

we extended open interfaces for our on-demand communication platform

and created an online developer community to support the development

of new applications by third parties independent developers and custom

ers In addition we recently announced our intention to launch virtual

meeting platform this year failure to achieve broad market acceptance of

or decline in the demand for our new services or web site could hinder our

ability to maintain and increase our revenues We believe that broad market

acceptance of our new services and web site will depend on several factors

including

ease of use

price

reliability

accessibility to our services

quality of service

system security

product functionality and

the effectiveness of our strategic marketing and sales efforts and

distribution relationships

If we do not meet these challenges our new services may not achieve broad

market acceptance or market acceptance may not occur quickly enough to

justify our investment in these services

If we cannot successfully integrate new technologies services and sys

tents we may not generate sufficient revenues and operational synergies

may not develop

We continuously integrate new technologies service offerings and systems

We have experienced and may continue to experience difficulty integrating

new technologies into our networks For example in 2008 we enhanced

some of our least cost routing processes in order to reduce delivery costs

These enhancements however could result in outages which may impact

our revenues and customer retention and we may not be able to realize the

cost savings associated with these enhancements If we cannot successfully

integrate new technologies services and systems we may not generate

sufficient revenues and operational synergies may not develop

Concerns rega rding security of transactions and transmitting

confidential information over the Internet and public networks may have

an adverse impact on the use of our web-enabled services

We must securely receive and transmit confidential information for our

customers over the Internet and public networks Concerns regarding the

security of confidential information transmitted over the Internet and public

networks may prevent customers from using our web-based services Despite

the measures we have taken our infrastructure is potentially vulnerable to

physical or electronic break-ins viruses or similar problems If someone is

able to circumvent our security measures they could misappropriate propri

etary information or cause interruption in our operations Security breaches

that result in access to confidential information could damage our reputa

tion and expose us to risk of loss or liability We maybe required to make

additional significant investments in efforts to protect against and remedy

these types of security breaches As electronic commerce becomes more

widespread our customers will become more concerned about security

In addition some of our customers are subject to varying degrees of govern

ment regulation particularly in the insurance and financial services indus

tries Increased interest in data privacy protections and information security

obligations could impose additional regulatory pressures on our customers

businesses and indirectly on our operations If we are unable to adequately

address these concerns our business and results of operations could suffer

Technological obsolescence of our equipment could result in

substantial capital expenditures

Technological advances may result in the development of new equipment

and changing industry standards which could cause our equipment to

become obsolete These events could require us to invest significant capital

in upgrading or replacing our equipment For example we are continuing

our efforts to introduce IP-based equipment into our services and may need

to increase our number of IP-based ports and discontinue use of some of

our traditional telecommunications-based ports if adoption of VoIP is more

rapid than expected

If we fail to increase our network capacity to meet customer demands

the quality of our service offerings may suffer

As network usage grows we will need to add capacity to our hardware

software and facilities with telecommunications equipment that routes

telephone calls We continuously attempt to predict growth in our network

usage and add capacity accordingly If we do not accurately predict and

efficiently manage growth in our network usage the quality of our service

offerings may suffer and we may lose customers For example during 2008

we experienced challenges associated with international access points

relating to our GlobalMeet service particularly given longer lead time

in procuring numbers from international carriers In addition we are
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continuing to upgrade our network infrastructure to handle the new data

volumes associated with this VoIP-based traffic

Downtime in our network infrastructure could result in the loss

of signifi cant customers and revenues

We currently maintain facilities with telecommunications equipment that

routes telephone calls and computer telephony equipment in locations

throughout the world The delivery of our services is dependent in part

upon our ability to protect the equipment and data at our facilities against

damage that maybe caused by fire power loss technical failures unauthor

ized intrusion natural disasters sabotage and other similar events Despite

taking variety of precautions we have experienced downtime in our

networks from time to time due to service or network outages and periodic

system upgrades and we may experience downtime in the future For

example in 2008 we continued to migrate to third party co-location facilities

in order to better service our expanding infrastructure demands As result

we may experience configuration demands with these co-location facilities

that could impact our service quality We believe that we take substantial

precautions to protect ourselves and our customers from events that could

interrupt delivery of our services Tbese precautions include physical security

systems uninterruptible power supplies on-site power generators upgraded

back-up hardware fire protection systems and other contingency plans

In addition some of our networks are designed so that the data on each

network server is duplicated on separate network server Despite these

precautions however service interruptions could result in the loss of signifi

cant customers which could cause us to lose revenues We also maintain

business interruption insurance providing for aggregate coverage of

approximately $84.0 million per policy year We may not be able to maintain

insurance for this risk in tbe future or it may not continue to be available at

reasonable prices Even if we maintain insurance for this risk it may not be

sufficient to compensate us for losses that we experience due to our inability

to provide services to our customers

Interruption in third party services that we use could result in

service delays and disruptions and loss of signifi cant customers

and revenues

Our ability to maintain and expand our business depends in part on our

ability to continue to obtain telecommunications financial systems hosting

services and web-based services on favorable terms from traditional and

IP-based long distance telecommunications service providers local exchange

carriers financial systems hosting providers and Internet service providers

We do not own telecommunications or IP-based network and host

significant portion of our financial systems As result we depend on

variety of third party providers for traditional and IP-based telecommunica

dons services web conferencing services call origination and termination

local transmission Internet access and financial systems We have

experienced delays and disruptions in our services in the past due to service

interruptions from telecommunications service providers For example

we have experienced interruptions in service as result of our underlying

carriers network outages and as result of increased traffic volumes In

addition the insolvency of any of these service providers could temporarily

interrupt our ability to bill our customers make payments to our vendors

and delay our ability to report our financial results Any interruptions in

tbe delivery of our services due to third party outages could result in loss

of significant customers and revenues

Continued weakness in our legacy broad cast fax services may

negatively impact our financial perfonnance

We have experienced declines in revenue from our legacy broadcast fax

services and expect continued declines in the future Our future success is

dependent in part upon our ability to transition our broadcast fax customers

to our newer technologies such as e-mail and voice delivery services

For example in order to generate more predictable broadcast fax revenue

we are continuing our efforts to transition these customers into minimum

commitment contracts or subscription-based service plans While the rate

of decline in revenue from these services has slowed in recent quarters

we continue to expect continued legacy broadcast fax services revenue

declines in the future

Our inability to efficientiy utilize or re-negotiate minimum purchase

requirements in our telecommunications supply agreements or to

avoid or recover telecommunications cost increases could decrease

our profitability

Our ability to maintain and expand our business depends in part on our

ability to continue to obtain and/or purchase telecommunications services on

favorable terms from telecommunications service providers During 2008 we

successfully re-negotiated many of our purchase contracts The total amount

of our minimum purchase requirements in 2008 was approximately $18.7 mil

lion and we incurred telecommunications costs in excess of these minimums

Agreements with some of our telecommunications service providers contain

minimum purchase requirements through 2011 These commitments total

approximately $62.4 million with annual costs of approximately $37.8 million

$21.0 million and $3.6 million in 2009 2010 and 2011 respectively In addition

certain circuits that we purchase are subject to term requirements including

penalties for early termination of such circuits Other telecommunications

suppliers may provide similar services at lower prices and we may not be able

to re-negotiate our current supply agreements to achieve comparable lower

rates In addition our telecommunications service providers may be subject

to federal state local and international laws regulating the provision of their

telecommunications services Such telecommunications laws and regulations

could change in manner requiring our providers to incur additional costs

that may be passed on to us as their customer and thereby increase our costs

in purchasing such telecommunications services Such additional costs may

require us to increase the prices for our services to our customers We can give

no assurance that we wili be able to utilize the minimum amount of services

that we are required to purchase under our telecommunications supply

agreements Moreover if we are unable to obtain and/or purchase telecom

munications services on favorable terms if we are required to purchase more

services than we are able to utilize in the operation of our business or if we

are not able to recover all or part of any increased costs resulting from such

regulatory changes the costs of providing our services would likely increase

which could decrease our profitability and have material adverse effect on

our business financial condition and results of operations

Our level of indebtedness may harm our financial condition and

results of operations

We have incurred indebtedness under our credit facility
As of December 31

2008 we have utilized approximately $267.4 million of our credit facility with

approximately $266.2 million in borrowings and $1.2 million in letters of credit

outstanding In December 2007 we increased our credit
facility capacity to

$325.0 million and in January2008 we further increased it to $375.0 million

all under an accordion feature From time to time we enter into interest rate

swaps to reduce our exposure to market risk from changes in interest rates on

interest payments associated with our credit facility As of December 31 2008

we had two $ioo.o million interest rate swaps one of which is for two-year

period beginning in August 2007 at fixed rate of approximately 4.99% and

one of which is for three-year period beginning in August 2007 with fixed

rate of approximately 4.75%

Our level of indebtedness will have several important effects on our future

operations including without limitation

portion of our cash flows from operations will be dedicated to the

payment of any interest or amortization required with respect to

outstanding indebtedness
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increases in our outstanding indebtedness and leverage will increase

our vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic and industry

conditions as well as to competitive pressure

depending on the levels of our outstanding debt our ability to obtain

additional financing for working capital acquisitions capital

expenditures general corporate and other purposes may be limited and

recent credit market events and the subsequent tightening of the avail

ability of capital both from financial institutions and the debt markets

may have an adverse affect on our ability to access additional capital

At the maturity of our credit
facility

in April2011 or in the event of an

acceleration of the indebtedness under the credit facility following an event

of default the entire outstanding principal amount of the indebtedness

under the
facility together with all other amounts payable thereunder from

time to time will become due and payable It is possible that we may not

have sufficient funds to pay such obligations in full at maturity or upon

such acceleration Given the current uncertainty in the credit and financial

markets we may not be able to extend the tenure of our existing credit

facility when it matures or enter into new credit facility on substantially

similar terms or otherwise on terms acceptable to us which may affect our

future results of operations If we default and are not able to pay any such

obligations due our lenders have liens on substantially all of our assets and

could foreclose on our assets in order to satisfy our obligations

Our dependence on our subsidiaries for cash flow may negatively affect

our business and our ability to meet our debt service obligations

We conduct substantially all of our business through our subsidiaries

Our ability to pay amounts due under our indebtedness in the future will

be dependent upon the ability of our subsidiaries to make cash distributions

of earnings loans or other payments to us based on their earnings and cash

flows Our subsidiaries may not have sufficient funds or may not be able

to distribute sufficient funds to us to enable us to service or repay such

indebtedness

Our financial performance could cause future write-downs of goodwill or

other intangible assets in future periods

We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards or SPAS No 142

Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets or SPAS No 142

effective January 2002 With the adoption of SFAS No 142 we ceased

amortizing approximately $123.1 million of goodwill In lieu of amortization

we are required to perform an annual impairment review which could result

in impairment write-downs to goodwill and/or other intangible assets As of

December 31 2008 we had $yi.o million of goodwill and $32.1 million of

other intangible assets reflected on our financial statements for which amor

tization will continue During 2008 we determined that intangible assets

with net book value of approximately $1.9 million were impaired We wrote

off the related assets and recorded the net book value as asset impairment

during the year ended December 31 2008

We may be subject to assessment of income state sales and other taxes

for which we have not accrued

We have reserves for certain state sales and excise tax contingencies based

on the likelihood of obligation in accordance with SPAS No Accounting

for Contingencies or SPAS No.5 Historically we have collected and remit

ted state sales tax from our non-PGiMeet customers in applicable states but

have not collected and remitted state sales tax from our PGiMeet customers

in all applicable jurisdictions In addition we have learned that certain of

our PGiMeet solutions may be subject to telecommunications excise tax

statutes in certain states During the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 we paid $2.8 million and $o.6 million related to the settlement of

certain of these state sales and excise tax contingencies

At December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 we had reserved approximately

$4.6 million and $5.2 million respectively for certain state sales and excise

tax contingencies These amounts are included in Accrued taxes other than

income taxes in our consolidated balance sheets We believe we have ap

propriately accrued for these contingencies In the event that actual results

differ from these reserves we may need to make adjustments which could

materially impact our financial condition and results of operations In addi

tion states may disagree with our method of assessing and remitting such

taxes or additional states may subject us to inquiries regarding such taxes

If our quarterly results do not meet the expectations of public market

analysts and investors our stock price may decrease

Our quarterly revenues are difficult to forecast because the market for our

services is rapidly evolving and our services are primarily usage-based and

event-driven historically without subscription fees or minimum commit

ments Our expense levels are based in part on our expectations as to future

revenues If our revenue levels are below expectations we may be unable

or unwilling to reduce expenses proportionately and our operating results

would likely be adversely affected As result we believe that period-to-

period comparisons of our results of operations are not necessarily mean

ingful and should not be relied upon as indications of future performance

It is possible that our operating results may fail to meet the expectations of

public market analysts and investors in future quarter which will
likely

cause the market price of our common stock to decline

Our operating results have varied significantly in the past and may vary

significantly in the future Specific factors that may cause our future

operating results to vary include

fluctuations in operating expenses

increased competition and pricing pressure

the reliability and performance of our services

the timing of new service announcements

market acceptance of new and enhanced versions of our services

changes in regulations and legislation that may affect the competitive

environment for our services and

general economic and seasonal factors

Our stock has been volatile and we expect that it will continue

to be volatile

Our stock price has been volatile and we expect it will continue to be

volatile For example during the year ended December 31 2008 the closing

price of our common stock ranged from high of $16.90 to low of $5.18

The volatility of our stock price can he due to factors such as

fluctuating operating results

announcements by us or our competitors of significant technological

innovations contracts acquisitions strategic alliances joint ventures

or capital commitments and

changes in security analysts estimates of our performance or our failure

to meet analysts expectations

Many of these factors are beyond our control In addition broad market

and industry factors may negatively impact our stock price regardless of

our operating performance

The performance of our business depends on attracting and retaining

qualified key personnel

Our performance depends on attracting and retaining key personnel

including executive sales and marketing personnel and customer support

product development and other technical personnel Failure to do so could

have material adverse effect on the performance of our business and the

results of our operations
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Our articles and bylaws and Georgia corporate law may inhibit takeover

which may be in the best interests of our shareholders There are several

provisions in our articles and bylaws and under Georgia corporate law that

may inhibit takeover even when takeover may be in the interests of our

shareholders For example our board of directors is empowered to issue

preferred stock without shareholder action The existence of this blank

check preferred stock could render more difficult or discourage an attempt

to obtain control of us by means of tender offer merger proxy contest or

otherwise We are also subject to provisions of the Georgia corporate law

that relate to business combinations with interested shareholders which can

serve to inhibit takeover In addition to considering the effects of any action

on us and our shareholders our articles permit our board to consider the

interests of various constituencies including employees customers suppli

ers creditors communities in which we maintain offices or operations and

other factors which they deem pertinent in carrying out and discharging

their duties and responsibilities and in determining what the board believes

to be in our best interests

Risks Related to Acquisitions

We face risks in connection with completed or potential acquisitions

Our growth has been enhanced through acquisitions of businesses products

and technologies that we believe will complement our business We regularly

evaluate acquisition opportunities frequently engage in acquisition discus

sions conduct due diligence activities in connection with possible acquisi

tions and if appropriate engage in acquisition negotiations We may not be

able to successfully identify suitable acquisition candidates complete acqui

sitions integrate acquired operations into our existing operations or expand

into new markets In addition we compete for acquisitions and expansion

opportunities with companies that have substantially greater resources

and competition with these companies for acquisition targets could result

in increased prices for possible targets Acquisitions also involve numerous

additional risks to us and our investors including

risk in retaining key acquired management employees and acquired

customers

difficulties in the assimilation of the operations services and personnel

of the acquired assets or company

outages of operations infrastructure of acquired businesses prior to

transition to our infrastructure

diversion of our managements attention from other business concerns

assumption of known and unknown or contingent liabilities

adverse financial impact from the amortization of expenses related to

intangible assets

incurrence of indebtedness

potential adverse financial impact from failure of acquisitions to meet

internal revenue and earnings expectations

entry into markets in which we have little or no direct prior experience

and

potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities

If we fail to adequately manage these acquisition risks the acquisitions may

not result in revenue growth operational synergies or service or technol

ogy enhancements which could adversely affect our financial results For

example we have completed the integrations of io acquired companies since

January 2006 and in certain instances we experienced delays in obtaining

cost savings and increases in past due receivables due to delays in integra

tions and technology enhancements required of our infrastructure Acquisi

tions yet to be
fully integrated in accordance with our plans are Soundpath

Conferencing Services LLC EC Teleconferencing Pty Ltd or ECT eNunciate

Corporation Budget Conferencing Inc and Meet24 due to the complexities

related to technology integration including any necessary development

Risks Related to InteLlectuaL Property

We may not be able to protect our proprietary technology and

intellectual property rights which could result in the loss of our rights

or increased costs

We rely primarily on combination of intellectual property laws and contractual

provisions to protect our proprietary rights and technology brands and marks

These laws and contractual provisions provide only limited protection of our

proprietary rights and technology If we are not able to protect our intellectual

property and our proprietary rights and technology we could lose those rights

and incur substantial costs policing and defending those rights Our means of

protecting our intellectual property proprietary rights and technology may not be

adequate and our competitors may independently develop similar or competitive

technologies In addition the laws of some foreign countries do not protect our

proprietary rights to as great an extent as the laws of the United States

If claims alleging patent copyright or trademark infringement are brought

against us and successfully prosecuted against us they could result in

substantial costs

Many patents copyrights and trademarks have been issued in the general

areas of information services telecommunications computer telephony and

the Internet From time to time in the ordinary course of our business we have

received and expect to continue to receive notices or be subject to third party

claims or proceedings alleging that our current or future products or services

infringe the patent copyright or trademark rights or other intellectual property

rights of third parties For example in June 2008 we settled lawsuit filed by

Ronald Katz Technology Licensing L.P against three conferencing service

providers including us alleging patent infringement relating to our automated

conferencing services and paid Katz for non-exclusive fully paid license and

release pursuant to this settlement Due to the inherent uncertainties of litigation

we are unable to predict the outcome of any infringement proceedings or claims

and an adverse outcome could have material effect on our business financial

condition and results of operations

We ultimately may not prevail on any such claims and any claiming parties may

have significantly greater resources than we have to pursue litigation of these

types of claims Any infringement claim whether with or without merit could

be time consuming and diversion to management

result in costly litigation

cause delays in introducing new services or enhancements and

result in costly royalty or licensing agreements

If successful claim is made against us and we fail to develop non-infringing

technology our business financial condition and results of operations could

be materially adversely affected

Risks Related to Government Regulation

Regulatory and legislative changes may discourage certain customers

from using some of our services and could adversely impact our results

of operations

Regulatory and legislative changes have imposed additional restrictions that may

impact our business Such changes include the passage of federal legislation

and rules and regulations relating to unsolicited fax advertising telemarketing

and unsolicited commercial e-mail The TCPA and associated rules promulgated

by the FCC prohibit the sending of unsolicited fax advertisements and proscribe

certain telemarketing practices Other federal laws implemented by the FTC also

substantially regulate telemarketing including the establishment of nationwide

do not call registry for residential and wireless telephone numbers The Can

Spam law places certain requirements on senders of commercial e-mail includ

ing requiring senders to honor opt-out requests and banning false and deceptive

headers and subject lines In addition to federal laws and regulations numerous

state laws and regulations govern such activities For instance certain states
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regulate or restrict pre-recorded telemarketing and other messages and

certain states may restrict or make political calls subject to do not call and

other requirements although such calls are exempt from the federal do not

call requirements Compliance with applicable laws and regulations could

have an adverse impact on the volume of fax voice and e-mail messages sent

utilizing our platforms For example although Congress amended the TCPA

by passing the JFPA to expressly permit the faxing of advertisements to enti

ties and persons that have an EBR with sender provided certain conditions

are met Congress also imposed notice language for fax advertisements and

mandated an opt-out mechanism Despite the passage of the JFPA notice re

quirements and any future time limits on the EBR exemption may discourage

use by some of our broadcast fax customers and could adversely impact our

revenues In addition the FTC recently issued new rules that further restrict

pre-recorded telemarketing calls Effective September 2009 these new

FTC rules prohibit pre-recorded telemarketing calls except in instances of

prior written express consent The rules also imposed certain other require

ments as of December 2008 for permitted pre-recorded telemarketing

calls including providing an interactive or keypress opt-out mechanism for

recipients to select to be added to an entity-specific do not call list These

new FTC rules could impact customer use of our broadcast voice services to

the extent customer sought to use these services for marketing messages

distinct from informational transactional or other messages exempt under

the FTCs rules Although we believe we comply with laws and regulations

applicable to us we could nevertheless be subject to litigation fines losses

or other penalties under such laws and regulations

If our services are subject to further government regulations applicable

to traditional telecommunications service providers our ability to

deliver our services and adversely impact our results of operations

could be impaired

Our business is affected by regulatory decisions trends and policies made

by international federal and state telecommunications regulatory agencies

including the FCC and state public service or utility commissions as well

as state taxing authorities We do not believe that our enhanced information

services are subject to the same regulations as those applicable to tradi

tional telecommunications service providers in the United States However

it is possible that regulatory authorities may take different position and

may seek to require us to submit to traditional telecommunications carrier

regulation under the Communications Act of 1934 as amended and vari

ous state laws as provider of telecommunications services For example

on June 30 2008 the FCC issued an order ruling that audio conferencing

providers are providers of telecommunications who must contribute to

the federal USF on prospective basis In accordance with the FCCs public

notice dated July17 2008 we filed Form 499-Q on August 2008 reporting

estimated revenues for the fourth quarter of 2008 and we began assessing

our applicable Conferencing Solutions customers and contributing to the

USF in October 2008 The extent to which our services are viewed as the

provision of telecommunications rather than as an offering of enhanced

information services will affect our USF contribution payments as well as

the federal regulations with which we must comply It is possible that state

regulatory authorities may also seek to require us to submit to traditional

telecommunications carrier regulation under various state laws as provider

of telecommunications and that state taxing authorities may similarly

attempt to subject our PGiMeet solutions to their telecommunications excise

tax statutes For example we accrued approximately $4.0 million in the sec

ond quarter of 2008 in connection with one such states telecommunications

excise tax statutes It is too early to predict how regulatory requirements may

affect customer demand for our PGiMeet solutions or our existing or future

competitors as well as whether regulatory or taxing authorities will impose

additional requirements regulations charges or taxes on the provision of

certain of our services Although we use reasonable efforts to monitor appli

cable regulatory requirerrients if we fail to comply with any applicable

government regulations or if we were required to submit to the jurisdiction

of state government authorities as providers of traditional telecommunica

tions services we could become subject to additional reporting and

compliance obligations and/or could be subject to litigation fines forfei

tures taxes regulatory surcharge remittance requirements or other penalties

arising from any noncompliance Subjecting our services to these regulations

would increase our operating costs and could have material adverse affect

on our business financial condition and results of operations

Risks Related to InternationaL Operations
and Expansion

There are risks inherent in international operations that could hinder

our international growth strategy

Our ability to achieve future success will depend in part on the expansion

of our international operations For example we recently opened branch

office in India Conducting our business internationally presents numerous

inherent difficulties and risks that could prevent us from selling our services

in other countries or hinder our expansion once we have established interna

tional operations including among other things the following

burdensome regulatory requirements and unexpected changes in these

requirements

export restrictions and controls relating to technology

data privacy laws that may apply to the transmission of our customers

data to the United States

tariffs and other trade barriers

difficulties in staffing and managing international operations including

utilizing foreign telecommunication providers

localization of our services including translation into foreign languages

and associated expenses

accounting including managing internal control over financial reporting

in our non-U.S subsidiaries tax and legal complexities arising from

international operations

longer accounts receivable payment cycles and collection difficulties

political and economic instability

fluctuations in currency exchange rates

potential difficulties in transferring funds generated overseas to the U.S

in tax efficient manner

seasonal reductions in business activity during the sumnier months in

Europe and other parts of the world and

potentially adverse tax consequences

We have experienced and will likely continue to experience losses from

fluctuations in currency exchange rates

risk inherent in our international operations is the exposure to fluctua

tions in currency exchange rates We conduct business in 24 countries

with approximately 40% of our consolidated net revenues and 35% of our

operating expenses derived from foreign currencies As result we may

experience material losses in revenues and earnings from fluctuations in

foreign currencies For example current global economic conditions have

caused extreme and unprecedented volatility in foreign currency exchange

rates which we estimate negatively impacted our consolidated revenues

by approximately $5.7 million in the quarter ended December 31 2008 as

compared to the fourth quarter of 2007 We anticipate that such fluctuations

will continue to negatively impact our financial results We cannot predict

when this volatility will cease or the extent of its impact on our future

financial results We typically denominate foreign transactions in foreign

currencies and have not engaged in hedging transactions although we may

engage in hedging transactions from time to time in the future relating to

foreign currency exchange rates

16 1J1MEftE GLC1AL s11vcr



ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None

ITEM PROPERTIES

Our current corporate headquarters occupy approximately 55000 square feet

of office space in Atlanta Georgia under leases through two of our subsidiar

ies that are guaranteed by us and will expire in August 2018 These leases

provide for an expansion of approximately 9900 additional square feet on

or before December 2009 We occupy additional space of approximately

45000 square feet in Tinton Falls New Jersey under lease expiring in

May 2016 approximately 94000 square feet in Colorado Springs Colorado

under lease expiring in August 2010 and approximately 46000 square feet

in Lenexa Kansas under lease expiring in August 2009 We will move our

Lenexa Kansas operations to Olathe Kansas under lease we entered into

for approximately 88000 square feet expiring in November 2018

We also lease various server equipment and sales offices within and outside

the United States We believe that our current facilities and office space are

sufficient to meet our present needs and do not anticipate any difficulty

securing additional space as needed on terms acceptable to us

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDING
We have settled the litigation matter as described below

On May 18 2007 Gibson Co Ins Brokers Inc served an amended

complaint upon us and our subsidiary Xpedite in purported class action

entitled Gibson Co Ins Brokers Inc et al The Quiznos Corporation

et al pending in U.S District Court for the Central District of California

The underlying complaint alleged that Quiznos sent unsolicited fax adver

tisements on or about November 2005 in violation of the federal TCPA

and sought damages of $1500 per fax for alleged willful conduct in sending

of the faxes On May 2008 all parties finalized confidential term sheet

for the settlement On July 28 2008 the parties entered into settlement

agreement and release and motion for preliminary approval of class

action settlement The settlement is subject to approval by the court and

on August 22 2008 the court issued an order of preliminary approval of the

settlement The Court heard the motion for final approval of the settlement

agreement on February 23 2009 and indicated orally that it would approve

the settlement Judgment will become final on or about March 30 2009

when the time for appeal expires We believe that our financial contribution

to the settlement will be well below the limits of our insurance policy and

recorded loss contingency for this amount in accordance with paragraph

of SFAS No

We are also involved in various other legal proceedings which we do not

believe will have material adverse effect upon our business financial

condition or results of operations although we can offer no assurance

as to the ultimate outcome of any such proceedings

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO
VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to vote of our security holders during the fourth

quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON
EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock $.oi par value per share is listed on the New York Stock The closing price of our common stock as reported on the NYSE on February

Exchange under the symbol PGI The following table sets forth the high 23 2009 was $8.29 As of February 23 2009 there were 513 record holders of

and low sales prices of our common stock as reported on the NYSE for the our common stock

periods indicated

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and the current

policy of our board of directors is to retain any available earnings for use in
2008 High Low

the operation and expansion of our business The payment of cash dividends

Fourth quarter $14.02 $5.18
on our common stock is unlikely in the foreseeable future Any future deter-

Third quarter 16.90 13.48 mination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board and will

Second quarter 16.00 13.40 depend upon our earnings capital requirements financial condition and

First quarter 15.70 10.64 any other factors deemed relevant by our board

2007 High Low
Our credit facility contains customary prohibitions on our ability to declare

any cash dividends on our common stock until all obligations under the line

Fourth quarter $16.69 $12.15 of credit are paid in full and all letters of credit have been terminated See

Third quarter 13.50 10.50 Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Second quarter 13.40 11.05 Results of Operations in this annual report

First quarter 11.25 8.50

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In 2007 we also completed self-tender offer pursuant to which we repurchased and retired approximately 9.7
million shares of our common stock

Total number of Maximum number

shares purchased of shares that may

Total number Average as part of publicly yet be purchased

of shares price paid announced plans under the plans

Period purchased per share or programs or programs1

October 131 2008 75000 $8.93 75000 4200500

November 130 2008 925000 7.19 925000 3275500

December 13 2008

1000000 $7.32 1000000 3275500

In June 2006 our board of directors authorized and we announced new stock repurchase program under which we could purchase up to 7.0 million shares of our
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The following graph shows the cumulative total shareholder return on our

common stock the Standard Poors 500 Composite Stock Price Index and

the SP goo Software Services Index for the period beginning December

31 2003 and ending December 31 2008 The graph assumes an investment

in our common stock the SP 500 and the SP 500 Software Services

Index of $100 on December 31 2003 and that all dividends were reinvested

Total return calculations were prepared by the Research Data Group Inc

The stock price performance in this graph is not necessarily indicative of

the future performance of our common stock

Premiere Global Services

SP 500

SP 500 Software Services

08

Premiere Global Services Inc

SP 500

SP 500 Software Services Index

$100.00 $121.57 $92.28 $107.15 $168.56 $97.73

100.00 110.88 116.33 134.70 142.13 89.53

100.00 110.97 109.46 118.69 140.25 79.63

03 04 05 06 07

This performance graph shall not be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Exchange Act or incorporated by

reference into any of our filings under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended or the Exchange Act except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing



ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected consolidated statement of operations data balance consolidated financial statements and the notes hereto in Item Financial

sheets data and statement of cash flows data as of and for the years ended Statements and Supplementary Data included in this annual report

December 31 2008 2007 2006 2005 and 2004 have been derived from our Our results of operations include net revenues and associated costs for all

audited consolidated financial statements The selected consolidated finan- acquisitions as discussed in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis

cial data should be read in conjunction with Item Managements Discus- of Financial Condition and Results of Operations from the effective date of

sion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our each acquisition

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Statement of operational data

Net revenues $624228 $559706 $496472 $497473 $449371

Operating income 69499 61546 46370 75279 71394

Income from continuing operations attributable to common and common

equivalent shares for

Basic income per share 36103 30442 25509 48686 40685

Diluted income per share 36103 30442 25509 48686 42071

Income from continuing operations per common

and common equivalent shares for

Basic1 $0.61 $0.49 $0.37 $0.69 $0.63

Diluted1 $0.60 $0.48 $0.37 $0.67 $0.58

Loss gain from discontinued operations 1269 1195

Net income attributable to common and common equivalent shares for

Basic net income per share 36103 30442 25509 47417 41880

Diluted net income per share 36103 30442 25509 47417 43226

Net income per common and common equivalent shares for

Basic1 $0.61 $0.49 $0.37 $0.67 $0.65

Diluted1 $0.60 $0.48 $0.37 $0.66 $0.60

Shares used in computing income from continuing operations and

net income per common and common equivalent shares for

Basic 59356 62654 68933 70392 64086

Diluted 60477 63940 69787 72366 72280

Balance sheets data at period end

Cash equivalents and marketable securities $27535 $18259 $18977 $20508 $26458

Working capital 42896 21669 30169 32201 27062

Total assets 661.007 625656 549315 495290 435476

Total debt 271.489 269481 138782 100474 68184

Total shareholders equity 253834 239294 316291 303750 266930

Statement of cash flows data

Cash provided by used in operating activities from

Continuing operations 106088 91587 74147 92582 84576

Discontinued operationsVoicecom 650 987 2025 2081

Total $106088 $90937 $73160 $90557 $82495

Cash used in investing activities $80722 $94090 $80966 $107640 $111118

Cash used in provided by financing activities $14.025 $1901 $5712 $15447 $30481

Basic net income per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period Diluted net income
per

share is

computed using the weighted average number of shares of common stock and dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during the period from convertible subordinated

notes using the if-converted method warrants unvested restricted stock and stock options using the treasury stock method In 2004 net income available to common
shareholders was adjusted for the interest expense related to our convertible notes prior to conversion
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We develop and market comprehensive suite of applied communication

technologies Our PGiCOS supports business applications within the

following solution setsPGiMeet PGiSend PGiNotify and PGiMarket

in our three segments in North America Europe and Asia Pacific

Key highlights of our financial and strategic accomplishments for 2008

include

Grew consolidated net revenues hy 11.5% in 2008 compared to 2007

Generated organic consolidated revenues growth excluding impacts

from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and acquisitions of

approximately 5.6% in 2008 compared to 2007 see Non-GAAP Financial

Measures and Net Revenues

Grew revenue from our PGiMeet solutions the largest solution set within

PGiCOS by 23.6% in 2008 compared to 2007

Grew cash flows provided by operating activities by greater than 16%

compared to 2007

Expanded our credit facility to $375.0 million from $325.0 million to

augment our access to capital

Launched new pricing options including subscription-based and license

pricing options

Repurchased million shares of our common stock in the open market

Furthered our strategy of expanding our global presence with our entry

into India and China and

Enhanced our web site at www.premiereglobal.com and re-launched our

online developer community at www.PGiConnect.com

Our primary corporate objectives in 2009 are focused on continuing to

enhance our customer value and to differentiate our products and our com

pany from our competitors We believe our success toward these initiatives

will enhance the positive momentum we have generated in our business

Specifically in 2009 our strategic plan includes our continued focus on

Developing and launching innovative products and customer self-service

tools that improve our user experience

Crafting pricing strategies aimed at enhancing the overall quality and

consistency of our revenues and

Building brand that is sustainable asset for us

In the fourth quarter of 2008 nearly 40% of our consolidated net revenues

were denominated in currencies other than U.S Dollars Because we gener

ate significant portion of our consolidated net revenues from our interna

tional operations movements in foreign currency exchange rates affect our

reported results We estimate that changes in foreign currency exchange

rates during the fourth quarter of 2008 negatively impacted our consolidated

net revenues by approximately million as compared to the fourth quarter

of 2007 We anticipate movements in foreign currency exchange rates will

continue to negatively impact our financial results for the remainder of 2009

We have experienced revenue growth in our PGiMeet solutions through

increases in minutes of use offset in part by declines in average selling

prices per minute for this solution Traditional pricing for these services

is on per-minute basis During 2008 we introduced pricing on sub

scription-based pricing model similar to that of other on-demand service

providers Revenues from subscription-based pricing have been less than

of total revenues for our PGiMeet solutions Revenues from our PGiMeet

solutions in 2008 2007 and 2006 were approximately $ijig million

$358.7 million and $280.0 million respectively

We have experienced revenue volume declines in our broadcast fax delivery and

fax delivery aspects of our PGiSend solutions Pricing for these services are on

per-minute or per-page delivered basis Revenues from these services in 2008

2007 and 2006 were approximately million $115.2 million and $131.8

million respectively Declines in these fax delivery solutions have been primarily

associated with volume declines Although we have and will continue to convert

such customers to other alternative solutions we expect this overall decline in

revenue to continue

We expect that our continued growth in revenues and operating cash flows will

be associated with growth in the remainder of our solutions including contin

ued volume growth in our audio conferencing PGiMeet solutions We expect this

growth will offset declines in our fax delivery solutions associated with broadcast

fax and PGiSend

We have made acquisitions of businesses particularly conferencing and collabo

ration providers which have increased our revenues and operating cash flows

These acquisitions have been primarily to expand our customer base distribution

channels and geographic presence We are able to realize synergies by integrat

ing these acquisitions into our own operating infrastructure Historically these

acquisitions have generally been accretive to our revenues operating cash flows

and earnings per share

During 2007 we acquired approximately i% of our outstanding shares pursuant

to our self-tender offer and in the open market which was the primary cause of

net borrowings of $125.7 million of our credit facility We purchased these shares

under the self-tender offer at premium of approximately io% or $12.65 share

At March 31 2007 prior to our self-tender offer borrowings under our credit

facility were $124.9 million At June 2007 after completing the self-tender offer

borrowings under our credit
facility were $243.8 million Since June 30 2007

we have used our cash flows from operations less capital expenditures or free

cash flow for debt repayments acquisitions and stock repurchases At December

31 2008 borrowings under our credit facility were $266.2 million During 2008

2007 and 2006 our free cash flow was $56.5 million $44.6 million and $41.2 mil

lion respectively see Non-GAAP Financial Measures Based on our histori

cal free cash flow we anticipate amending to extend the tenure or refinancing our

existing credit facility prior to maturity In 2009 we anticipate continuing to use

our free cash flow to pay down our debt while still continuing to be optimistic in

possible acquisitions and share repurchases

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles in the United States or GAAP requires us to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and reported amounts of net revenues and expenses during

the reporting period Actual results could differ from the estimates See the

section in this annual report entitled Critical Accounting Policies The

following discussion and analysis provides information which we believe is

relevant to an assessment and understanding of our consolidated results of

operations and financial condition This discussion should be read in conjunction

with our consolidated financial statements contained herein and notes thereto
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Results of Operations
The following table presents the percentage relationship of our consolidated statements of operations line items to our consolidated net revenues for the

periods indicated

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Net revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.%

Operating expenses

Cost of revenues exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown separately below 41.1 40.6 40.5

Selling and marketing 24.6 25.2 26.7

General and administrative exclusive of net legal settlements shown separately below 10.6 11.8 11.8

Research and development 2.7 2.5 2.4

Excise tax expense 0.5

Depreciation 5.3 5.4 4.9

Amortization 2.5 2.8 2.6

Restructuring costs 0.5 0.6 1.7

Asset impairments 0.7

Net legal settlements and related expenses 0.4 0.1 0.1

Total operating expenses 88.9 89.0 90.7

Operating income 11.1 11.0 9.3

Other expense income

Interest expense 3.1 2.4 1.8

Unrealized loss on change in fair value of interest rate swaps 0.8

Interest income 0.1 0.1 0.1

Other net 0.1 0.3 0.3

Total other expense income 2.9 2.8 1.4

Income before income taxes 8.2 8.2 7.9

Income tax expense 2.4 2.7 2.8

Net income 5.8% 5.5% 5.1%

Net Revenues

The following table presents certain financial information about our segments for the periods presented in millions except percentages

Year ended December 31 Change 2008 from 2007 Change 2007 from 2006

2008 2007 2006

Net revenues

North America $384.8 $356.7 $319.3 28.1 7.9 37.4 11.7

Europe 122.5 103.3 93.0 19.2 18.6 10.3 11.0

Asia Pacific 116.9 99.7 84.2 17.2 17.2 15.5 18.4

Consolidated net revenues $624.2 $559.7 $496.5 64.5 11.5 63.2 12.7

Net income loss

North America $15.5 $20.3 $21.5

Europe 12.2 5.3 0.7

Asia Pacific 8.4 4.8 4.7

Consolidated net income $36.1 $30.4 $25.5

Percent of net revenues

North America 61.7% 63.7% 64.3%

Europe 19.6% 18.5% 18.7%

Asia Pacific 18.7% 17.8% 17.0%

Consolidated net revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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Organic growth

We define organic growth as revenue changes excluding the impact of

foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations using the average exchange

rates from the current year period and applying them to prior period results

and acquisitions made during the periods presented We have presented

organic growth for our segments and present this non-GAAP financial

measure to exclude the effect of those items that are not completely within

managements control such as foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations

or that do not reflect our ongoing core operations or underlying growth

such as acquisitions Organic growth is further discussed in our Non
GAAP Financial Measures The following table presents reconciliation

of organic revenue to net revenues for the periods indicated in millions

Consolidated

net revenues

2006

Impact of

fluctuations

in foreign

currency

exchange

rates

Organic Consolidated Organic

net revenue net revenues net revenue

growth 2008 growth rate

ConsoLidated Net Revenues

Net revenues increased to $624.2 million in 2008 from million in the

previous year primarily as result of $31.6 million of organic net revenue

growth excluding the impact of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations

and acquisitions that occurred subsequent to December 31 2006 The

increase in organic net revenues was primarily driven hy our PGiMeet

solutions partially offset by declines in broadcast fax and the fax aspect

of our PfiiSend solution Organic net revenues are impacted by both price

and volume changes In 2008 the increase in organic net revenues of

$31.6 million was associated with decreases in average selling prices

of $23.4 million resulting from higher mix of large volume enterprise

customers and price reductions from existing customers offset hy increases

in volume of million fromboth new and existing customers Other

contributions to our 2008 net revenue growth include $8.5 million from

strengthening of various currencies to the U.S Dollar and $24.4 million

from our recent acquisitions including Budget Conferencing Soundpath

iLinc Communications Inc and MeeU4

Net revenues increased to million in 2007 from $496.5 million in the

previous year primarily as result of $30.5 million of organic net revenue

growth excluding the impact of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations

and acquisitions that occurred subsequent to December 31 2005 The

increase in organic net revenues was primarily driven by our PGiMeet

solutions partially offset hy declines in broadcast fax and the fax aspect

of our PGiSend solution In 2007 the increase in organic net revenues of

$30.5 million was associated with decreases in average selling prices of

million resulting from higher mix of large volume enterprise

customers and price reductions from existing customers offset by increases

in volume of $65.8 million from both new and existing customers Other

contributions to our 2007 net revenue growth include $12.1 million from

strengthening of various currencies to the U.S Dollar and $20.6 million from

our acquisitions inclnding eNunciate ECT Budget Meet24 and Accucast

These consolidated net revenues trends as well as the segment net revenue

trends discussed below are reconciled ahove and further described in

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Impact of

fluctuations

in foreign

currency

exchange

rates

Consolidated

net revenues

2007

$356.7

103.3

99.7

$559.7

Net revenues

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Consolidated net revenues

Net revenues

Impact of

acquisitions

$0.1 $11.0 $17.0 $384.8 4.7%

3.2 13.4 2.6 122.5 2.6%

5.2 12.0 116.9 12.1%

$8.5 $24.4 $31.6 $624.2 5.6%

Organic Consolidated Organic

Impact of net revenue net revenues net revenue

acquisitions growth 2007 growth rate

North America $319.3 $1.0 $15.1 $21.3 $356.7 6.7%

Europe 93.0 8.1 2.6 0.4 103.3 0.5%

Asia Pacific 84.2 3.0 2.9 9.6 99.7 11.5%

Consolidated net revenues $496.5 $12.1 $20.6 $30.5 $559.7 6.1%
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Segment Net Revenue

North America net revenue increased to $384.8 million in 2008 from

$356.7 million in the previous year and increased to $356.7 million in 2007

from $319.3 million in 2006 North America organic net revenues increased

$17.0 million during 2008 and $21.3 million during 2007 The increase in

organic net revenues for both years was primarily driven hy revenue growth

in our PGiMeet solutions partially offset by declines in broadcast fax and

the fax aspect of our PGiSend solution In 2008 the increase in organic net

revenues of $17.0 million was associated with decreases in average selling

prices of $23.5 million offset by increases in volume of $40.5 million In

2007 the increase in organic net revenues of $21.3 million was associated

with decreases in average selling prices of $28.2 million offset by increases

in volume of $i9.s million In 2008 and 2007 decreases in average selling

prices were primarily associated with PGiMeet while volume increases

in both years were associated with PGiMeet offset in part with volume

decreases in broadcast fax and the fax aspect of our PGiSend solution

Europe net revenue increased to $122.5 million in 2008 from $103.3 million in

the previous year and increased to $103.3 million in 2007 from $93.0 million

in 2006 Europe organic net revenues increased $2.6 million during 2008

and decreased $0.4 million during 2007 The increase in organic net revenues

during 2008 was primarily driven by revenue growth in our PGiMeet

solutions partially offset by declines in broadcast fax and the fax aspect of

our PGiSend solution The decrease in organic net revenues during 2007 was

driven by declines in broadcast fax partially offset by revenue growth in our

Cost of Revenues

PGiMeet solutions In 2008 the increase in organic net revenues of

$2.6 million was associated with decreases in average selling prices of

$s million offset by increases in volume of $7.9 million In 2007 the

decrease in organic net revenues of $0.4 million was associated with

decreases in average selling prices of $1.8 million offset by increases in

volume of $1.4 million In 2008 and 2007 decreases in average selling prices

were primarily associated with PGiMeet while volume increases in both

years were associated with PGiMeet offset in part with volume decreases

in broadcast fax and the fax aspect of our PGiSend solution

Asia Pacific net revenue increased to $116.9 million in 2008 from

million in the previous year and increased to million in 2007

from $84.2 million in 2006 Asia Pacific organic net revenues increased

$12.0 million during 2008 and $9.6 million during 2007 The increase in

organic net revenues for both years was primarily driven by revenue growth

in our PGiMeet solutions and in our Maritime PGiNotify solutions which

we resell from third party to shipping companies in the region In 2008

the increase in organic net revenues of $12.0 million was associated with

increases in average selling prices of $s million and by increases in volume

of $6.6 million In 2007 the increase in organic net revenues of $9.6 million

was associated with decreases in average selling prices of $s million offset

by increases in volume of $14.9 million In 2008 and 2007 changes in average

selling prices and volumes were primarily associated with PGiMeet

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Change 2008 from 2007

19.7 13.9

3.9 10.4

29.3 12.9

Change 2007 from 2006

17.6 14.1

1.6 4.6

7.6 18.7

26.8 13.4

Cost of revenues as

percent of net revenues

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

These cost reductions however were offset by declines iii high margin

broadcast fax services and price compression in our PGiMeet solutions

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates resulted in consolidated

42.0% 9.8% 9.0% cost of revenues growth of approximately $3.1 million in 2008 and approxi

mately million in 2007 from the previous year For the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 we capitalized network engineering costs

associated with the development and deployment of customer-supporting

infrastructure of approximately million $2.8 million and $0.4 million

respectively The increase in capitalization costs are primarily related to

network upgrades to our global service delivery platforms Capitalized

network engineering costs as percentage of total cash cost of revenues

was 2.1% 1.2% and 0.2% for the years ended December 31 20082007

and 2006 respectively see Non-GAAP Financial Measures

North America cost of revenue includes approximately $0.2 million

$o million and $o million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of equity-

based compensation expense The 2008 increase in North America cost of

revenue as percentage of operating segment net revenue was attributable

primarily to our acquisitions of iLinc and Soundpath and growth in higher

cost of revenue large enterprise customers in our PGiMeet solutions net

revenue offset in part by decline in our broadcast fax net revenue which

has lower cost of revenue in North America than our other solutions

The increase in North America cost of revenue as percentage of operating
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$161.7

40.9

$142.0

37.0

Consolidated

$124.4

35.4

54.0 48.3

$256.6 $227.3 $200.5

40.7 5.7 12.0

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

33.4%

46.2%

41.1%

35.9%

48.4%

40.6%

38.1%

48.3%

40.5%Consolidated

Consolidated cost of revenues as percentage of consolidated net revenues

increased in 2008 from the previous year primarily as result of growth

in higber cost of revenue large enterprise customers in our North America

PGiMeet solutions and the reduction of lower cost of revenue associated

with our broadcast fax and enterprise document delivery solutions revenues

These increases in cost were offset in part by cost reductions primarily from

our fax service delivery organization re-engineering efforts in North America

and Europe began in the second quarter of 2007 and network upgrades

to our fax delivery platform in Asia Pacific during the second half of 2007

Consolidated cost of revenues as percentage of consolidated net revenues

remained fiat in 2007 compared to the previous year as result of re-negoti

ated lower telecommunications costs our continued migration to VoIP and

the initial benefits of our service delivery organization re-engineering efforts



segment net revenue in 2007 from the previous year was attributable

primarily to lower average selling prices per minute in our PGiMeet solu

tions declines in our lower cost of revenue broadcast fax net revenue and

growth in our higher cost of revenue web conferencing services offset by

lower negotiated telecommunications costs per minute and reduced customer

service costs associated with our non-PGiMeet solutions revenue These

reduced non-PGiMeet solutions customer service costs are result of our

re-engineering efforts in the first half of 2007 Fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates from our Canadian operations resulted in North

America cost of revenue growth of approximately $o.i million in 2008 and

approximately $0.4 million in 2007 from the previous year

The 2008 decrease in Europe cost of revenue as percentage of operating

segment net revenue was attributable primarily to declines in broadcast fax

net revenue which has higher cost of revenue than our other solutions

growth in lower cost of revenue PGiMeet solutions net revenue cost savings

associated with our service delivery organization re-engineering efforts in

Europe that began in the second quarter of 2007 and network upgrades

to our fax delivery platform in the first half of 2008 partially offset by our

acquisition of Meet24 The decrease in Europe cost of revenue as percentage

of operating segment net revenue in 2007 from the previous year was

SeLling and Marketing Expenses

attributable primarily to an increase in revenue mix towards lower cost

of revenue PUiMeet solutions from higher cost of revenue broadcast fax

services and reduced customer service costs associated with our non-PGi

Meet solutions revenue These reduced customer service costs are result

of our re-engineering efforts in the first half of 2007 Fluctuattons in foreign

currency exchange rates resuked in Europe cost of revenue growth of

approximately $i.i million in 2008 and approximately $3.1 million in 2007

from the previous year

The 2008 decrease in Asia Pacific cost of revenue as percentage of operat

ing segment net revenue was attributable primarily to network cost savings

related to upgrades in our fax delivery platform during the second half of

2007 and growth in lower cost of revenue PGiMeet solutions net revenue

The increase in Asia Pacific cost of revenue as percentage of operating

segment net revenue in 2007 from the previous year was attributable

primarily to lower average selling price per minute in our PGiMeet solutions

offset in part by reductions in telecommunication costs from network

performance improvements Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates

resulted in Asia Pacific cost of revenue growth of approximately $1.9 million

in 2008 and approximately $1.4 million in 2007 from the previous year

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

31.8 25.6

$153.7 $141.3 $132.3

23.9% 24.7% 27.6%

30.2% 30.8% 7.5%

21.2% 21.4% 22.2%

24.6% 25.2% 26.7%

Consolidated selling and marketing expenses increased in 2008 from the

previous year primarily as result of our acquisitions of Budget Conferenc

ing Meet24 iLinc and Soundpath our investment in selling and marketing

resources in all of our operating segments and the strengthening of various

currencies to the U.S Dollar Consolidated selling and marketing expenses

increased in 2007 from the previous year primarily as result of our acquisi

tions of Accucast eNunciate ECT Budget Conferencing and Meet24 the

strengthening of various currencies to the U.S Dollar and increased invest

ments in our sales and marketing efforts throughout 2007 Fluctuations in

foreign currency exchange rates resulted in consolidated selling and market

ing expense growth of approximately $2.1 million in 2008 and approximately

$2.7 million in 2007 from the previous year

North America selling and marketing expense includes $2.2 million

$1.8 million and $1.8 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of

equity-based compensation expense The 2008 increase in North America

selling and marketing expense was attributable primarily to our acquisitions

Change 2008 from 2007

3.8 4.3

5.2 16.2

3.4 16.0

12.4 8.8

Change 2007 from 2006

0.1 0.1

6.2 24.3

2.7 14.4

9.0 6.8

of Budget Conferencing iLinc and Soundpath and the strengthening of the

Canadian Dollar against the U.S Dollar offset in part by increased optimiza

tion of selling and marketing expense toward growth in our PGiMeet

solutions net revenue The increase in North America selling and marketing

expense in 2007 from the previous year was primarily attributable to our

acquisitions of Accucast eNunciate and Budget Conferencing and additional

investment in sales personnel offset in part by reduction in marketing

support costs associated with our 2006 corporate branding initiatives and

non-PGiMeet solutions promotions Fluctuations in foreign currency

exchange rates from our Canadian operations resulted in minimal North

America selling and marketing expense growth in 2008 and 2007 each as

compared to the prior year

Europe selling and marketing expense includes $o.6 million $o million

and $0.2 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of equity-based

compensation expense The 2008 increase in Europe selling and marketing

expense was attributable primarily to our acquisition of Meet24 strength

ening of the Euro against the U.S Dollar and our investment in selling and

marketing resources in our PGiMeet Solutions The increase in Europe selling

and marketing expense in 2007 from the previous year was primarily attrib

utable to the strengthening of the Euro and British Pound to the U.S Dollar

our acquisition of MeeU4 and our investments in sales personnel to support

our solution sets Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates resulted in

Europe selling and marketing expense growth of approximately $i.o million

in 2008 and approximately $2.1 million in 2007 from the previous year

$88.1$91.9

37.0

24.8

$88.0

21.4 18.7

Consolidated

Setting and marketing expenses

as percent of net revenues

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Consolidated

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
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Asia Pacific selling and marketing expense includes $0.2 million $o.i mil

lion and $o.i million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of equity-based

compensation expense The 2008 increase in Asia Pacific selling and market

ing expense was attributable primarily to the strengthening of the Japanese

Yen to the U.S Dollar and our investment in selling and marketing resources

in our PGiMeet solutions The increase in Asia Pacific selling and market

GeneraL and Administrative Expenses

ing expense in 2007 from the previous year was primarily attributable to the

strengthening of various currencies to the U.S Dollar and investments in

sales personnel to support our solution sets Fluctuations in foreign currency

exchange rates resulted in Asia Pacific selling and marketing expense growth

of approximately $i.i million in 2008 and approximately $0.6 million in 2007

from the previous year

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Year ended December 31

2007 2006

$45.0 $41.2

12.6 10.3

9.3 8.4 7.1

$66.0 $58.6

Change 2008 from 2007

0.7 1.6

0.0 0.0

0.9 11.2

0.2 0.3

Change 2007 from 2006

3.8 9.5

23 21.1

1.3 18.2

7.4 12.6

Consolidated general and administrative expenses increased in 2008

from the previous year primarily as result of our acquisitions of Budget

Conferencing Meet24 iLinc and Soundpath and the strengthening of

various currencies to the U.S Dollar Consolidated general and administra

tive expenses increased in 2007 from the previous year primarily as result

of $2.9 million in increased proxy-related costs our acquisitions of Accucast

eNunciate ECT Budget Conferencing and Meeri4 the strengthening of

various currencies to the U.S Dollar increases associated with duplicative

rent from our corporate headquarters relocation and legal expenses

associated with various matters disclosed in Note 14 to our consolidated

financial statements Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates

resulted in consolidated general and administrative expense growth of

approximately $0.8 million in 2008 and approximately $i.o million in 2007

from the previous year

North America general and administrative expenses include $7.s million

$6.6 million and $6.2 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of

equity-based compensation expense The 2008 decrease in North America

general and administrative expense was attributable primarily to the

cessation of proxy-related costs incurred during 2007 offset in part by our

acquisitions of Budget Conferencing Soundpath and iLinc The increase in

North America general and administrative expense in 2007 from the previous

year was primarily attributable to our acquisitions of Accucast eNunciate

and Budget Conferencing approximately $2.9 million in proxy-related

costs $1.7 million of duplicative rent costs from our corporate headquarters

relocation and legal expenses associated with certain matters as previously

disclosed in our Commitments and Contingencies Note 14 to our consoli

dated financial statements offset in part by reductions in bad deht expense

of approximately $2.5 million as result of improved collections activity

during 2007 Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates from our

Canadian operations resulted in minimal North America general and

administrative expense growth in 2008 and 2007 each as compared to

the prior year

Asia Pacific general and administrative expense includes $0.4 million

$0.3 million and $o million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of equity-

based compensation expense The 2008 increase in Asia Pacific general and

administrative expense was attributable primarily to strengthening of the

Japanese Yen against the U.S Dollar The increase in Asia Pacific general

and administrative expense in 2007 from the previous year was primarily

attributable to the strengthening of various currencies strengthening to

the U.S Dollar our acquisition of ECT duplicative rent and relocation

costs associated with our office relocation in Tokyo and increased finance

and executive support costs related to revenue growth within the region

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates resulted in Asia Pacific

general and administrative expense growth of approximately $0.4 million

in 2008 and approximately $0.2 million in 2007 from the previous year

2008

$44.3

12.6

Consolidated $66.2

General and

administrative expenses

as percent of net revenues

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Consolidated

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Europe general and administrative expense includes $0.2 million $o
million and $0.2 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of equity-

based compensation expense The 2008 stability in Europe general and

adminis-trative expense was attributable primarily to the strengthening
11.5% 12.6% 12.9%

of the Euro against the U.S Dollar and our acquisition of Meet24 offset in

10.2% 12.2% 11.1%
part by reduction in finance and accounting costs from our centralization

8.0% 8.4% 8.4% plan that began in the first quarter of 2007 The increase in Europe general

10.6% 11.8% 11.8%
and administrative expense in 2007 from the previous year was primarily

attributable to the strengthening of the Euro and British pound to the

U.S Dollar our acquisition of Meet24 and increased bonus compensation

associated with achievement of plan objectives in 2007 Fluctuations in

foreign currency exchange rates resulted in Europe general and administra

tive expense growth of approximately $0.4 million in 2008 and approximately

$0.8 million in 2007 from the previous year
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Research and DeveLopment Expenses

Consolidated research and development expenses from continuing

operations as percentage of consolidated net revenues were 2.7% 2.5%

and 2.4% in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Consolidated research and

development expenses from continuing operations increased 19.7% to

$16.9 million in 2008 from $14.1 miliion in 2007 and increased 16.5% in 2007

from $12.1 million in 2006 Consolidated research and development expense

included approximately $1.2 million $0.8 mlilion and $0.8 million for 2008

2007 and 2006 respectively of equity-based compensation expense The

majority of research and development costs were incurred in North America

The 2008 increase in consolidated research and development expenses is

primarily associated with additional resources invested in the maintenance

and support of our PGiMeet solutions and our PGiNotify solutions and the

establishment of new web development organization in North America

The increase in consolidated research and development expenses in 2007

compared to the previous year is attributable primarily to greater amount

of internal costs incurred for maintenance of our platforms

We capitalize costs associated with product development as internally

developed software under Property and Equipment Net in our consoli

dated balance sheets whereas we expense management overhead facilities

costs and maintenance activities as research and development For the years

Depreciation Expense

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 we capitalized research

and development related software development costs of approximately

$imillion $9.s million and million respectively The increase in

capitalized research and development related software costs are primarily

related to development of new applications and existing application

upgrades Capitalized research and development related software costs

as percentage of total cash cost of research and development was 50.6%

40.1% and 22.2% for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively see Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Excise Tax Expense
During the second quarter of 2008 we learned that certain of our PGiMeet

solutions may be subject to certain states telecommunications excise

tax statute We are currently working with this states department of revenue

to resolve this matter which spans tax years 2001 2007 Accordingly we

have accrued approximately $4.0 million of excise tax and interest for the

applicable time period as of December 31 2008 and recorded approximately

$2.9 million in Operating expenses and $i.i million in Interest expense

in our consolidated statements of operations during the year ended

December 31 2008

Chang 2007 from 2006

5.6 31.4

0.4 11.2

0.2 6.0

5.4 22.1

Consolidated depreciation expense increased in 2008 from the previous year

primarily as result of increases in our productive asset base offset in part

by non-recurring adjustment during the three months ended March 31

57% 2008 of $0.7 million for revisions made to the estimated remaining economic

4.1%
life of specific group of assets as result of managements periodic review

of the continued appropriateness of such estimates The resulting change

in economic life for this group of assets will result in less than $0.7 million

in annual depreciation expense reduction in future annual periods Con

solidated depreciation expense increased in 2007 from the previous year

primarily as result of continued investment in our services and infrastruc

ture to support our solutions revenue

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

$26.8 $23.8 $18.2

3.6 3.4 3.8

2.5 2.8 2.6

$32.9 $30.0 $24.6

Year ended December 31
2008 2007 2006

Change 2008 from 2007

3.0 12.3

0.2 7.5

0.3 11.4

2.9 9.5

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Consolidated

Depreciation expense as

percent of net revenues

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Consolidated

7.0%

2.9%

2.1%

5.3%

6.7%

3.3%

2.8%

5.4%
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Amortization Expense

North America

Europe

Asia Pacific

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

$11.8 $13.6 $11.2

3.5 1.7 1.6

0.4 0.4 0.2

$15.7 $15.7 $13.0

Depreciation expense as Year ended December 31
percent of net revenues 2008 2007 2006

North America 3.1% 3.8%

Europe 2.8% 1.7%

Asia Padfic 0.3% 0.4%

Copsolidated 2.5% 2.8%

Consolidated amortization expense was flat in 2008 from the previous year

primarily as result of the decrease in amortization expense in North Amer

ica related to customer list intangible assets from acquisitions made in 2003

that have become fully amortized offset in part by our acquisitions of Budget

Conferencing iLinc and Soundpath The decrease in North America amor

tization expense has been offset by the increase in amortization expense in

Europe associated with our acquisition of Meet24 Consolidated amortization

expense increased in 2007 from the previous year primarily as result of our

acquisitions made in 2006 and 2007

Restructuring Costs

Consolidated restructuring costs from continuing operations as percentage

of consolidated revenues were 0.5% o.6% and 1.7% in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively Consolidated restructuring costs from continuing operations

were million million and $8.4 million in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

Realignment of Workforce 2008
During the year ended December 31 2008 we executed restructuring plan

to consolidate the senior management of our technology development and

network operations functions and to consolidate our corporate communica

tions function into our marketing department As part of these consolida

tions we eliminated ii positions including entering into separation agree

ment with our president global operations During the year ended December

31 2008 we expensed total restructuring costs of million associated

with the 2008 realignment of workforce representing severance costs

associated with the elimination of these positions and do not anticipate

additional charges The expenses associated with these charges are reflected

in Restructuring costs in our consolidated statements of operations On

segment basis these restructuring costs were $2.0 million in North America

$1.3 million in Europe and $o.i million in Asia Pacific all expensed within

the year ended December 31 2008 Estimated annual savings from this con

solidation is approximately million During 2008 we paid approximately

$2.7 million related to these severance and exit costs in cash and released an

additional $o million in restricted stock awards Our reserve for the 2008

restructuring costs was approximately $0.2 million at December 31 2008 We

anticipate these remaining costs will be paid over the next twelve months

Change 2008 from 2007

1.8 12.1

1.8 100.3

0.0 fO.0

0.0 0.4

Realignment of Workforce 2007
In 2007 we executed restructuring plan to consolidate our non-PGiMeet

solutions service delivery organizations As part of this consolidation we

3.5% eliminated 84 positions We
initially expensed total restructuring costs of

1.7% $4.2 million representing $4.1 million in severance costs associated with the

elimination of these positions and $o.i million of lease termination costs

associated with our Paris France office We do not anticipate any additional

2.6
restructuring charges associated with the 2007 realignment of workforce

During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 we adjusted the

initially recorded $4.2 million charge by $o.i million and $o.2 million

respectively related to actual severance payments being less than originally

estimated The expenses associated with these charges are reflected in

Restructuring costs in our consolidated statements of operations On

segment basis the total restructuring costs initially incurred were $i.i

million in North America $2.7 million in Europe and $o.i million in Asia

Pacific with total adjustments in Europe of $o.i million and $o.2 million

in 2008 and 2007 respectively Estimated annual savings from this consoli

dation is approximately $6.o million During 2008 we paid approximately

$0.7 million related to these severance and exit costs Substantially all

restructuring obligations related to the 2007 reserve were paid as of

December 31 2008

Realignment of Workforce 2006
In 2006 we executed restructuring plan to streamline the management of

our business on geographic regional basis from our former Conferencing

Collaboration and Data Communications business segments As part of this

streamlining we eliminated ioo positions within customer service finance

operations and sales and marketing In the fourth quarter of 2006 we enter

ed into separation agreement in connection with the resignation of our

former chief investment officer We initially expensed total of $8.6 million

representing approximately $8.0 million in severance costs associated with

these positions which included the issuance of restricted stock having

fair market value of $0.6 million and $0.6 million of lease termination costs

associated with five locations within North America We do not anticipate

any additional restructuring charges associated with the 2006 realignment of

workforce During the year ended December 31 2007 we adjusted the initial

ly recorded $8.6 million charge by $o.s million related to actual severance

payments being less than originally estimated On segment basis the total

restructuring costs initially incurred were $4.6 million in North America

million in Europe and $o million in Asia Pacific with total adjustments

in Europe of $o.t million and North America of $o.i million in 2007

During 2008 we paid approximately $o.i million related to these severance

and exit costs As of December 31 2008 we have completed this restructur

ing plan and accordingly no reserves remain

At December 31 2008 our reserve for restructuring costs incurred prior to

2006 totaled $1.6 million primarily for lease termination costs We anticipate

paying these remaining lease termination costs over the next eight years
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Change 2007 from 2006

2.4 20.5

0.1 9.0

0.2 88.5

2.7 20.3



Asset Impairment

Asset impairments were $4.3 million in 2008 North America impairments

include $0.8 million associated with developed technology from our acquisi

tion of Accucast $2.3 million related to the abandonment of billing system

software development costs associated with our fax delivery services devel

oped in 2005 and 2006 and $0.3 million associated with the abandonment

of certain patents and trademarks Europe impairments include $0.8 million

related to the customer list associated with the acquisition of I-Media and

its affiliates broadcast fax company acquired in December of 2004 and

Asia Pacific impairments include $o.i million associated with the abandon

ment of certain fixed assets Asset impairments were $o.i million in 2006

relating to discontinued technology acquired in 2003 in our North America

operating segment

Net LegaLSettLements and Related Expenses

Net legal settlements and related expenses were $2.2 million $0.3 million

and $0.6 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Net legal settlements

and related expenses in the 12 months ended December 31 2008 resulted

from the settling of several litigation matters including certain matters as

previously disclosed in our Commitments and Contingencies note to our

consolidated financial statements and in Part II Item Legal Proceedings

in our SEC filings In 2007 we incurred settlement costs associated with

acquisitions made in previous years for matters that arose subsequent to

such acquisitions In 2006 we resolved dispute with one of our telecommu

nications providers

Interest Expense

The majority of our interest expense from continuing operations is incurred

in North America and was $19.4 million $13.6 million and $9.1 million in

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Interest expense increased during 2008

and 2007 primarily as result of our increased average outstanding balance

on our credit facility along with $i.i million non-recurring charge during

the quarter ended June 30 2008 for interest related to the excise tax matter

discussed under Excise Tax Expense The weighted-average outstanding

balance on our credit facility was $290.0 million $204.1 million and $119.6

million during 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively This increase in borrowings

is primarily attributable to funding our $122.6 million self-tender offer and

our acquisitions of Budget Conferencing Meet24 and Soundpath

In February 2006 we entered into three-year $so.o million interest rate

swap at fixed rate of 4.99% and in August 2006 we entered into two

separate three-year $12.5 million interest rate swaps at 5.14% and 5.16%

respectively We did not designate these interest rate swaps as hedges

During the second quarter of 2007 we terminated these interest rate swaps

and recorded gain of approximately $0.4 million in Interest expense

in our consolidated statements of operations

In August 2007 we entered into two $ioo.o million two-year interest rate

swaps at fixed rate of approximately 4.99% In December 2007 we amend

ed the life of one of the $ioo.o million swaps to three years and reduced the

fixed rate to approximately 4.75% Monthly settlements with the bank are

recognized as Interest expense in our consolidated statements of opera

tions and amounted to $1.2 million in interest expense for the year ended

December 31 2008 and $0.2 million reduction in interest expense for the

year ended December 31 2007

Unrealized Loss on Change in Fair Value of

Interest Rate Swaps
In August 2007 we entered into two $ioo.o million two-year interest

rate swaps at fixed rate of approximately 4.99% In December 2007 we

amended the life of one of the $ioo.o million swaps to three years and

reduced the fixed rate to approximately 4.75% We did not initially designate

these interest rate swaps as hedges and as such we did not account for

them under hedge accounting in accordance with SEAS No 133 Accounting

for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended or SEAS

No 133 During the fourth quarter of 2008 we prospectively designated these

interest rate swaps as hedges using the long-haul method of effectiveness

testing Any changes in fair value prior to designation as hedge and any

ineffectiveness subsequent to such designation are recognized as Unreal

ized loss on change in fair value of interest rate swaps as component of

Other expense income in our consolidated statements of operations

and amounted to $o.i million and $4.5 million during the 12 months ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Interest Income

Interest income was $0.9 million $0.8 million and $o million in 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively Interest income remained relatively fiat in all three

periods as we maintained stable cash and cash equivalent outstanding

balance The average cash and cash equivalents were $22.9 million in 2008

$18.6 million in 2007 and $19.7 million in 2006

Other Net

Other net was $0.5 million $1.4 million and $1.4 million in 2008 2007 and

2006 respectively Other net was comprised primarily of foreign currency

exchange gains and losses related to cash settlements of intercompany

transactions and the revaluation of foreign currency denominated payables

and receivables into their respective functional currency

Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 29.8% and 33.3% for the 12 months ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Our effective income tax rate

varied from statutory rates during the 12 months ended December 31 2008

primarily as result of non-deductible executive compensation expenses

and the realization of net operating losses related to tax planning strategies

associated with the merging of our loss- and profit- generating subsidiaries

in the United Kingdom The effective income tax rate varied from statutory

rates during the 12 months ended December 31 2007 primarily as result

of non-deductible executive compensation expenses and the impact of the

release of net operating loss usage limitation related to prior acquisi

tion The decline in our tax rates in 2008 from 2007 is primarily attributable

to continued favorable changes to tax rates in certain foreign jurisdictions

and changes to the income mix between international tax jurisdictions Our

effective income tax rate was 34.9% for the 12 months ended December 31

2006 Our effective income tax rate varied from statutory rates during the

12 months ended December 31 2006 primarily as result cf non-deductible

compensation costs and changes in valuation allowances

As of December 31 2008 we have million of unrecognized tax benefits

including $1.8 million of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would

reduce our annual effective tax rate We do not expect our unrecognized

tax benefit to change significantly over the next twelve months

Non-GAAP FinanciaL Measures

In order to supplement our consolidated financial statements presented

in accordance with GAAP we have included the following non-GAAP mea

sures of financial performance organic growth free cash flow cash cost

of revenues and cash cost of research and development Management uses

these measures internally as means of analyzing our current and future

financial performance and identifying trends in our financial condition and

results of operations We have provided this information to investors to assist

in meaningful comparisons of past present and future operating results and

to assist in highlighting the results of ongoing core operations Please see

the tables below and in Net Revenues for calculation of these non-GAAP

financial measures and for reconciliation to the most directly comparable
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GAAP measures These non-GAAP financial measures may differ materially

from comparable or similarly titled measures provided by other companies

and should be considered in addition to not as substitute for or superior

to measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with GAAP

Free cash flow

We define free cash flow as net cash provided by operating activities less

capital expenditures We believe this non-GAAP measure provides relevant

measure of our liquidity in evaluating our financial performance and our

ability to generate cash without additional external financing in order

to repay debt obligations fund acquisitions and repurchase shares The

following table presents reconciliation of net cash provided by operating

activities to free cash flow for the periods indicated in thousands

Year ended December 31
2008 2007 2006

Net cash provided by

operating activities $106088 $90937 $73160

Capital expenditures 49625 46341 31926

Free cash flow $56463 $44596 $41234

Cash cost of revenues and cash cost of

research and development

We define cash cost of revenues as cost of revenues plus capitalized

network engineering costs and cash cost of research and development as

research and development expense plus capitalized research and develop

ment related software costs We believe that presenting these non-GAAP

measures to include both our expensed and capitalized costs are useful

in evaluating the total investments in our service offerings and network

support infrastructure The following table presents reconciliation of

cost of revenues to cash cost of revenue and research and development

expense to cash cost of research and development for the periods indicated

in thousands

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Cost of revenues $256606 $227259 $200472

Capitalized network

engineering costs

Cash cost of revenues

Research and development

expense

Capitalized research and

development related

software costs

Cash cost of research

and development
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Acquisitions

We seek to acquire complementary companies that increase our market

share and provide us with additional customers technologies applications

and sales personnel All revenues and related costs from these transactions

have been included in our consolidated financial statements as of the effec

tive date of each acquisition

North America

In July 2008 we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of

Soundpath U.S.-based audio conferencing business We paid $20.1 million

in cash at closing and $0.3 million in transaction fees and closing costs We

funded the purchase through our credit
facility and cash and equivalents on

hand We followed SPAS No 141 Business Combinations or SPAS No 141

and allocated approximately $6.o million to identifiable customer lists and

$i.o million to non-compete agreements with the customer lists amortized

over ten years and the non-compete agreements amortized over five years

We allocated the residual $13.4 million of the aggregate purchase price to

goodwill which is subject to periodic impairment assessment in accor

dance with SPAS No 142 Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets or SPAS No 142

In May 2008 we acquired certain assets and assumed the liabilities of the

audio conferencing business of iLinc U.S.-based audio conferencing busi

ness We paid $3.9 million in cash at closing and $o.i million in transaction

fees and closing costs We funded the purchase with cash and equivalents

on hand We followed SPAS No 141 and allocated approximately $0.6 million

to acquired working capital $0.8 million to other acquisition liabilities and

$1.2 million to identifiable intangible assets which will be amortized over

five years We allocated the residual $3.0 million of the aggregate purchase

price to goodwill which is subject to periodic impairment assessment in

accordance with SPAS No 142

In July 2007 we acquired the assets and stock of Budget Conferencing

Canadian-based provider of audio and web conferencing services We paid

$19.8 million in cash at closing and $0.6 million in transaction fees and

closing costs In June 2008 we paid an additional $0.7 million in cash to

finalize the working capital component of the purchase price We funded the

purchase through our credit
facility We followed SPAS No 141 and allocated

approximately $0.2 million to acquired fixed assets $o.i million to other

acquisition liabilities $6.6 million to identifiable customer lists $1.3 million

to trademarks and $1.4 million to non-compete agreement with the identi

fiable customer lists and non-compete agreements amortized over five years

In addition we allocated $2.6 million to long-term deferred tax liabilities to

record the step-up in basis for the customer lists and developed technology

purchased We allocated the residual $14.3 million of the aggregate purchase

price to goodwill which is subject to periodic impairmerLt assessment in

accordance with SPAS No 142

5442 2767 377

$262048 $230026 $200849

Year ended December 31
2008 2007 2006

In September 2006 we acquired assets and the stock of eNunciate

Canadian-based provider of audio and web conferencing services We paid

$16888 $14109 $12052
CA$29.o million in cash at closing and CA$o.7 million in transaction fees and

closing costs We funded the purchase through Canadian dollar borrowings

on our line of credit and Canadian dollar cash balances available We fol

17290 9446 3446
lowed SPAS No 141 and allocated approximately CA$o.3 million to acquired

fixed assets CA$o.3 million to acquired working capital CA$6.8 million to
$34178 $23555 $15498

identifiable customer lists and CA$o.2 million to non-compete agreement

with the identifiable customer lists and non-compete agreement amortized

over five-year useful lives We allocated the residual CA$22.1 million of the

aggregate purchase price to goodwill which is subject to periodic impair

ment assessment in accordance with SPAS No 142



In January 2006 we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Accucast U.S.-

based provider of e-mail communication services We paid $12.3 million in

cash at closing and $0.5 million in transaction and closing costs Subsequent

to closing we paid an additional $.o million cash purchase price upon the

achievement of certain milestone targets as specified in the purchase agree

ment We funded the purchase through our line of credit We followed SPAS

No 141 and allocated approximately $0.2 million to acquired fixed assets

$o.i million to other acquisition liabilities $2.0 million to developed technol

ogy and $i.o million to identifiable customer lists with the identifiable cus

tomer lists and developed technology amortized over five-year useful lives

In addition we allocated $1.2 million to long-term deferred tax liabilities to

record the step-up in basis for the customer lists and developed technology

purchased We allocated the residual $13.9 million of the aggregate purchase

price to goodwill which is subject to periodic impairment assessment in

accordance with SPAS No 142

Europe

In November 2007 we acquired the stock of Meet24 Nordic-based provider

of conferencing and web collaboration services We paid $26.3 million in

cash at closing and $0.2 million in transaction fees and closing costs We

funded the purchase through our credit facility and cash and equivalents on

hand We followed SPAS No 141 and allocated approximately $0.2 million to

acquired fixed assets $1.4 million to acquired working capital $0.9 million

to acquired deferred tax assets $3.8 million to other acquisition liabilities

$8.8 million to identifiable customer lists and $o million to non-compete

agreement with the identifiable customer lists and non-compete agreements

amortized over five years In addition we allocated $2.7 million to long-

term deferred tax liabilities We allocated the residual $21.0 million of

the aggregate purchase price to goodwill which is subject to periodic

impairment assessment in accordance with SPAS No 142 The goodwill

balance related to the Meet24 acquisition totaled $16.1 million at December

31 2008 which was impacted by foreign currency fluctuations of $4.s

million and working capital adjustments of $0.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 In 2008 we paid $2.8 million in cash to third party

escrow account to satisfy certain acquisition liability

Asia Pacific

In November 2006 we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities

of ECT an Australian-based provider of audio and web conferencing

services We paid AU$5.7 million in cash at closing and AU$o.4 million

in transaction fees and closing costs We funded the purchase through

Yen-denominated line of credit with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking and

Australian dollar cash on hand We followed SPAS No 141 and allocated

approximately AU$o.i million of the aggregate purchase price to acquired

fixed assets AU$o.s million to acquired working capital AU$1.4 miliion to

identifiable customer lists and AU$o.i million to non-compete agreement

with the identifiable customer lists and non-compete agreement amortized

over five-year useful lives We allocated the residual AU$4.o million of

the aggregate purchase price to goodwill which is subject to periodic

impairment assessment in accordance with SPAS No 142

Liquidity and capitaL resources

As of December 31 2008 we have utilized approximately $267.4 million of

our credit facility with approximately $266.2 million in borrowings and $1.2

million in letters of credit outstanding In December 2007 we increased our

line of credit to $325.0 million and in January 2008 we further increased

our line of credit to $375.0 million all under an accordion feature Prom time

to time we enter into interest rate swaps to reduce our exposure to market

risk from changes in interest rates on interest payments associated with our

credit facility
As of December 31 2008 we have two $ioo.o million interest

rate swaps one of which is for two-year period beginning in August 2007

at fixed rate of approximately 4.99% and one of which is for three-year

period beginning in August 2007 with fixed rate of approximately 4.75%

At the maturity of our credit facility in April2011 or in the event of an

acceleration of the indebtedness under the credit facility following an event

of default the entire outstanding principal amount of the indebtedness

under the facility together with all other amounts payable thereunder from

time to time will become due and payable It is possible that we may not

have sufficient funds to pay such obligations in full at maturity or upon such

acceleration If we default and are not able to pay any such obligations due

our lenders have liens on substantially ali of our assets and could foreclose

on our assets in order to satisfy our obligations

As of December 31 2008 we had $27.5 million in cash and cash equivalents

compared to $18.3 million as of December 31 2007 Cash balances residing

outside of the United States as of December 31 2008 were $26.5 million

compared to $19.4 million as of December 31 2007 We repatriate cash for

repayment of royalties and management fees charged to international

locations from the United States Therefore we record foreign currency

exchange gains and losses resulting from these transactions in Other net

in our consolidated statements of operations We generally consider inter

company loans with foreign subsidiaries to be permanently invested for the

foreseeable future Therefore we record foreign currency exchange fluctua

tions resulting from these transactions in the cumulative translation ad just

ment account on the face of our consolidated balance sheets Based on our

potential cash position and potential conditions in the capital markets we

could require repayment of these loans despite the long-term intention to

hold them as permanent investments At December 31 2008 we had approx

imately $107.6 million of availability under our existing $375.0 million credit

facility without regard to the uncommitted $25.0 million of the accordion

feature Por discussion of our credit facility see Capital resources

Cash provided by operating activities

Consolidated operating cash flows were $io6.i million $90.9 million and

$73.2 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Prom 2007 to 2008 the

increase in net cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to

increased net income the deferral of income tax payments and decreased

payments for restructuring costs offset in part by working capital changes

associated with the timing of payments from accounts payable Prom 2006

to 2007 the increase in net cash provided by operating activities was

primarily due to increases in income taxes payable related to reduced

income taxes paid of $9.1 million associated with an election for bonus

depreciation in 2007

Cash used in investing activities

Consolidated investing activities used cash of approximately $80.7 million

$94.1 million and $81.0 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Cash

used in 2008 was primarily related to $30.4 million to fund our acquisitions

of conferencing solutions providers and $49.6 million of capital expenditures

Cash used in 2007 was primarily related to $47.8 million used to fund

our acquisitions and $46.3 million of capital expenditures Cash used in

2006 was primarily related to $49.0 million to fund our acquisitions and

$31.9 million of capital expenditures

Cash provided by financing activities

Consolidated financing activities used cash of approximately $14.0 million

and provided cash of approximately $1.9 million and $s million in 2008

2007 and 2006 respectively Cash provided by financing activities for the

12 months ended December 31 2008 included approximately $i.i million of

net proceeds from our credit facility $i.i million from excess tax benefits

from share-based payment arrangements and approximately $2.5 million of

proceeds from stock option exercises offset by approximately $18.8 million

of treasury stock purchases of which $4.6 miliion was associated with the

netting of shares to pay certain employees income tax withholding due upon

the vesting of restricted stock awards and $14.2 million was associated with

the purchase of treasury stock Cash provided by financing activities in 2007
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was the result of net borrowings on our credit facility of $125.7 million

primarily associated with our self-tender offer $8.6 million received from

stock option exercises $g million from excess tax benefits from share-

based payment arrangements and $0.4 million from loan repayments

from our chief executive officer offset by treasury stock purchases of

$136.0 million Cash provided by financing activities in 2006 was the result

of net borrowings on our credit facility of $34 million used primarily to

fund our acquisitions $2.5 million received from stock option exercises

and $0.2 million from excess tax benefits from share-based payment

arrangements offset by treasury stock purchases of $31.7 million

Off-balance sheet arrangements

As of December 31 2008 we did not have any off-balance-sheet arrange

ments as defined in Item 303a4ii of SEC Regulation S-K

Commitments and contingencies

At December 31 2008 we had the following contractual obligations We are

primarily obligated under operating leases for network facilities and office

space outstanding balances LIBOR interest and commitment fees under our

line of credit interest rate swaps remaining cash payments on current and

prior year acquisitions and minimum commitments under our telecommuni

cations service agreements

The contractual obligations table below contains only the portion of the

liability accrued in accordance with FASB Interpretation or FIN No 48

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes or FIN No 48 that is expected

to be settled during 2009 The remaining amount that has been accrued in

accordance with FIN 48 is not included in the contractual obligations table

because we are unable to determine when or if payment of these amounts

will be made

The following table displays contractual obligations as of December 31 2008 in thousands

Contractual obligation

Operating leases

Current borrowings on tine of credit

Credit facility commitment fees and interest

Restructuring costs

Telecommunications service agreements

Acquisitions

Capital leases and interest

FIN No 48

Asset retirement obligation

Total

Amounts

committed 2009

$80968 $15574 $10721

12075

1853 1082

62389 37844 20967 3578

1339 796 294 166

5994 3037 1722

3780 3780

855 254 423 44 15

$443127 $74442 $40860 $280827

119

State sales tax and excise taxes

We have reserves for certain state sales and excise tax contingencies based

on the likelihood of obligation in accordance with SFAS No Historically

we have collected and remitted state sales tax from our non-PGiMeet

solutions customers in applicable states but have not collected and remit

ted state sales tax from our PtliMeet solutions customers in all applicable

jurisdictions In addition we have learned that certain of our PfiiMeet

solutions may be subject to telecommunications excise tax statutes in

certain states During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 we paid

$2.8 million and $0.6 million related to the settlement of certain of these

state sales and excise tax contingencies

At December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 we had reserved approximately

$4.6 million and $5.2 million respectively for certain state sales and excise

tax contingencies These amounts are included in Accrued taxes other than

income taxes in our consolidated balance sheets We believe we have appro

priately accrued for these contingencies In the event that actual results differ

from these reserves we may need to make adjustments which could materi

ally impact our financial condition and results of operations In addition

states may disagree with our method of assessing and remitting such taxes

or additional states may subject us to inquiries regarding such taxes

Capital resources

We have $s.o million comxitted revolving credit facility which consists

of an original revolving credit facility of $300.0 million with $ioo.o million

accordion feature of which $75.0 million has been exercised to date This

accordion feature allows for additional credit commitments to increase the

revolving credit facility up to maximum of $400.0 million subject to its

terms and conditions Our credit
facility

matures in April 2011 In January

2008 we expanded the committed amounts under the accordion feature of

our credit
facility by $50.0 million from $325.0 million to $375.0 million We

paid less than $o.i million in financing costs for this expansion of our credit

facility We have not had any expansions of our credit
facility subsequent to

the January 2008 expansion Certain of our material domestic subsidiaries

have guaranteed our obligations under the credit
facility

which is secured

by substantially all of our assets and the assets of our material domestic

subsidiaries In addition we have pledged as collateral all of the issued and

outstanding stock of our material domestic subsidiaries and 65.0% of our

material foreign subsidiaries

In April 2007 we entered into an amendment to our credit facility which

inserted into the applicable margin pricing grid new tier based on total

leverage ratio of
2.5 times or greater increased the permitted covenant level

of the consolidated total leverage ratio and amended certain other provisions

to allow us to purchase redeem or otherwise acquire up to an additional

266199

19750

2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter

$8785 $7884 $7234 $30770

266199

6613 1062

120 120 120 120 291

83

873 362

$8464 $7354 $31180
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$150.0 million of our common stock during 2007 of which we used

approximately $122.6 million to fund our self-tender offer in the second

quarter of 2007

At December 31 2008 we were in compliance in all material respects with

the covenants under our credit facility Proceeds drawn under our credit

facility may he used for refinancing of existing debt working capital capital

expenditures acquisitions and other general corporate purposes The

annual interest rate applicable to borrowings under the credit facility at our

option is the base rate the greater of the federal funds rate plus o.5% or the

Bank of America prime rate or LIBOR plus in each case an applicable mar

gin that varies based upon our leverage ratio at the end of each fiscal quartet

At December 31 2008 our applicable margin with respect to base rate loans

was o.o% and the applicable margin with respect to LIBOR loans was 1.5%

At December 31 2008 our interest rate on 30-day U.S Dollar LIBOR loans

was 1.94% for our borrowings on which we did not have an interest rate

swap agreement in place At December 31 2008 our interest rate on 30-day

Euro and Canadian Dollar LIBOR loans was 4.09% and 3.55% respectively

At December 31 2008 we had approximately $266.2 million of borrowings

outstanding and approximately $1.2 million in letters of credit outstanding

under our credit facility Included in our outstanding borrowings at Decem

ber 31 2008 was CA$6.o million Canadian Dollars and 3.7 million Euros

In February 2006 we entered into three-year $so.o million interest rate

swap at fixed rate of 4.99% and in August 2006 we entered into two

separate three-year $12.5 million interest rate swaps at 5.14% and 5.16%

respectively We did not designate these interest rate swaps as hedges

During the second quarter of 2007 we terminated these interest rate swaps

and recorded gain of approximately $0.4 million in Interest expense in

our consolidated statements of operations Monthly settlements with the

bank resulted in gain of $o.i million for the year ended December 31 2007

and are recognized in earnings as Interest expense

In August 2007 we entered into two $ioo.o million two-year interest

rate swaps at fixed rate of approximately 4.99% In December 2007

we amended the life of one of the $ioo.o million swaps to three years and

reduced the fixed rate to approximately 4.75% We did not initially designate

these interest rate swaps as hedges and as such we did not account for

them under hedge accounting in accordance with SFAS No 133 During

the fourth quarter of 2008 we prospectively designated these interest rate

swaps as hedges using the long-haul method of effectiveness testing Any

changes in fair value prior to designation as hedge and any ineffectiveness

subsequent to such designation are recognized as Unrealized loss on

change in fair value of interest rate swaps as component of Other

expense income in our consolidated statements of operations and

amounted to $o.i million and $i.s million during the 12 months ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

On October 2006 our Japanese subsidiary Xpedite Japan entered into

Yen-denominated 90-day term loan facility that expires annually on

September30 for V300.o million with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Xpedite

Japan has subsequently renewed this term loan through October 2008

The interest rate on outstanding borrowings during 2008 varied between

1.81% and 1.83% and borrowings during 2008 varied between Y200.o million

and Y300.o million During 2008 Xpedite Japan cancelled this facility
with

no outstanding borrowings at December 31 2008

We have entered into various capital leases for the purchase of operating

equipment These capital leases have interest rates ranging from 3.1% to

10.3% and terms ranging from 20 months to 6o months The capital lease

obligations recorded on our consolidated balance sheets for these leases

was $.3 million and $4.s million at December 31 2008 and December 31

2007 respectively

Liquidity

As of December 31 2008 we had $27.5 million of cash and cash equivalents

We generated positive operating cash flows from each of our geographic

business segments for the 12 months ended December 31 2008 Each

geographic business segment had sufficient cash flows from operations to

service existing debt obligations to fund capital expenditure requirements

which have historically been to 8% of annual consolidated net revenues

and to fund research and development costs for new services and enhance

ments to existing services which have historically been approximately 2%

to 3% of annual consolidated net revenues Assuming no material change

to these costs which we do not anticipate we believe that we will generate

adequate operating cash flows for capital expenditures and contractual

commitments and to satisfy our indebtedness and fund our liquidity needs

for at least the next 12 months At December 31 2008 we had $107.6 million

of available credit on our existing $s.o million credit facility without

regard to the uncommitted $25.0 million of the accordion feature

During 2007 we acquired approximately is% of our outstanding shares pur

suant to our self-tender offer and in the open market which was the primary

cause of net borrowings of $125.7 million of our credit facility We purchased

these shares under the self-tender offer at premium of approximately io%

or $12.65 share At March 31 2007 prior to our self-tender offer borrowings

under our credit facility were $124.9 million At June 30 2007 after complet

ing the self-tender offer borrowings under our credit facility were $243.8 mil

lion Since June 30 2007 we have used our cash flows from operations less

capital expenditures or free cash flow for debt repayments acquisitions and

stock repurchases At December 31 2008 borrowings under our credit facil

ity were $266.2 million During 2008 2007 and 2006 our free cash flow was

$56.5 million $44.6 million and $41.2 million respectively see Non-GAAP

Financial Measures Based on our historical free cash flow we anticipate

amending to extend the tenure or refinancing our existing credit
facility

prior to maturity In 2009 we anticipate continuing to use our free cash flow

to pay down our debt while still continuing to be optimistic in possible

acquisitions and share repurchases

We regularly review our capital structure and evaluate potential alterna

tives in light of current conditions in the capital markets Depending upon

conditions in these markets cash flows from our operating segments and

other factors we may engage in other capital transactions These capital

transactions include but are not limited to debt or equity issuances or credit

facilities with banking institutions

CriticaL Accounting Policies

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements and

the notes thereto which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make

estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements and the reported amounts of net revenues and

expenses during the reported periods On an ongoing basis management

evaluates its estimates and judgments including those related to revenue

recognition allowance for uncollectible accounts goodwill and other

intangible assets income taxes restructuring costs legal contingencies

and derivative instruments

Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience

and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances the results of which form the basis for making judgments

about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from those estimates
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the fair value is less than the carrying value of such assets and the carryingWe have identified the policies below as critical to our business operations

and the understanding of our results of operations For detailed discussion

on the application of these and other accounting policies see Note to our

consolidated financial statements

Revenue recognition

We recognize revenues when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

services have been rendered the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable

and collectability is reasonably assured Revenues consist primarily of usage

fees generally based on per minute per fax page or per transaction meth

ods To lesser extent we charge subscription fees and have fixed-period

minimum revenue commitments Unbilled revenue consists of earned but

unbilled revenue that results from non-calendar month billing cycles and

the one-month lag time in billing related to certain of our services Deferred

revenue consists of payments made by customers in advance of the time

services are rendered Our revenue recognition policies are consistent with

the guidance in Staff Accounting Bulletin or SAB No ioi Revenue Recogni

tion in Financial Statements as amended by SAB ioiA ioiB and SAB 104

Should changes in conditions cause management to determine these criteria

are not met for certain future transactions revenue recognized for any

reporting period could be adversely affected

Allowance for uncoilectible accounts receivable

Prior to the recognition of revenue we make decision that collectability is

reasonably assured Over time management analyzes accounts receivable

balances historical bad debts customer concentrations customer credit

worthiness current economic trends changes in our customer payment

terms and trends when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for uncol

lectible accounts receivable Significant management judgment and esti

mates must be made and used in connection with establishing the allowance

for uncollectible accounts receivable in any accounting period The accounts

receivable balance was $94.5 million and $89.7 million net of allowance

for uncollectible accounts receivable of $2.1 million and $t.s million as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively If the financial condition of our

customers were to deteriorate resulting in an impairment to their ability

to make payments additional allowances may be required

Goodwill and other intangible assets

We evaluate intangible assets and long-lived assets for potential impairment

indicators whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying value may not be recoverable Factors that management considers

important which could trigger an impairment review include the following

significant decrease in the market value of an asset

significant adverse change in physical condition or manner of use of

an asset

significant adverse change in legal factors or negative industry or

economic trends

current period operating or cash flow loss combined with history of

operating or cash flow losses or projection or forecast that demonstrates

continuing losses associated with the use of long-lived asset

significant decline in our stock price for sustained period and

an expectation that more likely than not an asset will be sold or other

wise disposed of before the end of its previously estimated useful life

In 2002 SFAS No 142 became effective and as result we ceased to amortize

approximately $123.1 million of goodwill In lieu of amortization we were

required to perform an initial impairment review of our goodwill in 2002 and

an annual impairment review thereafter We completed reviews as of January

2009 2008 and 2007 and immediately prior to the change in our segment

reporting in the fourth quarter of 2006 with no impairments identified

Other intangible assets with finite lives that do not meet the criteria of SFAS

No 142 continue to be amortized We recognize an impairment loss when

value of these assets is not recoverable The impairment loss if applicable

is calculated based on the discounted estimated future cash flows using

our weighted average cost of capital compared to the carrying value of the

long-lived asset We impaired customer lists and developed technology that

was determined to have no value to the company and recorded an asset

impairment equal to the net book value of $1.9 million Net intangible assets

and goodwill amounted to $376.0 million and $380.4 million as of December

31 2008 and 2007 respectively Future events could cause us to conclude that

the current estimates used should be changed and that goodwill and intan

gible assets associated with acquired businesses are impaired Any resulting

impairment loss could have material adverse impact on our financial

condition and results of operations

Income taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements

we are required to estimate our taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which

we operate This process involves significant management judgement in

estimating the actual current tax exposure together with assessing tem

porary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and

accounting purposes These differences result in deferred tax assets and

liabilities which are included within our consolidated balance sheets We

must then assess the likelihood that the deferred tax assets will be recovered

from future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not

likely we must establish valuation allowance To the extent we establish

valuation allowance or increase this allowance in period an expense is re

corded within the tax provision in our consolidated statements of operations

Income tax expense income taxes payable and deferred tax assets and

liabilities are determined and recorded in accordance with SFAS No 109

Accounting for Income Taxes or SFAS No 109 and FIN 48 Our net

deferred tax liability as of December 31 2008 was $3.1 million and our net

deferred tax asset as of December 31 2007 was $8.1 million net of valua

tion allowance of $12.6 million and $io.o million respectively Our deferred

tax asset changed to deferred tax liability as the result of an automatic

change in accounting method for tax purposes utilized on our 2007 income

tax return accelerating the deduction for internally developed software

We have recorded our valuation allowance due to uncertainties related to

our ability to utilize some of our deferred tax assets primarily consisting

of certain net operating losses carried forward The valuation allowance

is based on our estimates of taxable income by jurisdiction in which we

operate and the period over which the deferred tax assets will be recover

able In the event that actual results differ from these estimates or we adjust

these estimates in future periods we may need to establish an additional

valuation allowance or reverse an existing valuation allowance which could

materially impact our financial condition and results of operations

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2008 deter

mined in accordance with FIN 48 was million The total amount of

unrecognized tax benefit that if recognized would favorably affect the

effective tax rate was $1.8 million at December 31 2008

We also have reserves for certain asserted international federal and state tax

contingencies based on the likelihood of obligation In the normal course of

business we are subject to inquiries from U.S and non-U.S tax authorities

regarding the amount of income taxes due These challenges may result in

adjustments of the timing or amount of taxable income or deductions or the

allocation of income among tax jurisdictions Further during the ordinary

course of business other facts and circumstances may impact our ability to

utilize tax benefits as well as the estimated income taxes to be paid in future

periods We believe we have appropriately accrued for tax exposures If we

are required to pay an amount less than or exceeding our provisions for
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uncertain tax matters the financial impact will be reflected in the period in

which the matter is resolved In the event that actual results differ from these

estimates we may need to adjust tax accounts which could materially impact

our financial condition and results of operations

Restructuring costs

Restructuring reserves are based on certain estimates and judgments related

to severance and exit costs contractual ohligations and related costs Our

estimated severance costs could be impacted if actual severance payments to

individuals outside of the United States are less than initial estimates Con

tractual lease obligations could be materially affected by factors such as our

ability to secure sublessees the creditworthiness of sublessees and the suc

cess at negotiating early termination agreements with lessors In the event

that actual results differ from these estimates we may need to establish

additional restructuring accruals or reverse accrual amounts accordingly

Legal contingencies

We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings as disclosed in Item

Legal Proceedings of this annual report In accordance with SFAS No

we accrue an estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of legal claims

These estimates are developed in consultation with outside counsel handling

these matters and based upon an analysis of potential results assuming

combination of litigation and settlement strategies

In many cases the accounting treatment of particular transaction is spe

cifically
dictated by GAAP with no need for managements judgment in their

application There are also areas in which managements judgment in select

ing any available alternative would not produce materially different result

Our estimates are subject to change and we adjust the financial impact in

the period in which they are resolved

Derivative instruments

We have entered into interest rate swaps that are classified as derivatives

consistent with SFAS No 133 with the intention of hedging the cash flow

risk of variable 30-day LIBOR interest rate changes on the interest payments

associated with our credit
facility

We did not initially designate these

interest rate swaps as hedges and as such we did not account for them

under hedge accounting in accordance with SFAS No 133 During the fourth

quarter of 2008 we prospectively designated these interest rate swaps as

hedges using the long-haul method of effectiveness testing The principal

objective of these swaps is to minimize the risks and/or costs associated with

our variable rate debt Any changes in fair value prior to designation as

hedge and any ineffectiveness subsequent to such designation are recog

nized as Unrealized loss on change in fair value of interest rate swaps as

component of Other expense income in our consolidated statements

of operations throughout the contract periods Any changes in fair value

that are determined to be effective are recorded as component of Other

Comprehensive Income in our consolidated balance sheets The fair value

of derivatives is recognized in our consolidated balance sheets as Accrued

expenses under Current Liabilities or Long-Term Liabilities depending

on the maturity date of the contract

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measure

ments or SFAS No 157 which provides single definition of fair value and

hierarchical framework for measuring it as well as establishing additional

disclosure requirements about the use of fair value to measure assets and

liabilities SFAS No 157 is effective as of the beginning of fiscal years

beginning after November 2007 In February 2008 the FASB released

FASB Staff Position or FSP SFAS No 157-2 or FSP FAS No 157-2 which

delayed the effective date of SFAS No 157 for all non-financial assets and

non-financial liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair

value in the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually to

fiscal years beginning after November 2008 In October 2008 the FASB

released FSP FAS No 157-3 which clarifies the application of SFAS No 157

in market that is not active FSP FAS No 157-3 applies to financial assets

within the scope of accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair

value measurements in accordance with SFAS No 157 and was effective upon

issuance for future periods and prior periods for which financial statements

have not been issued The adoption of SFAS No 157 for our financial assets

and liabilities did not have material impact on our consolidated financial

statements The application of FSP FAS No 157-3 for financial assets in

market that is not active did not have material impact on our consolidated

financial statements We do not believe the adoption of SFAS No 157 for our

non-financial assets and liabilities effective January 2009 will have

material impact on our consolidated financial statements See Note ii of our

consolidated financial statements for additional information and related

disclosures regarding our fair value measurements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R Business Combina

tions or SFAS No 141R which replaces SFAS No 141 Business Combi

nations or SFAS No 141 SFAS No 141R retains the underlying concepts

of SFAS No 141 in that all business combinations are still required to be

accounted for at fair value under the acquisition method of accounting

but SFAS No 141R changed the method of applying the acquisition method

in number of significant aspects SFAS No 141R is effective on prospec

tive basis for all business combinations for which the acquisition date is

on or after the beginning of the first annual period subsequent to December

15 2008 with the exception of the accounting for valuation allowances on

deferred taxes and acquired tax contingencies under SFAS No 109 SFAS

No 141R amends SFAS No 109 such that adjustments made to valuation

allowances on deferred taxes and acquired tax contingencies associated with

acquisitions that closed prior to the effective date of SFAS No 141R would

also apply the provisions of SFAS No 141R Early adoption is not allowed

The adoption of SFAS No 141R could have significant impact on how

we allocate the purchase price of an acquired business The impact will be

limited to future acquisitions

On April 25 2008 the FASB issued FASB Statement of Position or FSP SFAS

No 142-3 Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets or FSP

SFAS No 142-3 which intends to improve the consistency between the useful

life of recognized intangible asset under SFAS No 142 and the period of

expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset under SFAS

No 141R and other GAAP provisions particularly in developing renewal or

extension assumptions used in determining the useful life of recognized

intangible asset FSP FAS No 142-3 is effective prospectively for fiscal years

beginning after December 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal

years and early adoption is not allowed The adoption of this statement

effective January 2009 did not have material impact on our financial

position and results of operations

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No i6i Disclosures about Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No

133 or SFAS No i6i SFAS No i6i requires enhanced disclosures about an

entitys derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transpar

ency of financial reporting SFAS No i61 is effective for financial statements

issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November

2008 with early application encouraged The adoption of this statement

effective January 2009 did not have material impact on our financial

position and results of operations
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Subsequent Events

In February 2009 we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities

of LINK Conference Service LLC U.S.-based provider of audio and web

conferencing services We paid $6.6 million net of working capital and

anticipate approximately $0.2 million in transaction fees and closing costs

We funded the purchase through our credit facility and cash and equivalents

on hand

In February 2009 we acquired certain technology assets and assumed

certain liabilities of provider of web collaboration services As consider

ation we issued warrants for up to 105000 shares of our common stock

at an exercise price of $9.21 per share

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and foreign

currency exchange rates We manage our exposure to these market risks

through our regular operating and financing activities and the timing of

intercompany payable settlements In addition in August 2007 we entered

into two $100.0 million two-year interest rate swaps at fixed rate of approxi

mately 4.99% On December 17 2007 we amended one of the $ioo.o million

swaps to reduce the rate to fixed rate of 4.75% and extend the maturity to

August 16 2010 These interest rate swaps effectively convert the interest

payments of $200.0 million of our LIBOR-based borrowings to fixed rate

At December 31 2008 we had borrowings of approximately $66.2 million

outstanding under our line of credit that are subject to interest rate risk

Each ioo basis point increase in interest rates relative to these borrowings

would impact annual pre-tax earnings and cash flows by approximately

$0.7 million based on our December 31 2008 debt level

Approximately 39.8% and 40.0% of our consolidated net revenues and 34.8%

and 36.6% of our operating expenses were transacted in foreign currencies

in 2008 and 2007 respectively Additionally we have foreign currency

denominated debt as part of our line of credit At December 31 2008 we

had debt outstanding of 3.7 million Euros and CA$6.o million Canadian

dollars As result fluctuations in exchange rates impact the amount of

our reported sales operating income and debt hypothetical positive or

negative change of 10% in foreign currency exchange rates would positively

or negatively change revenues for 2008 by approximately $24.8 million

operating expenses for 2008 by approximately $19.3 million and outstand

ing debt by $i.o million Our principal exposure has been related to local

currency sales and operating costs in the Euro Zone Norway Canada the

United Kingdom Australia and Japan We have not used derivatives to

manage foreign currency exchange risk and no foreign currency exchange

derivatives were outstanding at December 31 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Premiere Global Services Inc

Atlanta Georgia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Premiere

Global Services Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of December 31

2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income share

holders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2008 These financial statements are the responsibility

of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement

An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presenta

tion We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all

material respects the financial position of the Company as of December 31

2008 and 2007 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 in con

formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America

As described in Note
15

to the consolidated financial statements the

Company changed the manner in which it accounts for uncertain tax posi

tions effective January 2007 in accordance with the adoption of Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards Interpretation No 48 Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of FASB Statement No 109

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the Companys

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on

the criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

and our report dated February 27 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion

on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Atlanta Georgia

February 27 2009
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PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31 2008 and 2007 in thousands except share data

ASSETS 2C08 2007

Current assets

Cash and equivalents $27535 $18259

Accounts receivable less allowances of $2069 and $4526 respectively 94469 89683

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 12623 13066

Deferred income taxes net 11184 5522

Total current assets 145811 126530

Property and equipment net 129077 110767

Other assets

Goodwill 343954 337246

Intangibles net of amortization 32080 43115

Deferred income taxes net 2587

Restricted Cash 306

Other assets 9779 5411

$661007 $625656

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $52710 $51631

Income taxes payable 3063 4497

Accrued taxes other than income taxes 9818 8076

Accrued expenses 33787 37276

Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 2455 1664

Accrued restructuring costs 1082 1717

Total current liabilities 102915 104861

Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 269034 267817

Accrued restructuring costs 771 1575

Accrued expenses 20150 12109

Deferred income taxes net 14303

Total long-term liabilities 304258 281501

Commitments and contingencies Note 10 and 14

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock $.01 par value 5000000 shares authorized shares issued and outstanding in 2008 and 2007

Common stock $01 par value 150000000 shares authorized 60792441 and 61755728 shares issued

and outstanding in 2008 and 2007 respectively 608 618

Additional paid-in capital 545801 548418

Notes receivable shareholder 1803 1702

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income 8312 10523

Accumulated deficit 282460 318563

Total shareholders equity 253834 239294

$661007 $625656

Accompanying notes are integral to these consolidated financial statements
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PREMtERE GLOBAL SERVCES NC AND SUBSDARES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 in thousands except per share data

2008 2007 2006

Net revenues $624228 $559706 $496472

Operating expenses

Cost of revenues exclusive of depreciation and amortization shown separately below 256606 227259 200472

Selling and marketing 153696 141322 132279

General and administrative exclusive of net legal settlements shown separately below 66203 66007 58615

Research and development 16888 14109 12052

Excise tax expense 2890

Depreciation 32869 30008 24567

Amortization 15729 15659 13018

Restructuring costs 3339 3447 8385

Asset impairments 4279 -- 111

Net legal settlements and related expenses 2230 349 603

Total operating expenses 554729 498160 450102

Operating income 69499 61546 46370

Other expense income

Interest expense 19411 13598 9146

Unrealized loss on change in fair value of interest rate swaps 106 4482

Interest income 923 780 536

Other net 493 1418 1401

Total other expense 18101 15882 7209

Income before income taxes 51398 45664 39161

Incometaxexpense 15295 15222 13652

Net income $36103 $30442 $25509

Basic weighted-average shares outstanding 59356 62654 68933

Basic earnings per share from net income $0.61 $0.49 $0.37

DiLuted weighted-average shares outstanding 60477 63940 69787

Diluted earnings per share from net income $0.60 $0.48 $0.37

Accompanying notes are integral to these consolidated financial Statements
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PREMjERE GLOBAL SERVICES INC AND SUBSDARES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUIT
Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 in thousands

BALANCE DECEMBER 31 2005

Comprehensive income net of taxes

Net income

Translation adjustments

Comprehensive income net of taxes

Issuance of common stock

Exercise of stock options

Stock compensation expenserestricted shares

Treasury stock purchase and retirement

Stock compensation expensevariable accounting

FAS 123R expense

Stock compensation in exchange for services

Issuance of restricted shares net of shares traded for taxes

Income tax deficiency from exercise of stock options

Payments and interest related to shareholder

notes receivable

BALANCE DECEMBER 31 2006

Comprehensive income net of taxes

Net income

Translation adjustments

Comprehensive income net of taxes

Adoption of FIN No.48

Issuance of common stock

Exercise of stock options

Stock compensation expenserestricted shares

Treasury stock purchase and retirement

FAS 123R expense

Stock compensation in exchange for services

Issuance of restricted shares net of shares traded for taxes

Income tax benefit from exercise of stock options

Payments and interest related to shareholder

notes receivable

BALANCE DECEMBER 31 2007

Comprehensive income net of taxes

Net income

Translation adjustments

Change in unrealized gain loss derivatives

Comprehensive income net of taxes

Issuance of common stock

Exercise of stock options

Stock compensation expenserestricted shares

Treasury stock purchase and retirement

FAS 123R expense

Stock compensation in exchange for services

Issuance of restricted shares net of shares traded for taxes

Income tax benefit from exercise of stock options

Payments and interest related to shareholder

notes receivable

BALANCE DECEMBER 31 2008

2509

5810

29543

83

2586

481

17 204

209

2523

11101

14236

43

519

3230

663

25509

5642

31151

2515

5810

29581

83

2586

481

187

209

108

$2088 $316291

30442

8435

38877

1.278

8553

7598

132986

812

504

2703

3324

302

36103

16252

2583

17268

2526

11101

14251

43

519

3228

663

101

Accompanying notes are integral to these consolidated financial statements

Common

stock

issued

Additional

paidIn

capital

$717 $681719

38

Accumulated

Notes other Total

receivable Accumulated comprehensive shareholders

shareholder deficit income equity

$1896 $373236 $3554 $303750

25509

5642

108

$702 $663232 $2004 $347727

30442

8435

1278

13 8540

7598

104 132882

812

504

2710

3324

302

$618 $548418 $1702 $318563 $10523 $239294

36103

16252

2583

15

101

$1803 $282460 $8312 $253834$608 $545801
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PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 in thousands

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $36103 $30442 $25509

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 32869 30008 24567

Amortization 15729 15659 13018

Amortization of deferred financing costs 564 513 492

Net legal settlements and related expenses 2230 349 3099

Payments for legal settlements and related 2254

Deferred income taxes net of effect of acquisitions 14133 919 2912

Restructuring costs 3339 3447 8385

Payments for restructuring costs 4214 7109 5395

Equity-based compensation 12473 10590 10370

Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements 1149 3323 209

Unrealized loss on change in fair value of interest rate swaps 106 4482

Asset impairments 4279 111

Provision recovery for doubtful accounts 412 770 2319

Excise tax expense 2890

Loss on disposal of assets 287 278

Changes in assets and liabilities net of effect of acquisitions

Accounts receivable net 7881 33 1618

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4296 893 2448
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 749 6953 1045
Total adjustments 69985 61145 48638

Net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations 106088 91587 74147

Net cash used in operating activities from discontinued operations 650 987

Net cash provided by operating activities 106088 90937 73160

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures 49625 46341 31926

Other investing activities 681
Business acquisitions net of cash acquired 30416 47749 49040

Net cash used in investing activities 80722 94090 80966

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal payments under borrowing arrangements 529710 344388 164391

Proceeds from borrowing arrangements 530841 470099 200270

Payments of debt issuance costs 50 1200

Repayment of shareholder notes 413

Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements 1149 3323 209

Purchase of treasury stock at cost 18824 136049 31691

Exercise of stock options 2527 8553 2515

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 14025 1901 5712

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and equivalents 2065 534 563

Net increase decrease in cash and equivalents 9276 718 1531

Cash and equivalents beginning of period 18259 18977 20508

Cash and equivalents end of period $27535 $18259 $18977

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash transactions during the period for

Interest $16338 $13687 $7872

Income tax payments $15627 $7617 $16454

Income tax refunds $9812 $2052 $1814

Non-cash investing activities

Capital lease additions $3738 $2901 $2716

Capital expenditures in Total current liabilities $4960 $6059 $4770

Capitalized interest $1086 $1104

Accompanying notes are integral to these consolidated financiat statements
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PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLI DATED HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE COMPANY AND ITS BUSINESS

We develop and market comprehensive suite of applied communication

technologies Our PGiCOS supports business applications within the follow

ing solution setsPGiMeet PGiSend PGiNotify and PGiMarketin our three

segments in North America Europe and Asia Pacific

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting prin

ciples generally accepted in the United States requires management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of

the financial statements and reported amounts of net revenues and expenses

during the reporting period Financial statement line items that include

significant estimates consist of goodwill net intangibles net restructuring

costs tax accounts certain accrued liabilities and the allowance for uncol

lectible accounts receivable Changes in the facts or circumstances underly

ing these estimates could result in material changes and actual results could

differ from those estimates These changes in estimates are recognized in the

period they are realized

Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements include our accounts consolidated with our wholly-

owned subsidiaries All significant intercompany accounts and transactions

have been eliminated in consolidation

Cash and EquivaLents and Restricted Cash

Cash and equivalents include cash on hand and highly liquid investments

with maturity at date of purchase of three months or less Cash balances

that are legally restricted as to usage or withdrawal are separately disclosed

on the face of our consolidated balance sheets and are classified as either

current or long-term depending on the restrictions At December 31 2008

we have $0.3 million of restricted cash held in long-term other assets which

consists of cash held in escrow by third parties associated with several of our

facility leases in our Asia Pacific operating segment

Accounts Receivable

Included in accounts receivable at December 31 2008 and 2007 was earned

but unbilled revenue of approximately $5.9 million and million respec

tively which results from non-calendar month billing cycles and the one-

month lag in billing of certain of our services Earned but unbilled revenue

is billed within 30 days Bad debt expense was approximately $0.4 million

$o.8 million and $2.3 million in 20082007 and 2006 respectively Bad debt

expense was benefit in 2007 as result of previously written-off receivables

that were subsequently recovered from our new use of our accounts receiv

able management application Write-offs against the allowance for doubtful

accounts were approximately $2.9 million $2.3 million and $5.0 million in

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost Depreciation is provided under

the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets com

mencing when the assets are placed in service The estimated useful lives

are five to seven years for furniture and fixtures two to five years for software

and three to ten years for computer servers Internet and telecommunica

tions equipment The cost of installed equipment includes expenditures for

installation Amortization of assets recorded under capital leases is included

in depreciation Assets recorded under capital leases and leasehold improve

ments are depreciated over the shorter of their useful lives or the term of the

related lease

Research and Development

Research and development costs primarily related to developing new ser

vices features and enhancements to existing services that do not qualify for

capitalization are expensed as incurred

Software Development Costs

Pursuant to the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants State

ment of Position or SOP No 98-1 Accounting for the Costs of Software

Developed or Obtained for Internal Use or SOP No 98-1 and SFAS

No 86 Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold Leased or

Otherwise Marketed or SFAS No 86 costs incurred to develop significant

enhancements to software features to be sold as part of our service offerings

are being capitalized as part of Property and Equipment Net on our

consolidated balance sheets For the 12 months ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 we capitalized approximately $22.7 million $12.2 million and

$3.8 million respectively in North America related to these projects We

amortize these capitalized costs on straight-line basis over the estimated

life of the related software not to exceed five years Depreciation expense

recorded for developed software for the 12 months ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 was approximately $5.1 million $3.4 million and $6.2

million respectively

Goodwill

Goodwill is subject to periodic impairment assessment by applying fair

value-based test based upon two-step method The first step is to identify

potential goodwill impairment by comparing the estimated fair value of the

reporting segment to their carrying amounts The second step measures the

amount of the impairment based upon comparison of implied fair value

of goodwill with its carrying amount We have adopted January of given

calendar year as our valuation date and have evaluated goodwill as of Janu

ary 2009 2008 and 2007 with no impairments identified

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No 144 we evaluate the carrying values of long-

lived assets when significant adverse changes in the economic value of these

assets require an analysis including property and equipment and other in

tangible assets long-lived asset is considered impaired when its fair value

is less than its carrying value In that event loss is calculated based on

the amount the carrying value exceeds the future cash flows as calculated

under the best-estimate approach of such asset We believe that long-lived

assets in our accompanying consolidated balance sheets are appropriately

valued Asset impairments were $i million in 2008 and are recognized as

Asset impairments in our consolidated statements of operations Of this

$0.3 million was related to the discontinuation of technology $2.4 million

was related to abandoned fixed assets and $1.6 million was related to intan

gible assets that were determined to be fully impaired with no future value

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

services have been rendered the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable

and collectability is reasonably assured Revenues consist primarily of usage

fees generally based on per minute per fax page or per transaction methods

To lesser extent we charge subscription fees and fixed-period minimum

revenue commitments Unbilled revenue consists of earned but unbilled

revenue which results from non-calendar month billing cycles and the one

month lag time in billing related to certain of our services Deferred revenue

consists of payments made by customers in advance of the time services are

rendered Our revenue recognition policies are consistent with the guidance

in Staff Accounting Bulletin or SAB No ioi Revenue Recognition

in Financial Statements as amended by SAB ioiA ioiB and SAB 104

PREMIERE GLIE\i SERVICER 43



PREM3ERE GLOBAL SERVjCES NC AND SUBSDIARES
NOTES TO CONSOLiDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS

Foreign Currency TransLation

In accordance with SPAS No 52 Poreign Currency Translation or SPAS

No 52 the assets and liabilities of subsidiaries domiciled outside the United

States are translated at rates of exchange existing at the consolidated bal

ance sheets date Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates of

exchange prevailing during the year The resulting translation adjustments

are recorded in the Cumulative translation adjustment component of

shareholders equity In addition intercompany loans with foreign subsidiar

ies generally are considered to be permanently invested for the foreseeable

future Therefore all foreign currency exchange gains and losses related to

these balances are recorded in the cumulative translation account on the

consolidated balance sheets

Treasury Stock

All treasury stock transactions are recorded at cost and all treasury stock is

retired In the 12 months ended December 31 2008 and 2007 we withheld ap

proximately 327000 and 299000 shares respectively of our common stock

to satisfy certain of our employees tax withholdings due upon the vesting

of their restricted stock grants and remitted approximately $4.6 million and

$3.1 million respectively to the Internal Revenue Service on our employees

behalf We also repurchased during the 12 months ended December 31 2008

million shares of our common stock for approximately $14.2 million in the

open market pursuant to our board-approved stock repurchase program

As part of our April 2007 settlement agreement with Crescendo Partners II

L.P Series and related parties among other things Crescendo Partners

withdrew its proxy contest related to our 2007 annual meeting of sharehold

ers and we commenced $iso.o million self-tender offer to acquire up to

11857707 shares of our common stock at fixed price of $12.65 per share

In 2007 as result of this self-tender offer we repurchased 9687847 shares

of our common stocl in the open market pursuant to our self-tender offer

for approximately $122.5 million and incurred costs associated with the

tender offer of approximately $0.9 million that included legal printing and

dealer-manager fees that were included in Additional paid-in capital in

our consolidated balance sheets In 2007 we repurchased approximately

0.7
million shares of our common stock in the open market for approximately

$9.6 million pursuant to our Board-approved stock repurchase programs

Comprehensive Income Loss
Comprehensive income represents the change in equity of business during

period except for investments by owners and distributions to owners

Comprehensive income for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 was approximately $17.3 million $38.9 million and $31.2 million

respectively Accumulated other comprehensive income loss represents

the cumulative change in equity of business except for net income and

investments by and distributions to owners

Derivative Instruments

We have entered into interest rate swaps that are classified as derivatives

consistent with SPAS No 133 with the intention of hedging the cash flow

risk of variable 30-day LIBOR interest rate changes on the interest payments

associated with our credit facility We did not initially designate these

interest rate swaps as hedges and as such we did not account for them

under hedge accounting in accordance with SPAS No 133 During the fourth

quarter of 2008 we prospectively designated these interest rate swaps as

hedges using the long-haul method of effectiveness testing The principal

objective of these swaps is to minimize the risks and/or costs associated with

our variable rate debt Any changes in fair value prior to designation as

hedge and any ineffectiveness subsequent to such designation are recog

nized as Unrealized loss on change in fair value of interest rate swaps as

component of Other expense income in our consolidated statements

of operations throughout the contract periods Any changes in fair value

that are determined to be effective are recorded as component of Other

Comprehensive Income in our consolidated balance sheets The fair value

of derivatives is recognized in our consolidated balance sheets as Accrued

expenses under Current Liabilities or Long-Term Liabilities depending

on the maturity date of the contract

Income Taxes

Income tax expense income taxes payable and deferred tax assets and

liabilities are determined in accordance with SPAS No 109 Under SPAS

No 109 the deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect the tax effect of

temporary differences between asset and liability amounts recognized for

income tax purposes and the amounts recognized for financial reporting

purposes Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured by applying

enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years in which the deferred

tax assets or liabilities are expected to be settled or realized Valuation

allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets

to the amount expected to be realized on more likely than not basis

On July13 2006 the FASB issued PIN No.48 which clarifies the accounting

for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entitys financial statements

in accordance with PASB No 109 and prescribes recognition threshold and

measurement attributes for financial statement disclosures of tax positions

taken or expected to be taken on an income tax return Under PIN No 48

the impact of an uncertain income tax position on the income tax return

must be recognized at the largest amount that is more-likely than not to be

sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing authority An uncertain income

tax position wili not be recognized if it has less than 50% likelihood of be

ing sustained Additionally PIN No.48 provides guidance on derecognition

classification interest penalties and disclosures We adopted the provisions

of FIN No 48 on January 2007

Restructuring costs

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income at December Restructuring reserves are based on certain estimates and judgments related

31 2008 2007 and 2006 are as follows in thousands to severance and exit costs contractual obligations and related costs in

accordance with SPAS No 146 Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or

Change in Disposal Activities or SPAS No 146 Our restructuring costs for the years

unrealized ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were million million and

Transaction gain Loss $8.4 miliion respectively and are recorded as Restructuring costs in our

adjustments derivatives Total
consolidated statements of operations See Note for additional information

Balance at beginning of year $3554 $3554 and related disclosures regarding our restructuring costs

Current-period change 5642 5642

LegaL contingencies
Tax effect

We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings as disclosed in Note

Balance at December 31 2006 2088 2088
14 In accordance with SPAS No.5 we accrue an estimate of the probable

Current-period change 8435 8435 costs for the resolution of legal claims These estimates are developed in

Tax effect
consultation with outside counsel handling these matters and based upon

an analysis of potential results assuming combination of litigation and
Balance at December 31 2007 10523 10523

settlement strategies

Current-period change 16317 3974 20291

Tax effect 65 1391 1456

Balance at December 31 2008 $5729 $2583 $8312
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 that provides single

definition of fair value and hierarchical framework for measuring it as well

as establishing additional disclosure requirements about the use of fair value

to measure assets and liabilities SPAS No 157 is effective as of the beginning

of fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007 In February 2008 the FASB

released FASB Staff Position or FSP SPAS No 157-2 or FSP PAS No 157-2

which delayed the effective date of SPAS No 157 for all non-financial assets

and non-financial liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed at

fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually

to fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 In October 2008 the PASB

released PSP PAS No 157-3 which clarifies the application of SPAS No 157

in market that is not active FSP PAS No 157-3 applies to financial assets

within the scope of accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair

value measurements in accordance with SPAS No 157 and was effective upon

issuance for future periods and prior periods for which financial statements

have not been issued The adoption of SPAS No 157 for our financial assets

and liabilities did not have material impact on our consolidated financial

statements The application of FSP PAS No 157-3 for financial assets in

market that is not active did not have material impact on our consolidated

financial statements We do not believe the adoption of SPAS No 157 for

our non-financial assets and liabilities effective January 2009 will have

material impact on our consolidated financial statements See Note 11

for additional information and related disclosures regarding our fair value

measurements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SPAS No 141R which replaces SPAS

No 141 SFAS No 141R retains the underlying concepts of SPAS No 141 in

that all business combinations are still required to be accounted for at fair

value under the acquisition method of accounting but SPAS No 141R

changed the method of applying the acquisition method in number of

significant aspects SPAS No 141R is effective on prospective basis for

all business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the

beginning of the first annual period subsequent to December 2008 with

the exception of the accounting for valuation allowances on deferred taxes

and acquired tax contingencies under SPAS No 109 SFAS No 141R amends

SPAS No 109 such that adjustments made to valuation allowances on

deferred taxes and acquired tax contingencies associated with acquisitions

that closed prior to the effective date of SPAS No 141R would also apply

the provisions of SPAS No 141R Early adoption is not allowed The

adoption of SPAS No 141R could have significant impact on how we

allocate the purchase price of an acquired business The impact will be

limited to future acquisitions

On April 25 2008 the PASB issued FSP SPAS No 142-3 Determination of

the Useful Life of Intangible Assets or FSP SPAS No 142-3 which intends

to improve the consistency between the useful life of recognized intangible

asset under SPAS No 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to

measure the fair value of the asset under SPAS No 141R and other GAAP

provisions particularly in developing renewal or extension assumptions

used in determining the useful life of recognized intangible asset FSP PAS

No 142-3 is effective prospectively for fiscal years beginning after December

15 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years and early adoption is

not allowed We are currently evaluating the impact this statement will have

on our financial position and results of operations

In March 2008 the PASB issued SPAS No i6i an amendment of FASB State

ment No 133 SFAS No i6i requires enhanced disclosures about an entitys

derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of

financial reporting SPAS No vii is effective for financial statements issued

for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 2008 with

early application encouraged We are currently evaluating the impact this

statement will have on our financial reporting disclosures

Accrued restructuring costs

$4832

Accrued

costs at

December 31

2007

Restricted

stock

awards

released

Accrued

costs at

December 31

Adjustments 2008

Total restructuring costs

$926 $3431

2366

$3292 $3431

$549 $3446

783

$549 $4229

$92 $270

1583

$92 $1853

RESTRUCTURING COSTS
Consolidated restructuring costs for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 are as follows in thousands

Accrued Restricted

costs at Charge to stock

December 31 continuing awards
Payments

2005 operations released made

$909 $8057 $683 $3981

3923 603 1414

$8660 $683 $539s

Consolidated

Accrued restructuring costs

Severance and exit costs

Contractual obligations

Total restructuring costs

Consolidated

Accrued

costs at

December 31
Adjustments 2006

$275 $4027

3112

$275 $7139

Severance and exit costs

Contractual obligations

Chargeto

continuing

operations

Payments

made
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Realignment of Workforce 2008
During the year ended December 31 2008 we executed restructuring plan

to consolidate the senior management of our technology development and

network operations functions and to consolidate our corporate communica

tions function into our marketing department As part of these consolida

tions we eliminated ii positions including entering into separation agree

ment with our president global operations During the year ended December

31 2008 we expensed total restructuring costs of $3.4 million associated

with the 2008 realignment of workforce representing severance costs

associated with the elimination of these positions and do not anticipate

additional charges The expenses associated with these charges are reflected

in Restructuring costs in our consolidated statements of operations On

segment basis these restructuring costs were $2.0 million in North America

$1.3 million in Europe and $o.i million in Asia Pacific all expensed within

the year ended December 31 2008 During 2008 we paid approximately

$2.7 million related to these severance and exit costs in cash and released an

additional $0.5 million in restricted stock awards Our reserve for the 2008

restructuring costs was approximately $0.2 million at December 31 2008 We

anticipate these remaining costs will be paid over the next twelve months

Realignment of Workforce 2007
In 2007 we executed restructuring plan to consolidate our non-PGiMeet

Solutions service delivery organizations As part of this consolidation we

eliminated 84 positions We initially expensed total restructuring costs of

$4.2 million representing $4.1 million in severance costs associated with

the elimination of these positions and $o.i million of lease termination costs

associated with our Paris France office We do not anticipate any additional

restructuring charges associated with the 2007 realignment of workforce

During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 we adjusted the
initially

recorded $4.2 million charge by $o.i million and $o.2 million respective

ly related to actual severance payments being less than originally estimated

The expenses associated with these charges are reflected in Restructuring

costs in our consolidated statements of operations On segment basis the

total restructuring costs initially incurred were $i.i million in North America

$2.7 million in Europe and $o million in Asia Pacific with total adjustments

in Europe of $o.i million and $o.2 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively

During 2008 we paid approximately $0.7 million related to these severance

and exit costs Substantially all restructuring obligations related to the 2007

reserve were paid as of December 31 2008

Realignment of Workforce 2006
In 2006 we executed restructuring plan to streamline the management of

our business on geographic regional basis As part of this streamlining

we eliminated ioo positions within customer service finance operations

and sales and marketing In the fourth quarter of 2006 we entered into

separation agreement in connection with the resignation of our former chief

investment officer We initially expensed total of $8.6 million representing

approximately $8.0 million in severance costs associated with these posi

tions which included the issuance of restricted stock having fair market

value of $0.6 miliion and $0.6 million of lease termination costs associated

with five locations within North America We do not anticipate any addition

al restructuring charges associated with the 2006 realignment of workforce

During the year ended December 31 2007 we adjusted the initially recorded

$8.6 million charge by $o.s million related to actual severance payments

being less than originally estimated On segment basis the total restructur

ing costs initially incurred were $4.6 million in North America $3.3 million

in Europe and $o million in Asia Pacific with total adIustments in Europe

of $o.4 million and North America of $o.i million in 2007 During 2008

we paid approximately $o.i million related to these severance and exit costs

As of December 31 2008 we have completed this restructuring plan and

accordingly no reserves remain

At December 31 2008 our reserve for restructuring costs incurred prior to

2006 totaled $1.6 million primarily for lease termination costs We anticipate

paying these remaining lease termination costs over the next eight years

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

We seek to acquire complementary companies that increase our market

share and provide us with additional customers technologies applications

and sales personnel All revenues and related costs from these transactions

have been included in our consolidated financial statements as of the effec

tive date of each acquisition

North America

In July 2008 we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of

Soundpath We paid $20.1 million in cash at closing and $o.3 million in

transaction fees and closing costs We funded the purchase through our

credit
facility and cash and equivalents on hand We followed SEAS No 141

and allocated approximately $6.o million to identifiable customer lists and

$i.o million to non-compete agreements with the customer lists amortized

over ten years and the non-compete agreements amortized over five years

We allocated the residual $13.4 million of the aggregate purchase price to

goodwill which is subject to periodic impairment assessment in accor

dance with SEAS No 142

In May 2008 we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of

the audio conferencing business of iLinc We paid $3.9 miliion in cash at

closing and $oa million in transaction fees and closing costs We funded the

purchase with cash and equivalents on hand We followed SEAS No 141 and

allocated approximately $0.6 million to acquired working capital $0.8 mil

lion to other acquisition liabilities and $1.2 million to identifiable intangible

assets which will be amortized over five years We allocated the residual

$.o million of the aggregate purchase price to goodwill which is subiect to

periodic impairment assessment in accordance with SFAS No 142

In July 2007 we acquired the assets and stock of Budget Conferencing We

paid $19.8 million in cash at closing and $0.6 million in transaction fees and

closing costs In June 2008 we paid an additional $0.7 million in cash to

finalize the working capital component of the purchase price We funded the

purchase through our credit facility We followed SEAS No 141 and allocated

approximately $0.2 million to acquired fixed assets $o.i million to other

acquisition liabilities $6.6 million to identifiable customer lists $1.3 million

to trademarks and $1.4 million to non-compete agreement with the identi

fiable customer lists and non-compete agreements amortized over five years

In addition we allocated $2.6 million to long-term deferred tax liabilities to

record the step-up in basis for the customer lists and developed technology

purchased We allocated the residual $14.3 million of the aggregate purchase

price to goodwill which is subject to periodic impairment assessment in

accordance with SEAS No 142

In September 2006 we acquired assets and the stock of eNunciate Canadi

an-based provider of audio and web conferencing services We paid A$29.o

million in cash at closing and CA$o.7 million in transaction fees and closing

costs We funded the purchase through Canadian dollar borrowings on our

line of credit and Canadian dollar cash balances available We followed SEAS

No 141 and approximately CA$o.3 million has been allocated to acquired

fixed assets CA$o.3 million has been allocated to acquired working capital

CA$6.8 million has been allocated to identifiable customer lists and CA$o.2

million has been allocated to non-compete agreement with the identifiable

customer lists and non-compete agreement amortized over five-year useful

lives The residual CA$22.1 million of the aggregate purchase price has been

allocated to goodwill which is subIect to periodic impairment assessment

in accordance with SEAS No 142
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In January 2006 we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Accucast

U.S.-based provider of e-mail communication services We paid $12.3

million in cash at closing and $0.5 million in transaction and closing costs

subsequent to closing we paid an additional $3.0 million cash purchase

price upon the achievement of certain milestone targets as specified in the

purchase agreement We funded the purchase through our line of credit We

followed SPAS No 141 and approximately $0.2 million has been allocated

to acquired fixed assets $o.i million has been allocated to other acquisition

liabilities $2.0 million has been allocated to developed technology and $i.o

million has been allocated to identifiable customer lists with the identifiable

customer lists and developed technology amortized over five-year useful

lives In addition $1.2 million has been allocated to long-term deferred tax

liabilities to record the step-up in basis for the customer lists and developed

technology purchased The residual $13.9 million of the aggregate purchase

price has been allocated to goodwill which is subject to periodic impair

ment assessment in accordance with SPAS No 142

Europe

In November 2007 we acquired the stock of Meet24 We paid $26.3 million

in cash at closing and $0.2 million in transaction fees and closing costs

We funded the purchase through our credit facility and cash and equivalents

on hand We followed SPAS No 141 and allocated approximately $0.2 million

to acquired fixed assets $1.4 million to acquired working capital $0.9

million to acquired deferred tax assets $3.8 million to other acquisition

liabilities $8.8 million to identifiable customer lists and $o million to

non-compete agreement with the identifiable customer lists and non-

compete agreements amortized over five years In addition we allocated

$2.7 million to long-term deferred tax liabilities We allocated the residual

$21.0 million of the aggregate purchase price to goodwill which is subject

to periodic impairment assessment in accordance with SPAS No 142

The goodwill balance related to the Meet24 acquisition totaled $16.1 million

at December 31 2008 which was impacted by foreign currency fluctuations

of $4 million and working capital adjustments of $0.4 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 In 2008 we paid $2.8 million in cash to

third party escrow account to satisfy certain acquisition liability

Asia Pacific

In November 2006 we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities

of ECT We paid AU$5.7 million in cash at closing and AU$o.4 million in

transaction fees and closing costs We funded the purchase through

Yen-denominated line of credit with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking and

Australian dollar cash on hand We followed SFAS No 141 and approxi

mately AU$o.i million of the aggregate purchase price has been allocated to

acquired fixed assets AU$o.s million has been allocated to acquired working

capital AU$1.4 million has been allocated to identifiable customer lists and

AU$o.i million has been allocated to non-compete agreement with the

identifiable customer lists and non-compete agreement amortized over

five-year useful lives The residual AU$4.o million of the aggregate purchase

price has been allocated to goodwill which is subject to periodic impair

ment assessment in accordance with SPAS No 142

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment at December 31 2008 and 2007 is as follows in

thousands

During 2008 we determined that billing software development costs associ

ated with our fax delivery services included in Construction in progress

would never reach its intended use and we therefore wrote off the related

value of $2.3 million

During 2007 we performed physical inventory of our property and equip

ment Ma result of this inventory we determined that approximately $82.8

million of fully depreciated fixed assets were no longer in service As result

these assets and the related equal amounts of accumulated depreciation are

reflected as retirements in our 2007 consolidated financial statements

Assets under capital leases included in property and equipment at December

31 2008 and 2007 are as follows in thousands

2008 2007

Operations equipment $122361 $119632

Furniture and fixtures 10658 9474

Office equipment

Leasehold improvements

Capitalized software

8063 10235

24195 19438

82354 55412

Construction in progress 17834 22931

Building

Less accumulated depreciation

1442

266907

137830

1964

239086

128319

Property and equipment net $129077 $110767

2008 2007

Operations equipment $10695 $9066

Less accumulated depreciation

Assets under capital lease net

5152

$5543

4185

$4881
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill by reportable business segment at December 31 2008 and 2007 in thousands

Goodwill carrying value at December 31 2006

Additions

Adjustments

Goodwill carrying value at December 31 2007

Additions

Adjustments

Goodwill carrying value at December 31 2008

Goodwill is not subject to amortization consistent with SFAS No 142 but

is subject to periodic reviews for impairment Additions to the goodwill

carrying value since December 31 2007 are primarily due to our acquisi

tion of certain assets of iLinc and Soundpath Adjustments to the goodwill

$268458 $22556 $4171 $295185

13642 20998 34640

4047 2975 399 7421

286147 46529 4570 337246

16862 16862

3474 5885 795 10154

$299535 $40644 $3775 $343954

carrying value since December 31 2007 are primarily due to working capital

adjustments related to prior period acquisitions and foreign currency fluc

tuations against the U.S Dollar

Other Intangible Assets

We continue to account for other intangible assets under SFAS No 142 and SFAS No 144 Summarized below are the carrying value and accumulated

amortization if applicable by intangible asset class in thousands

Other Intangible assets

Customer lists

Non-compete agreements

Developed technology

Other

Total other intangible assets

Gross

carrying

value

Gross

carrying

value

Net

carrying

value

Intangible assets are amortizedover an estimated useful life between one

and ten years During the year ended December 31 2008 we wrote off trade

marks and patents with an aggregate net value of approximately $0.3 million

based on our review and determination that these trademarks and patents

were no longer in use or providing value to the company During 2008 we

wrote off customer lists and developed technology that was determined to

have no fair value to the company and recorded an asset impairment equal

Estimated amortization expense

to the net book value of $1.9 million For each asset we calculated the esti

mated future cash flows expected to result from the assets use or eventual

disposal In each case this sum of future cash flows was less than the car

rying amount of the asset As result the assets were written down to fair

value Amortization expense related to our other intangible assets for the full

year 2008 was approximately $15.7 million and the estimated amortization

expense for the next five years is as follows in millions

North

America Europe

Asia

Pacific Total

December 31 2008

Net

Accumulated carrying

amortization value

December31 2007

Accumulated

amortization

$128564 $102705 $25859 $129204 92828

5799 2821 2978 5570 2476

40069 39598 471 41626 39656

2842 70 2772 1805 130

$177274 $145194 $32080 $178205 $135090

$36376

3094

1970

1675

$43115

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

$10.2 $6.9 $5.4 $0.8
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INDEBTEDNESS

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations at December 31 2008 and 2007

are as follows in thousands

The fair value of our long-term debt and capital lease obligations was

$253.7 million and $267.8 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Fair value is determined using expected future payments discounted with

current interest rates offered to us on debt of the same remaining maturity

and characteristics including credit quality

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases consist of the follow

ing at December 31 2008 in thousands

2009

2010

2011

2012

Total minimum lease payments

Less amounts representing interest 704

Present value of minimum lease payments

Less current portion

We have $s.o million committed revolving credit
facility

which consists

of an original revolving credit facility of $300.0 million with $ioo.o million

accordion feature of which $75.0 million has been exercised to date This

accordion feature allows for additional credit commitments to increase the

revolving credit facility up to maximum of $400.0 million subIect to its

terms and conditions Our credit facility matures in April 2011 In January

2008 we expanded the committed amounts under the accordion feature

of our credit facility by $so.o million from $325.0 million to $s.o million

We paid less than $o.i million in financing costs for this expansion of

our credit facility We have not had any expansions of our credit facility

subsequent to the January 2008 expansion Certain of our material domestic

subsidiaries have guaranteed our obligations under the credit facility which

is secured by substantially all of our assets and the assets of our material

domestic subsidiaries In addition we have pledged as collateral all of the

issued and outstanding stock of our material domestic subsidiaries and

65.0% of our material foreign subsidiaries

In April 2007 we entered into an amendment to our credit facility which

inserted into the applicable margin pricing grid new tier based on total

leverage ratio of 2.5 times or greater increased the permitted covenant level of

the consolidated total leverage ratio and amended certain other provisions to

allow us to purchase redeem or otherwise acquire up to an additional $iso.o

million of our common stock during 2007 of which we used approximately

$122.6 million to fund our self-tender offer in the second quarter of 2007

At December 31 2008 we were in compliance in all material respects with

the covenants under our credit facility
Proceeds drawn under our credit

facility may be used for refinancing of existing debt working capital capital

2007
expenditures acquisitions and other general corporate purposes The

annual interest rate applicable to borrowings under the credit facility at

our option is the base rate the greater of the federal funds rate plus o.s% or

the Bank of America prime rate or LIBOR plus in each case an applicable

margin that varies based upon our leverage ratio at the end of each fiscal

quarter At December 31 2008 our applicable margin with respect to base

rate loans was o.o% and the applicable margin with respect to LIBOR loans

was i.% At December 31 2008 our interest rate on 30-day U.S Dollar

LIBOR loans was 1.94% for our borrowings on which we did not have an

interest rate swap agreement in place At December 31 2008 our interest

rate on 30-day Euro and Canadian Dollar LIBOR loans was 4.09% and 3.55%

respectively At December 31 2008 we had approximately $266.2 million of

borrowings outstanding and approximately $1.2 million in letters of credit

outstanding under our credit facility Included in our outstanding borrow

ings at December 31 2008 was CA$6.o million and 3.7 million

In February 2006 we entered into three-year $so.o million interest rate

swap at fixed rate of 4.99% and in August 2006 we entered into two

separate three-year $12.5 million interest rate swaps at 5.14% and 5.16%

$3037 respectively We did not designate these interest rate swaps as hedges

1722 During the second quarter of 2007 we terminated these interest rate swaps

873
and recorded gain of approximately $o.i million in Interest expense in

362
our consolidated statements of operations Monthly settlements with the

bank resulted in gain of $o.i million for the year ended December 31 2007

and are recognized in earnings as Interest expense

5290 In August 2007 we entered into two $ioo.o million two-year interest rate

2455 swaps at fixed rate of approximately 4.99% In December 2007 we amended

$2 835
the life of one of the $ioo.o million swaps to three years and reduced the

fixed rate to approximately 4.75% We did not initially designate these

interest rate swaps as hedges and as such we did not account for them

under hedge accounting in accordance with SFAS No 133 During the fourth

quarter of 2008 we prospectively designated these interest rate swaps as

hedges using the long-haul method of effectiveness testing Any changes

in fair value prior to designation as hedge and any ineffectiveness sub

sequent to such designation are recognized as Unrealized loss on change

in fair value of interest rate swaps as component of Other expense

income in our consolidated statements of operations and amounted to

$o.i million and million during the 12 months ended December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively

On October 2006 our Japanese subsidiary Xpedite Japan entered into

Yen-denominated 90-day term loan facility that expires annually on

September30 for V300.o million with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Xpedite

Japan has subsequently renewed this term loan through October 2008

The interest rate on outstanding borrowings during 2008 varied between

1.81% and 1.83% and borrowings during 2008 varied between Y200.o million

and kr3oo.o million During 2008 Xpedite Japan cancelled this facility
with

no outstanding borrowings at December 31 2008

We have entered into various capital leases for the purchase of operating

equipment These capital leases have interest rates ranging from 3.1% to

10.3% and terms ranging from 20 months to 6o months The capital lease

obligations recorded on our consolidated balance sheets for these leases

was $s million and million at December 31 2008 and December 31

2007 respectively

Borrowings on line of credit

Capital lease obligations

Subtotal

Less current portion

2008

$266199

5290

$271489

2455

$264935

4546

$269481

1664

$269034 $267817
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EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION
On January 2006 we adopted using the modified prospective applica

tion SFAS No 123R which requires all share-based payments to employees

including grants of employee stock options to be recognized in the financial

statements based on their fair values We record the compensation cost

related to stock option grants to parties other than employees in accordance

with SFAS No 123 Accounting for Stock Based Compensation or SFAS

No 123 as originally issued and Emerging Issues Task Force EITF 96-18

Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employ

ees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services or

EITF No 96-18

We may issue restricted stock awards stock options stock appreciation

rights restricted stock units and other stock-based awards to employees

directors non-employee consultants and advisors under our amended and

restated 2004 long-term incentive plan and our amended and restated 2000

directors stock plan Options issued under these plans other than the direc

tors stock plan maybe either incentive stock options which permit income

tax deferral upon exercise of options or non-qualified options not entitled

to such deferral The compensation committee of our board of directors

administers these stock plans

As of December 31 2008 approximately $17.2 million of unvested restricted

share compensation is included in Additional paid in capital on the face

of our consolidated balance sheets

Stock Options

The fair value of the options used for the application of SFAS No 123R is

estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model

In determining the fair value of options using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model various assumptions such as expected life volatility risk-

free interest rate dividend yield and forfeiture rates are used The expected

life of awards granted represents the period of time that they are expected to

be outstanding The expected term of the option is estimated using histori

cal data Using the Black-Scholes option valuation model we estimate the

volatility of our common stock at the date of grant based on the historical

volatility of our common stock We base the risk-free interest rate used in the

In April 2008 our hoard of directors adopted and in June aoo8 our

shareholders approved our amended and restated 2004 long-term incentive

plan The amendment and restatement of our 2004 plan increased the total

number of shares authorized for issuance by 2.0 million shares to 6.o million

shares The maximum number of awards and the maximum fair market

value of such awards that we may grant under our 2004 plan during any

one calendar year to any one grantee are i.o million shares and $8.0 million

respectively We may not grant more than 3964386 of awards in the form

of full value awards such as restricted stock suhject to anti-dilution

adjustments under our 2004 plan

In April 2008 our hoard of directors adopted and in June 2008 our share

holders approved our amended and restated 2000 directors stock plan

Only non-employee directors can participate in our directors stock plan

Under our directors stock plan we have reserved total of 2.0 million shares

of our common stock in connection with awards We may riot grant more

than 292079 of awards in the form of restricted stock subject to anti-dilution

adjustments and may only grant non-qualified stock options under our

directors stock plan

As of January 2006 we had issued two types of equity-based payment

arrangements non-qualified stock options and restricted stock awards

The expenses associated with these arrangements are recorded in cost of

revenues selling and marketing research and development and general

and administrative expense

Black-Scholes option valuation model on the implied yield currently avail

able on U.S Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term

equal to the expected life of the award We have not paid any cash dividends

on our common stock and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in

the foreseeable future Consequently we used an expected dividend yield of

zero in the Black-Scholes option valuation model Finally we use historical

data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures Stock-based compensation

is recorded for only those awards that are expected to vest No stock options

were issued during the years ending Decemher 31 20062007 or 2008

The following table summarizes the activity of stock options under our stock plans for the year ended December 31 2008

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended Decem

ber 3120082007 and 2006 was $2.0 million $8.6 million and $2.5 million

respectively The total fair value of options vested during the years ended

December 31 20082007 and 2006 was $o million $1.4 million and $4.0

million respectively

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 we recognized

equity-based compensation expense of $43 thousand $0.8 million and $2.6

million respectively related to the vesting of stock options As of December

31 2008 we had no remaining unvested stock options to be recorded as an

expense in our statement of operations for future periods

Options outstanding at December 31 2007

Granted

Exercised

Expired

Options outstanding at December 31 2008

Options exercisable at December 31 2008

Options

1108689

Weighted average

exercise price

$8.03

Weighted average

remaining

contractual Life

in years

Aggregate

intrinsic value

336727 7.51

24787

747175

747175

9.54

8.22 2.77 $1062111

$8.22 2.77 $1062111
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Restricted Stock

The fair value of restricted stock awards used for the application of SFAS

No 123R is the market value of the stock on the date of grant The effect of

vesting conditions that apply only during the requisite service period is re

flected by recognizing compensation cost only for the restricted stock awards

for which the requisite service is rendered As result we are required to

estimate an expected forfeiture rate as well as the probability that perfor

mance conditions that affect the vesting of certain awards will be achieved

and only recognize expense for those shares expected to vest We estimate

that forfeiture rate based on historical experience of our stock-based awards

that are granted exercised and voluntarily cancelled If our actual forfeiture

rate is materially different from our estimate the stock-based compensa

tion expense could be significantly different from what we have recorded in

the current period In prior periods we assumed forfeiture rate of o% for

restricted stock awards During the year ended December 31 2007 we elected

to adjust our forfeiture rate to 1.5% The financial impact of this adjustment

was $0.3 million and was recognized as reduction of equity-based com

pensation in the year ended December 31 2007 pursuant to SFAS No 123R

Share Based Payment We continued to use forfeiture rate of 1.5% for the

year ended December 31 2008

The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock awards granted

during the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $12.95 $12.71

and $8.20 respectively The total fair value of restricted stock vested during

the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $11.2 million $8.9

million and $8.1 million respectively

For the years ended December 31 20082007 and 2006 we recognized

equity-based compensation expense of $12.4 million $9.8 million and $7.8

million respectively related to the vesting of restricted stock As of Decem

ber 31 2008 we had $18.0 million of unvested restricted stock which we will

record in our statement of operations over weighted average recognition

period of less than five years

Equity-based compensation expense is measured at the grant date based

on the fair value of the award and is recognized over the vesting periods

The following table presents total equity-based compensation expense for

non-qualified stock options and restricted stock awards included in our

accompanying consolidated statements of operations in thousands

Granted

Vested/released

Forfeited

Weighted

average

grant date

Shares fair value

2452131 $10.28

237749 9.86

1926507 $11.18

Cost of revenues

Selling and marketing

Research and development

General and administrative

Pre-tax equity-based

compensation expense

Income tax benefits

Total equity-based

compensation expense

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

$279 $416 $785

2942 2238 2073

1174 827 774

8078 7109 6738

12473 10590 10370

4241 3601 3526

$8232 $6989 $6844

The following table summarizes the activity of our unvested restricted stock

awards outstanding for the year ended December 31 2008

Unvested at December 31 2007

764466

1052341

Unvested at December 31 2008

12.95

10.66
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Basic and Diluted Net Income Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income available to

common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares

outstanding during the period The weighted-average number of common

shares outstanding does not include any potentially dilutive securities or

any unvested restricted shares of common stock These unvested restricted

shares although classified as issued and outstanding at December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 are considered contingently returnable until the restrictions

lapse and will not be included in the basic earnings per share calculation

until the shares are vested

Year ended December 31 2008

Diluted earnings per share gives the effect to all potentially dilutive securities

on earnings per share Our outstanding stock options and unvested restricted

shares are potentially dilutive securities The difference between basic and

diluted weighted-average shares outstanding was the dilutive effect of stock

options and unvested restricted shares

Pursuant to disclosure requirements contained in SFAS No 128 Earnings

Per Share or SFAS No 128 the following table represents reconciliation of

the basic and diluted earnings per share or EPS computations contained in

our consolidated financial statements in thousands except per share data

Basic EPS $36103 59356 $0.61 $30442 62654

Effect of dilutive securities

$0.49 $25509 68933 $0.37

Stock options

Unvested restricted shares

Diluted EPS

334

787

$36103 60477

588

698

$0.60 $30442 63940

599

255

$0.48 $25509 69787 $0.37

years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 excludes the effect of thousand

and
2.3 million respectively of out-of-the-money options and restricted

shares because their effect would be anti-dilutive

Accrued wages and wage related taxes

Accrued sales commissions

Office expenses

deferred rent utilities supplies etc

Acquisition liabilities

Employee benefits

Accrued professional fees

Travel and meeting expenses

Interest payable

Asset retirement obligation

Fair value of derivative instruments

Other

Sales tax and excise tax

We have reserves for certain state sales and excise tax contingencies

based on the likelihood of obligation in accordance with SFAS No

Historically we have collected and remitted sales tax from our non

PGiMeet solutions customers in applicable states but have not collected

2008 2007
and remitted state sales tax from our PGiMeet solutions customers in

$12861 $13434 all applicable jurisdictions

We were notified by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department

1652 1758 of Revenue in 2006 that our PGiMeet solutions are subject to sales tax in

796 3297
Massachusetts In March 2006 we began assessing sales tax to our custom-

139 769
ers in Massachusetts as result of this notification and an audit by the state

surrounding this issue followed In July 2006 we paid an initial payment
2737 5411

of approximately $1.2 million to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts

201 115
Department of Revenue for taxable years prior to 2005 In April2008 we

2174 1041 filed returns for January 2005 to February 2006 During the 12 months ended

254 386 December 31 2008 we made additional aggregate payments of $0.9 million

2600
associated with taxable periods prior to 2005 through February 2006

In March 2007 we were notified by the State of Illinois regarding the tax

ability of our PGiMeet solutions and we began assessing sales tax to our

PGiMeet solutions customers in Illinois in April2007 In April2007 we

filed returns and paid approximately $o.6 million to the Illinois Department

of Revenue for taxable periods prior to March 2007 In July 2008 we made

additional payments to the State of Illinois and the City of Chicago of

$0.2 million for periods prior to April2007 Additional amounts may be

due as these returns are audited

Weighted

Net average Earnings

income shares per share

Year ended December 31 2007 Year ended December 31 2006

Weighted

Net average Earnings

income shares per share

Weighted

Net average

income shares

Earnings

per share

The weighted average diluted common shares outstanding for the year

ended December 31 2008 excludes the effect of 116 thousand of restricted

shares and out-of-the-money options because their effect would be anti-

dilutive The weighted average diluted common shares outstanding for the

10 ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses at December 31 2008 and 2007 are as follows

in thousands

3430 3357

2943 4708

$33787 $37276
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During the first quarter of 2008 we completed an outstanding audit with the

State of New York related to our former operating segment Voicecom which

was discontinued in 2001 and paid $1.7 million for outstanding telecommu

nications excise taxes

During the second quarter of 2008 we learned that certain of our PGiMeet

solutions may be subIect to certain states telecommunications excise tax

statutes We are currently working with this states department of revenue

to resolve this matter which spans tax years 20012007 Accordingly we have

accrued approximately $4.0 million of excise tax and interest for the appli

cable time period as of Decemher 31 2008 We recorded approximately $2.9

million in Operating expenses and $i.i million in Interest expense in

our consolidated statements of operations during the second quarter of 2008

At December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 we had reserved approximately

$4.6 million and $5.2 million respectively for certain state sales and excise

tax contingencies These amounts are included in Accrued taxes other than

income taxes in our consolidated balance sheets We believe we have ap

propriately accrued for these contingencies In the event that actual results

differ from these reserves we may need to make adIustments which could

materially impact our financial condition and results of operations In addi

tion states may disagree with our method of assessing and remitting such

taxes or additional states may subIect us to inquiries regarding such taxes

11 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The lab value amounts for Cash and equivalents Accounts receivable net

and payable and accrued expenses approximate carrying amounts due to

the short maturities of these instruments The carrying value of our capital

lease obligations do not vary materially from fair value at December 31

2008 and 2007 We believe the fair value of the current maturities of our debt

approximates the reported carrying amount The estimated fair value of

our long-term debt is based on expected future payments discounted using

current interest rates offered to us on debt of the same remaining maturity

and characteristics including credit quality The fair value of our deriva

tive instruments is calculated at the end of each period and carried on our

consolidated balance sheets in the appropriate category as further discussed

below The fair value of our lines of credit is calculated at the end of each

reporting period and disclosed as further discussed below

Effective January 2008 we adopted SFAS No 157 for our financial assets

and liabilities SFAS No 157 is technical standard which provides single

definition of fair value and hierarchical framework for measuring it SFAS

No 157 defines fair value as an exit price representing the amount that would

be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability at the measurement

date in an orderly transaction between market participants As such fair

value is market-based measurement that should be determined based

on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or

liability SFAS No 157 establishes three-tier fair value hierarchy as basis

for such assumptions which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair

value as follows

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that are

observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly and

Level Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
in which there is

little or no market data

We value our interest rate swaps using market approach based on interest

rate yield curves observable in market transactions We value our line of

credit using market approach based on broker derived quotes The fair

value of our interest rate swaps and line of credit are based on models whose

inputs are observable therefore the fair value of these financial instruments

is based on Level input

We have segregated all financial assets and liabilities that are measured at

fair value on recurring basis into the most appropriate level within the fair

value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine the fair value at the

measurement date in the table below in millions

12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
We sponsor defined contribution plan covering substantially all of our

U.S employees We also sponsor similar voluntary contribution arrange

ments for certain of our employees outside the United States that meet

applicable eligibility requirements We may make discretionary contribu

tions for the benefit of employees under these plans In 2008 2007 and 2006

we paid cash of approximately $2.0 million $1.9 million and $2.1 million

respectively to fund our discretionary employee contributions under our

defined contribution plans

13 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes receivable shareholder

We have made loans in prior years to our chief executive officer and to

limited partnership in which he has an indirect interest pursuant to exten

sions of credit agreed to by us prior to July 30 2002 These loans were made

pursuant to his then current employment agreement for the exercise price

of certain stock options and the taxes related thereto Each of these loans is

evidenced by recourse promissorynote bearing interest at the applicable

federal rate and secured by the common stock purchased These loans

mature between 2009 and 2010 These loans including accrued interest

are recorded in the equity section of the consolidated balance sheets under

the caption Notes receivable shareholder The principal amount out

standing under all remaining loans owed to us by our chief executive officer

is approximately $1.8 million as of December 31 2008

HowStuffWorks Inc

As disclosed under Certain Transactions in our definitive proxy statement

dated April iS 2008 certain members of our board of directors have interests

in HowStuffworks Inc Pursuant to sponsorship agreement for our pur

chase of online advertisements and web site design and content develop

ment approved by our audit committee and entered into in October 2007

as renewed we paid HowStuffWorks an aggregate of $i.o million during

2008 with some payments in 2008 relating to services rendered in 2007

This agreement expired by its terms in September 2008

Liabilities

December 31 2008

Fairvalue Level Level2

Interest rate swaps $8.6 $8.6

Credit facility 250.9 250.9

Total $259.5 $259.5

Level
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14 COMMITMIENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Lease Commitments

We lease computer equipment automobiles office space and other equip

ment under noncancelable lease agreements The leases generally provide

that we pay the taxes insurance and maintenance expenses related to the

leased assets Future minimum lease payments for noncancelable operating

leases as of December 31 2008 are as follows in thousands

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Thereafter

Net minimum lease payments

Rent expense under operating leases was $13.8 million $9.3 million and

$11.4 million for the years ended December 31 20082007 and 2006 respec

tively Facilities rent is reduced by sublease income of approximately $o.i

million and $0.5 million for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006

respectively with no sublease income in 2008 In 2008 2007 and 2006 facili

ties rent was reduced by approximately $0.8 million $0.8 million and $o.6

million respectively associated with contractual obligations provided for in

the restructuring charge

Asset Retirement ObLigation

Our recorded asset retirement obligation liability represents the estimated

costs to bring certain office buildings that we lease back to their original

condition after the termination of the lease While our domestic operating

leases generally do not contain make-whole provision clauses in instances

where we believe landlord could subject us to remediation costs we estab

lish an asset retirement obligation liability with corresponding increase to

leasehold improvements consistent with SFAS No 143 Accounting for Asset

Retirement Obligations or SFAS No 143 Similarly for our international

operations where we have either make-whole provision clauses in our leases

or believe landlord could subject us to remediation costs we establish

an asset retirement obligation liability with corresponding increase to

leasehold improvements These amounts are included in Accrued expenses

under Current Liabilities and Long-Term Liabilities in our accompanying

condensed consolidated balance sheets For the 12 months ended December

31 2008 asset retirement obligation liabilities increased by approximately

$0.6 million for remediation costs and $o.i million of translation ad just

ments offset in part by $0.2 million of asset retirement obligations that were

satisfied The current and long-term portion of the asset retirement obliga

tion liability balance was $o million and $0.4 million at December 31 2008

and December 31 2007 respectively

8785

SuppLy Agreements
We purchase telecommunications services pursuant to supply agreements

with telecommunications service providers Some of our agreements with

telecommunications service providers contain commitments that require

us to purchase minimum amount of services through 2011 These costs are

$37.8 million in 2009 $21.0 million in 2010 and $3.6 million in 2011 Our total

minimum purchase requirements were $18.7 million $16.8 million and $18.5

million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of which we incurred costs in

excess of these minimums

$15574
Litigation and Claims

We have settled the litigation matter as described below10721

7884 On May 18 2007 Gibson Co Ins Brokers Inc served an amended com

234
plaint upon us and our subsidiary Xpedite in purported class action enti

30 770
tled Gibson Co Ins Brokers Inc et al The Quiznos Corporation et al

pending in U.S District Court for the Central District of California The un
$80968 derlying complaint alleged that Quiznos sent unsolicited fax advertisements

on or about November 2005 in violation of the federal TCPA and sought

damages of $1500 per fax for alleged willful conduct in sending of the faxes

On May 2008 all parties finalized confidential term sheet for the settle

ment On July 28 2008 the parties entered into settlement agreement and

release and motion for preliminary approval of class action settlement The

settlement is subject to approval by the court and on August 22 2008 the

court issued an order of preliminary approval of the settlement The Court

heard the motion for final approval of the settlement agreement on February

23 2009 and indicated orally that it would approve the settlement Judg

ment will become final on or about March 30 2009 when the time for appeal

expires We believe that our financial contribution to the settlement will be

well below the limits of our insurance policy and recorded loss contingency

for this amount in accordance with paragraph of SFAS No.5

We are also involved in various other legal proceedings which we do not

believe will have material adverse effect upon our business financial con

dition or results of operations although we can offer no assurance as to the

ultimate outcome of any such proceedings

15 INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense benefit from continuing operations for 20082007 and

2006 is as follows in thousands

12440 141 2262

$15295 $15222 $13652

Current

Deferred

2008 2007 2006

Federal $8492 $6685 $5555

State 31 1536 2546

International 11378 6860 3289

$2855 $15081 $11390

Federal $13861 $285 $2729

State 1109 932 367

International 2530 506 100
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The difference between the statutory federal income tax rate and our effec

tive income tax rate applied to income before income taxes from continuing

operations for 2008 2007 and 2006 is as follows in thousands

2008 2007 2006

Income taxes at

federal statutory rate $17988 $15982 $13706

State taxes

net of federal benefit 1315 434 209

Foreign taxes 3937 1651 59

APB 23 difference 331 449 548

Change in valuation allowance 2643 2303 186

Change in previous estimates 726 140 229

Foreign tax credits net 634 468 974

Research and

development credits 632 341 500

Non-deductible

employee compensation 1407 989 791

Other permanent differences 214 1030

Uncertain tax matters 832 1063

Income taxes

at our effective rate $15295 $15222 $13652

We adopted the provisions of FIN No 48 on January 2007 We recorded

provisions for certain international and state income tax uncertain tax

positions based on the recognition and measurement standards of FIN

No 48 We file federal income tax returns and income tax returns in various

states and international jurisdictions In major tax jurisdictions tax years

from 2000 to 2007 remain subject to income tax examinations by tax

authorities reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits at the beginning

and end of the years presented from adoption is as follows in thousands

Balance at January 12007 $6273

Expiration of the statute of limitation

for the assessment of taxes 553

Re-measurement of prior liability 317

Decrease due to settlements of assessed liability 889

Other 45

Balance at December 31 2007 $4559

In crease based on tax positions related to 2008 707

Re-measurement of prior liability 189

Other 64

Balance at December 31 2008 $5391

Included in the unrecognized tax benefits of $.4 million at December 31

2008 was $1.8 million of tax benefits that if recognized would reduce our

annual effective tax rate The unrecognized tax benefits at December 31

2008 are included in Other assets Income taxes payable and Accrued

expenses under Long-Term Liabilities in our accompanying consolidated

balance sheets We do not expect our unrecognized tax benefit to change

significantly over the next 12 months
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PREMjERE GLOBAL SERVKES NC AND SUBSDARES
NOTES TO CONSOLiDATED HNANCAL STATEMENTS

As permitted with the adoption of FIN No 48 we have changed our

classification of interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions

and recognize them in Interest expense and Operating expenses respec

tively in our consolidated statements of operations During the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 we recognized interest and penalties expense

of $0.9 million and $0.2 million respectively As of December 31 2008 and

2007 we had accrued interest and penalties of approximately $1.8 million

and $1.3 million respectively related to uncertain tax positions

In the normal course of business we are subject to inquiries from U.S and

non-U.S tax authorities regarding the amount of taxes due These inquiries

may result in adjustments of the timing or amount of taxable income or

deductions or the allocation of income among tax jurisdictions Further

during the ordinary course of business otber changing facts and circum

stances may impact our ability to utilize income tax benefits as well as the

estimated taxes to be paid in future periods We believe we are appropriately

accrued for income taxes In the event that actual results differ from these

estimates we may need to adjust Income taxes payable which could

materially impact our financial condition and results of operations

Differences between the financial accounting and tax basis of assets and

liabilities giving rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows at

December 31 in thousands

$i 5597

7964

212

23773

$3119

$312

7041

126

7479

$8109

We are required to estimate our taxes in each jurisdiction in which we oper

ate This process involves management estimating its tax exposure together

with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of

items for tax and accounting purposes The ultimate recognition of uncertain

tax matters is realized in the period of resolution

At December 31 2008 we had federal income tax net operating loss

carryforwards of approximately $5.6 million expiring in 2008 through 2018

The utilization of some of our net operating losses is subject to Section 382

limitations due to prior change in control related to one of our previous

acquisitions Excess tax benefits deficiencies of approxhnately $o million

million and $o.2 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively are

associated with non-qualified stock option exercises and restricted stock

award releases the impact of which was recorded directly to additional

paid-in capital

We intend to reinvest the unremitted earnings of our non-U.S subsidiaries

with the exception of Japan Australia and New Zealand and postpone their

remittance indefinitely In 2008 2007 and 2006 we recorded approximately

$o.8 million $o.i million and $o million respectively against future

foreign tax credits associated with dividends expected to be received from

our Japan Australia and New Zealand subsidiaries No other foreign tax

credits for U.S income taxes for non-U.S subsidiaries were recorded in the

accompanying consolidated statements of earnings

2008 2007
The valuation allowance at December 31 2008 primarily relates to certain

foreign and state loss carryforwards that in the opinion of management

$17200 $13416 are more likely than not to expire unutilized During the year ended

492 071
December 31 2008 our valuation allowance increased by approximately

703 1242
$2.6 million primarily result of $2.3 million increase in the valuation

reserves placed on certain current-year state and foreign operating losses

6332 2794

2558 1053

$33285 $25576

12631 9988

$20654 $15588

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards

Intangible assets

Restructuring costs

Accrued expenses

Other tax credits

Gross deferred tax assets

Valuation allowance

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Other liabilities

Total deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income taxes net
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PREMERE GLOBAL SERVCES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

as described in the summary of significant accounting policies are applied

consistently across the segments Our North America segment is comprised

primarily of operations in the United States Information concerning our

operations in our reportable segments is as follows in millions

Year ended December 312008

Statement of operations

Net revenues

Depreciation

Amortization

Asset impairments

Interest expense

Interest income

Income tax expense

Net income

Balance Sheet

Goodwill

Intangibles net of amortization

Property and equipment net

Expenditures for long-lived assets

Capital expenditures

Business acquisitions net of cash acquired

Year ended December 31 2007

Statement of operations

Net revenues

Depreciation

Amortization

Interest expense

Interest income

Income tax expense

Net income

Balance Sheet

Goodwill

Intangibles net of amortization

Property and equipment net

Expenditures for long-lived assets

Capital expenditures

Business acquisitions net of cash acquired

Year ended December 31 2006

Statement of operations

Net revenues

Depreciation

Amortization

Asset impairment

Interest expense

Interest income

Income tax expense

Net income

Balance Sheet

Intangibles net of amortization

Property and equipment net

Expenditures for long-lived assets

Capital expenditures

Business acquisitions net of cash acquired

Asia

Europe Pacific consolidated

$122.5 $116.9 $624.2

3.6 2.5 32.9

3.5 0.4 15.7

0.8 0.1 4.3

0.2 19.4

0.3 0.1 0.9

2.0 4.7 15.3

12.2 8.4 36.1

40.6 3.8 344.0

5.7 0.6 32.1

10.9 6.0 129.1

2.7 49.6

$30.4

$559.7

30.0

15.7

13.6 13.6

0.4 0.4 0.8

10.1 2.5 2.6 15.2

20.3 5.3 4.8 30.4

286.1 46.5 4.6 337.2

30.4 11.6 1.1 43.1

92.0 13.3 5.5 110.8

38.9 4.2 3.2 46.3

$21.2 $26.5 $47.7

$319.3 $93.0 $84.2 $496.5

18.2 3.8 2.6 24.6

11.2 1.6 0.2 13.0

0.1 0.1

9.1 9.1

0.2 0.2 0.1 0.5

9.1 3.2 1.4 13.7

21.5 0.7 4.7 25.5

268.4 22.6 4.2 295.2

33.3 3.6 1.5 38.4

72.3 11.8 4.0 88.1

27.8 2.8 1.3 31.9

$44.2 $4.8 $49.0

16 SEGMENT REPORTING

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2006 we realigned our reporting segments

to be consistent with the way we now manage our operations on geographic

regional basis with reportable segments in North America Europe and

Asia Pacific We no longer report results under our former Conferencing

Collaboration and Data Communications segments The accounting policies

North

America

$384.8

26.8

11.8

3.4

19.2

0.5

8.6

15.5

299.6

25.8

112.2

44.6

$28.0

$356.7

23.9

13.5

2.3

$2.4

$103.3

3.3

1.8

$99.7

2.8

0.4

Goodwill
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PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In February 2009 we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities In February 2009 we acquired certain technology assets and assumed

of LINK Conference Service LLC U.S.-based provider of audio and web certain liabilities of provider of web collaboration services As consider

conferencing services We paid $6.6 million net of working capital and ation we issued warrants for up to 105000 shares of our common stock

anticipate approximately $0.2 million in transaction fees and closing costs at an exercise price of $9.21 per share

We funded the purchase through our credit
facility

and cash and equivalents

on hand
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED
The following table presents certain unaudited quarterly consolidated state

ment of operations data for each of the eight quarters in the periods ended

December 312008 and 2007 The information has been derived from our

unaudited financial statements which have been prepared on substantially

the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements contained in

this annual report We have presented quarterly earnings per share numbers

as reported in our earnings releases The sum of these quarterly results may

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS
WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

DiscLosure Controls and Procedures

Our management has evaluated under the supervision and with the

participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer

the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December

312008 Based on this evaluation our principal executive officer and

principal financial officer concluded that as of December 31 2008 our

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and

15d-15e under the Exchange Act were effective and designed to ensure

that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the

Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within

the lime periods specified in the SECs rules and instructions and

information is accumulated and communicatedto our management

including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer

as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures

Managements Report on Internal ControL

Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15f/15d-15f Under the supervision and with the participa

tion of our management including our principal executive officer and

principal financial officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness

of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework

in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

differ from annual results due to rounding and the impact of the difference in

the weighted shares outstanding for the stand-alone periods The results of

operations for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results to be

expected for any future period The results of operations in all the quarters in

2008 and 2007 include charges associated with some or all of the following

equity-based compensation restructuring costs asset impairments and net

legal settlements and related expenses

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on our

evaluation under the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework

our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting

was effective as of December 31 2008

As described in our annual report on Form io-K/A for the year ended

December 31 2007 subsequent to the issuance of our interim financial

statements for the quarter ended June 30 2008 and in accordance with

our efforts to update documentation surrounding our critical accounting

policies we identified that the accounting for our interest rate swaps was

incorrect Upon the recommendation of management and the authorization

of the audit committee of our board of directors we determined that we

should restate our annual financial statements for the year ended December

31 2007 and interim financial statements for the quarters ended March 31

2008 and June 30 2008 to correct the accounting for our interest rate swaps

As result of the restatement under the supervision and with the partici

pation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer

our management implemented new disclosure controls and procedures

to remediate the related material weakness with respect to the application

of GAAP in the accounting for our interest rate swaps under SFAS No 133

as of December 31 2007

Management has tested the effectiveness of the newly implemented controls

and found them to be operating effectively and concluded that the controls

in place related to our interest rate swaps are properiy designed to provide

reasonable assurance that these derivatives are properly recorded and

disclosed in accordance with GAAP in our consolidated financial statements

As result management has concluded that as of December 31 2008 the

material weakness that was identified in the third quarter of the 2008 had

been remediated

First Second Third Fourth

quarter quarter quarter quarter Total

Year ended December 312008

Net revenues $152854 $161565 $157409 $152399 $624228

Operating income 19559 13900 19971 16070 69499

Net income 9035 8538 10758 7772 36103

Net income per sharebasic $0.15 $0.14 $0.18 $0.13 $0.61

Net income per sharediluted $0.15 $0.14 $0.18 $0.13 $0.60

Year ended December 312008

Net revenues $135626 $138019 $139845 $146216 $559706

Operating income 14747 11219 17408 18171 61546

Net income 8947 5833 7707 7955 30442

Net income per sharebasic $0.13 $0.09 $0.13 $0.13 $0.49

Net income per sharediluted $0.13 $0.09 $0.13 $0.13 $0.48
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Deloitte Touche LLP an independent registered public accounting firm

has audited our consolidated financial statements included in this annual

report on Form io-K as of the three years ended December 31 2008 The

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on their audit

of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting follows

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on their

audit of our consolidated financial statements is included at page 52 of

this annual report

Changes in Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter of 2008 we prospectively designated these interest

rate swaps as hedges using the long-haul method of effectiveness testing

and prior to December 31 2008 we remediated the material weakness

described above by

Installing new software to support our derivative testing with the

assistance of third party consultants with expertise in hedge accounting

requirements to prevent recurrence and

Providing additional training and implementing accounting reviews

designed to ensure that accounting and other relevant personnel involved

in derivative transactions appropriately apply SFAS No 133 and its related

interpretations

Other than the changes described above related to our remediated mate

rial weakness there were no changes in our internal control over financial

reporting during the quarter ended December 31 2008 that have materially

affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control

over financial reporting

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Premiere Global Services Inc

Atlanta Georgia

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Premiere

Global Services Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of December 31

2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission The Companys management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the

risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk

and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for

our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed

by or under the supervision of the companys principal executive and

principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and

effected by the companys board of directors management and other

personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America generally accepted accounting principles

companys internal control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that

in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION
None

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors

of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect

on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial

reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper management

override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may

not be prevented or detected on timely basis Also projections of any

evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting

to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compli

ance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on

the criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated

financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31 2008

of the Company and our report dated February 27 2009 expressed an

unqualified opinion on those financial statements and included an

explanatory paragraph regarding the Companys adoption on January

2007 of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Interpretation No 48

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of FASB

Statement No 109

DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Atlanta Georgia

February 27 2009
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PART III

Certain information required by Part III is omitted from this report and is

incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement pursuant to

Regulation 14A for our 2009 annual meeting of shareholders which we

will file not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by

this annual report

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to

our proxy statement under the headings Proposal Election of Directors

Information Regarding Nominees and Continuing Directors and Executive

Officers Corporate Governance Matters Audit Committee and Section

16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Our board of directors adopted our Code of Conduct and Ethics that applies

to all employees directors and officers including our principal executive

officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller

or persons performing similar functions This code is posted on our web

site at www.premiereglobal.com follow the Investor Relations tab to

Corporate Governance We will satisfy any disclosure requirements under

Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to or waiver from any

provision of this code with respect to our principal executive officer our

principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or

persons performing similar functions by disclosing the nature of such

amendment or waiver on our web site

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference

PART IV

to our proxy statement under the headings Corporate Governance Matters

Compensation Committee Compensation Committee Interlocks and

Insider Participation Director Compensation Director Compensa

tion for the 2000 Fiscal Year Compensation Committee Report which

shall not be deemed filed in this Form jo-K Compensation Discussion and

Analysis and Executive Compensation

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN

BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference

to our proxy statement under the headings Security Ownership of Certain

Beneficial Owners and Management and Equity Compensation Plan

Information

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED

TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR IINDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference

to our proxy statement under the headings Corporate Governance Matters

Independent Directors Audit Committee Compensation

Committee Nominating and Governance Committee and Certain

Transactions

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES

AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference

to our proxy statement under the heading Audit Matters

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

ai Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in the index set forth in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this report are filed as part of this

annual report

FinanciaL Statement Schedules

Balance at Charge to

beginning continuing

of period operations

Year ended December 31 2008

Allowance for doubtful accounts $4526 412

Restructuring reserves $3292 $3431

Valuation allowance $9988 $2696

Year ended December 31 2007

Allowance for doubtful accounts $7551 $770

Restructuring reserves $7139 $4198

Valuation allowance $9496 $3100

Year ended December 31 2006

Allowance for doubtful accounts $7560 $2319

Restructuring reserves $4832 $8660

Valuation allowance $9310 $186

Exhibits

The exhibits filed with this report are listed on the Exhibit Index following the signature page of this annual report which are incorporated herein

by reference

Deductions

$2869

$4870

$53

$225

$8045

$2608

$2328

$6353

Balance

at end

of period

$2069

$1853

$12631

$4526

$3292

$9988

$7551

$7139

$9496
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report to he signed

on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Premiere Global Services Inc

By Is Boland Jones

Boland Jones Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer

February 27 2009

POWER OF ATTORNEY
Know by all persons by these presents that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints jointly and severally Boland Jones and

Scott Askins Leonard and each one of them his or her attorneys-in-fact each with the power of substitution for him or her in any and all capacities to sign

any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form io-K and to file the same with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with

the Securities and Exchange Commission hereby ratifying and confirming all that each said attorneys-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes may do or

cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this annual report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ Boland Jones Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer February 27 2009

principal executive officer and Director

Boland Jones

/s/ Michael Havener Chief Financial Officer February 27 2009

principal financial and accounting officer

Michael Havener

/s/Jeffrey Arnold Director February 24 2009

Jeffrey Arnold

1sf Wilkie Colyer Director February 25 2009

Wilkie Colyer

Is/John Harris Director February 25 2009

John Harris

is Steven Jones Director February 24 2009

Steven Jones

/sf Raymond Pirtle Jr Director February 25 2009

Raymond Pirtle Jr

Is Walker Smith Jr Director February 25 2009

Walker Smith Jr
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibits marked indicate management contract or compensatory plan

or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this form pursuant to

Item 15b of this report

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger together with exhibits dated

November 13 1997 by and among the Registrant Nets Acquisition

Corp and Xpedite Systems Inc incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated

November 13 1997 and filed December 1997 as amended by

Form 8-K/A and filed on December 23 1997

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated April 22 1998 by and among

the Registrant American Teleconferencing Services Ltd ATS
PTEK Missouri Acquisition Corp and the shareholders of ATS

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K dated April 23 1998 and filed on April 28 1998

3.1
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant

dated March 15 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Registrants Annual Report on Form io-K for the year ended

December 31 2005 and filed on March i6 2006

3.2
Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form io-K for the year ended December 31 2005 and

filed on March i6 2006

Amendment No ito Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of

the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated April i8 2007

and filed on April19 2007

Amendment No.2 to Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of

the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.2

to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated and filed on

June 27 2007

4.i See Exhibits 3.1-3.4 for provisions of the Articles of Incorporation

and Bylaws defining the rights of the holders of common stock

of the Registrant

4.2 Specimen Stock Certificate incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2

to the Registrants Annual Report on Form io-K for the year ended

December 31 2005 and filed on March i6 2006

io.i Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Plan of the Registrant

incorporated by reference to Exhibit io.i to the Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form io-Q for the quarter ended June 30 1999

and filed on August i6 1999

10.2 Amendment No ito the Amended and Restated i998 Stock Plan

of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to

the Registrants Annual Report on Form io-K for the year ended

December 31 1999 and filed on March 30 2000

io.3
Intellivoice Communications Inc 1995 Incentive Stock Plan

assumed by the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.52 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form io-K for the year

ended December 31 1999 and filed on March 30 2000

10.4 1995 Stock Plan of the Registrant incorpora Led by reference

to Appendix to the Registrants Definitive Proxy Statement

distributed in connection with the Registrants June 2002 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders filed on April30 2002

10.5 Standard Office Lease dated May 23 i996 by and between 222i

Bijou LLC and American Teleconferencing Services Ltd as

amended by First Amendment to Standard Office Lease dated

May 1999 as amended by Second Amendment to Standard Office

Lease dated May1998 as amended by Third Amendment to

Standard Office Lease dated September i999 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit io.53 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form

io-K for the year ended December 31 2002 and ified on March 31 2003

io.6 Lease Agreement from Townsend XPD LLC to Xpedite Systems Inc

dated June 2000 incorporated by reference to Exhibit io.68 to

the Registrants Annual Report on Form io-K for the year ended

December 31 2002 and filed on March 31 2003

10.7
Pine Ridge Business Park Standard Office Lease dated January 29

i999 by and between Perg Buildings LLC and American Teleconfer

encing Services Ltd as amended by First Amendment to Lease

dated May 1999 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.69 to

the Registrants Annual Report on Form io-K for the year ended

December 31 2002 and filed on March 3i 2003

io.8 Stock Pledge Agreement dated December i5 i999 by and between

Boland Jones and the Registrant incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.73 to Amendment No ito the Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31 2002 and filed on

December 23 2003

10.9 Agreement for Assignment of Stock Options dated February 1999

by and among Boland Jones Seven Gables Management Company

LLC Seven Gables Partnership L.R and the Registrant incorporated

by reference to Exhibit io.74 to Amendment No ito the Registrants

Annual Report on Form io-K/A for the year ended December 31 2002

and filed on December 23 2003

io.io Promissory Note dated October 31 2000 payable to the Registrant

by Boland Jones incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.75

to Amendment No to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31 2002 and filed on

December 23 2003

io.n Stock Pledge Agreement dated October 31 2000 by and between

Seven Gables Partnership L.P and the Registrant incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.76 to Amendment No to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31 2002

and filed on December 23 2003

io.i2 Stock Pledge Agreement dated October 31 2000 by and between

Boland Jones and the Registrant incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.78 to Amendment No ito the Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31 2002 and filed on

December 23 2003

10.13 Promissory Note dated April17 ooi payable to the Registrant

by Boland Jones incorporated by reference to Exhibit io.8o

to Amendment No to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form b-K/A for the year ended December 31 2002 and filed

on December 23 2003
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10.14 Promissory Note dated April 17 2001 payable to the Registrant

by Boland Jones incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.81

to Amendment No to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31 2002 and filed

on December 23 2003

10.15 PromissoryNote dated April17 2001 payable to the Registrant

by Boland Jones incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.82

to Amendment No to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31 2002 and filed

on December 23 2003

io.i6 Form of Director Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant

and Non-employee Directors incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.67 to the Registrants Annual Report of Form io-K for the year

ended December 31 2003 and filed on March 14 2004

10.17 Form of Officer Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant

and each of the executive officers incorporated by reference to

Exhibit io.68 to the Registrants Annual Report of Form io-K for

the year ended December 31 2003 and filed on March 14 2004

10.18 Credit Agreement dated June 30 2004 among the Registrant as

Borrower Certain Subsidiaries and Affiliates of the Borrower
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification

Boland Jones certify
that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form so-K of Premiere Global

Services mc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue

statement of material fact or omit to state material fact necessary

to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading with respect to

the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial

information included in this report fairly present in all material respects

the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for

establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15e and 15d15e and internal

control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules

13a15f and 15d15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused

such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known

to us by others within those entities particularly during the period

in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused

such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under

our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and

procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control

over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants most

recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely
to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on

our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting

to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design

or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or

other employees who have significant role in the registrants internal

control over financial reporting

Is Boland Jones

Boland Jones

Chief Executive Officer

Premiere Globa Services Inc

February27 2009
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EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification

Michael Havener certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form io-K of Premiere Global

Services Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue

statement of material fact or omit to state material fact necessary

to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading with respect to

the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial

information included in this report fairly present in all material respects

the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for

establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15e and idieand internal

control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules

13a15f and idi5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused

such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known

to us by others within those entities particularly during the period

in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused

such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under

our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and

procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control

over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants most

recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on

our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting

to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design

or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or

other employees who have significant role in the registrants internal

control over financial reporting

Is Michael Havener

Michael Havener

Chief Financial Officer

Premiere Global Services Inc

February 27 2009

PREMIERE GLCBAL SERViCES 69



EXHIBIT 32.1 EXHIBIT 32.2

Statement of Chief Executive Officer of

Premiere GLobal Services Inc

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Premiere Global Services Inc

the Company on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 as

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof

the Report the undersigned Boland Jones Chief Executive Officer

of the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant

to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all

material respects the financial condition and results of operations

of the Company

Statement of Chief Executive Officer of

Premiere Global Services Inc

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Premiere Global Services Inc

the Company on Form io-K for the year ended Decemler 31 2008 as

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report the undersigned Boland Jones Chief Executive Officer of the

Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all

material respects the financial condition and results of operations

of the Company

Is Boland Jones 1sf Michael Havener

Boland Jones

Chief Executive Officer

Premiere Global Services Inc

February 27 2009

Michael Havener

Chief Financial Officer

Premiere Global Services Inc

February 27 2009
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PREMERE GLOBAL SERVjCES NC AND SUBSDRES

RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASuRES
in thousands unaudited except per share data

Twelve months ended

December 31 2006

2008 2007

Non-GAAP operating income1

Operating income as reported $69499 $61546

Restructuring costs 3339 3447

Net legal settlements and related expenses 2230 349

Asset impairments 4279

Proxy-related costs 2900

Equity-based compensation 12473 10590

Excise tax expense 2890

Depreciation 663

Amortization 15729 15659

Non-GAAP operating income $109776 $94491

Non-GAAP Net Incom

Net income as reported $36103 $30442

Elimination of non-recurring tax adjustments 1462 259

Unrealized loss on change in fair value of interest rate swaps 71 2913

Restructuring costs 2237 2275

Net legal settlements and related expenses 1494 231

Asset impairments 2867

Proxy-related costs 1914

Equity-based compensation 8357 6990

Excise tax expense 1936

Excise tax interest 744

Depreciation 444

Amortization 10538 10335

Non-GAAP net income $62441 $54841

Non-GAAP Diluted EPS from Net Income1

Diluted EPS from net income as reported $0.60 $0.48

Elimination of non-recurring tax adjustments 0.02

Unrealized loss on change in fair value of interest rate swaps 0.04

Restructuring costs 0.04 0.04

Net legal settlements and related expenses 0.02

Asset impairments 0.05

Proxy-related costs 0.03

Equity-based compensation 0.14 0.11

Excise tax expense 0.03

Excise tax interest 0.01

Depreciation 0.01

Amortization 0.17 0.16

Non-GAAP diluted EPS from net income $1.03 $0.86

Management believes that presenting non-GPAP operating income non-GAAP net income and non-GAAP diluted earnings per share EPS provide useful information

regarding underlying
trends in our continuing operations Management expects equity-based compensation and amortization expenses to be recurring costs and presents

non-GAAP diluted EPS to exclude these non-cash items as well as non-recurring items that are unrelated to our ongoing operations including non-recurring tax adjustments

restructuring costs net legal settlements and related expenses unrealized loss on change in fair value of interest rate swaps asset impairments excise tax expense and

interest and proxy-related costs These non-cash and non-recurring items are presented net of taxes for non-GAAP net income and non-GAAP diluted EPS The portion of

depreciation expense excluded from non-GAAP operating income and excluded from non-GAAP net income and non-GMP diluted EPS net of taxes reflects managements

review and adjustment of the useful economic lives of depreciable assets
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STOCK LISTING

Our common stock is

traded on the New York

Stock Exchange under

NYSE the symbol PGI

Our Chief Executive Officer has

certified to the NYSE that he is not

aware of any violation by us of the

NYSEs corporate governance

listing standards

ANNUAL REPORT

An online version of this Annual

Report is available on our web site

www.pgi.com in the Investor Relations

section

FORM 10-K AND

SHAREHOLDER REPORTS

copy of our 2008 Annual Report on

Form 10-K as filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission excluding

exhibits has been included herein

Additional copies of our Form 10-K

including exhibits are available free

of charge by accessing our web site

www.pgi.com or by written request

to Scott Askins Leonard Secretary

at our headquarters We have filed as

exhibits to our 2008 Annual Report

on Form 10-K certifications under

Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002 signed by our

Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer
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